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I 48 Vision
HEREBNALITHRAFMENE » EAMEHARA  REER -

To ensure that Hong Kong is served by a fair and efficient public
administration which is committed to accountability, openness and
quality of service

{E Mission

FBRBY - FERQAENRLE - EERFERAQEEBITIKE ML
BT mAERE - ARREAHITHOEZMKTE - WRETHAT -
Through independent, objective and impartial investigation, to redress
grievances and address issues arising from maladministration in the

public sector and bring about improvement in the quality and standard
of and promote fairness in public administration

{&4% Values

o NRAEEEBMREREETHE

o BRAERME ATMRNEAZREEESREANBERIEERN
o

s UMRMEBEEARE

o WRHEXKF NEREITAFTZEBE

e Maintaining impartiality and objectivity in our investigations

e Making ourselves accessible and accountable to the public and
organisations under our jurisdiction

e According the public and organisations courtesy and respect

Upholding professionalism in the performance of our functions
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received

4,351
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ENE
by phone

RFBEREBHAZBERE - N TH
BMSEIHXAGR

Complaints outside our statutory
purview closed within 15 working days
after initial assessment

ERNIEAATHAERENRER

Complaints concluded by investigation
or inquiry within 3 months

BHERN6EAATKAERENRER

Complex cases concluded by
investigation or inquiry within 6 months
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Closed after assessment Resolved by mediation
& FT A VIR ER{E S
Complaints
completed -]

91,771 4,397 J 195

KEMBER — EREREALER
Concluded by inquiry concluded by full investigation

ERRNEBAETH H —_@ ExEANE AR EREGENER
Direct investigation Cases related to access
operations completed to information completed

8 RHENER 599 EINEH
Recommendations given J Enquiries received »
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Oon the doorstep of the 35th
anniversary, |1 will lead the Office
to serve the public with vigour
and dedication. We shall set
targets and strive for results, and
perform our gatekeeping role
conscientiously for the continuous
betterment of the community.
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With the lifting of mask-wearing requirement in March 2023,
the year 2023/24 is the first full year where lives in the Special
Administrative Region have gone back to normality since the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Notable Figures in 2023/24

This year, we saw a decline in incoming complaints and logged
a total of 4,351 complaints, which is the lowest in the recent
five years. In particular, we see a big drop in pandemic-related
complaints: from 766 last year to 33 this year and the discontent
and grievances expressed in these complaints were drastically
less poignant. We completed 4,397 cases, and were able to
achieve all our performance pledges in handling enquiries, new
complaints, re-assessment and review of complaints.




PAFRRR 77 e B IR IR R A 2R B 1875R © SRMRHT
BE RN IR SR B A R IRER - A FRTNIA
EAOAGRENESR  BARERES - FEL - @
KDL RN ERBERS AR UL EA RO AR
AR o EULRE - BPIAEEFEE T EIE T 95
R RABI L R AT B L a0 B e A (8
& BIFTERT TEREHAETH - EELE
ERHERTEBAETEFT - AFREL T H186HK
EEE - HhBNKCEREAR R AP
HRDEZREF -

TEE B

BA—ERNIRTRARUAZAE RRENR
B BB AMEMMAAEY BB THRRE
T BERREENTHEARRIRETE AR
EZRETABEN AR R B RERBRE - R
HOMEAE - BINRLRBENELEZNER - RIFIE
et T ERMER SO RBMIE NE LIRFRRE -
WHR2023F9RRMATIA [HEFEHER] REE
MERES  MAPINES  ARRXBTAMES
B RURFERFETEEME - FENPFEE
FRTRRBARBTTEEAERE  TERERILS
BE o R T EHISR N ERINREE - AEE2023F
MARKT 13 T[] —RERXgdE] BEXR
AR RFFAERMAENTE  mMRM2E
FEERRENEHTE - TESHME TEA
FNRE A TETEHOMANEXRRARS

FFEEES
The Ombudsman’s Introduction

A total of 187 cases were concluded by mediation. As pandemic-
related cases were particularly suitable for mediation, hence we
saw an unprecedented number of such cases last year. We can
see that more public organisations are receptive to resolving
complaints swiftly and efficiently through mediation. Meanwhile,
we conducted full investigations into 95 cases, which required
in-depth probing or involved systemic issues. This year, we
also completed 10 direct investigation operations. In these full
investigations and direct investigation operations, we made a total
of 186 recommendations, more than 90% of which have already
been accepted by the relevant bureaux and departments, while
the rest are still under consideration.

Highlights of Our Work

We have been enhancing community awareness of the role and
services of The Ombudsman so that complainants would know
that they can seek redress from an independent, objective and
impartial channel. While promotion efforts were inevitably affected
by the pandemic, we maintained exposure by making better use
of our website and social media channels. We have redesigned
our website and the online complaint form to make them more
user-friendly. We launched a publicity campaign in September
2023 with the theme “Hong Kong needs a clear mirror”, making
use of outdoor advertisings, advertising spaces of public transport
and social media. The annual Ombudsman’s Awards Presentation
Ceremony was held in full scale and continued to generate
attention in the society. In addition to regular outreach talks to
schools, we held a Youth Contest in November 2023 to increase
awareness of our work among teenagers. Our involvement in the
leadership forum for newly appointed principals also raised their
awareness of our duties whilst contributing to their professional
development.
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We have been fostering improvement in the quality and
fairness in public administration by making pertinent and
feasible recommendations to tackle issues arising from
maladministration and monitoring their implementation, as well
as encouraging and motivating Government departments and
public organisations to proactively improve public administration
and complaint handling. In the last five years, we have made
a total of 907 recommendations. These recommendations
would entail introducing new regulatory measures, improving
existing regulatory and enforcement procedures and guidelines,
strengthening multi-departmental collaboration, and protecting
vulnerable groups. Our recommendations cover a wide range of
issues affecting people’s livelihood, such as 1823’s handling of
complaints and enquiries, rodent and mosquito prevention and
control, street obstruction, abandoned vehicles on government
land, street cleansing service, kaito ferry services, reporting of
suspected child abuse cases, boarding sections of schools for
children with intellectual disabilities, and community care vouchers
for the elderly. More than 90% of our recommendations have been
accepted. Itis encouraging that bureaux and departments have all
responded positively and proactively, often taking improvement
actions even before we complete our investigations.

We have been enhancing transparency, efficiency and quality
of our work by announcing and publishing more investigation
reports of complaint cases and seeking the views of the public
when carrying out direct investigation operations. In the last
five years, we have published a total of 122 full investigation
reports on our website. We have also added a search function
to further facilitate public access to relevant reports. For direct
investigation operations, in addition to publishing the full reports
upon completion, we declared all direct investigation operations to
the public at the early stage and invited comments from members
of the public. We have started live-streaming press conferences
to announce findings of our direct investigation operations such
that members of the public can watch them too. Internally, we
have been regularly reviewing and enhancing various operational
procedures to make sure that our practices are up-to-date.
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We have been building our professional capacity through enhancing
technological infrastructure, staff development and knowledge
management. We have been analysing the training needs of our
staff and devising staff development plans accordingly for capacity
building. The pandemic has speeded up our use of information
technology and enabled us to maintain our service to the public
even at the peak of the fifth wave. We are now working on further
digitalisation of operations and building a more sophisticated
knowledge base to meet future needs.

We have reinforced our international footprints by joining
international conferences and meetings of ombudsman institutes.
Staff members of the Office shared Hong Kong's experience in
international conferences held in Melbourne, Kazan and Yogyakarta
last year. Also, our Office was re-elected as Secretary of the Asian
Ombudsman Association at its last General Assembly. We will
no doubt continue to stay connected closely with international
partners and cherish every opportunity for fruitful exchange, to tell
good Hong Kong stories and promote the Special Administrative
Region.

A Word of Appreciation

The Office has remained steadfast as an independent, objective
and impartial organisation committed to ensuring that the Special
Administrative Region is served by a fair and efficient public
administration. | would like to thank my staff and my Advisers for
their tremendous support rendered in the past. On the doorstep
of the 35th anniversary, | will lead the Office to serve the public
with vigour and dedication. We shall set targets and strive for
results, and perform our gatekeeping role conscientiously for the
continuous betterment of the community.

Jack Chan

The Ombudsman
19 June 2024
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Who we are

Established under The Ombudsman Ordinance (“the
Ordinance”), Cap. 397 of the Laws of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, we serve as the community’s
independent watchdog of public administration. We:

AEBBITHURE WIREF
investigate complaints of maladministration®

PR ITEEE B EM TR 2R
identify administrative deficiencies

EEMARANEREE - BRTREOTW - WEQKITR
recommend remedial measures to redress grievances and
improve public administration

What we do

Investigate COMPLAINTS
from aggrieved persons about maladministration (including non-
compliance with the Code on Access to Information (“the Code”))

Carry out DIRECT INVESTIGATION OPERATIONS

where injustice may have been caused by maladministration

by Government departments and public organisations listed in
Part 1 and Part 2 of Schedule 1 to the Ordinance.

(See Appendix 1 for full list)

Note 1. Maladministration is defined in section 2 of the Ordinance. It
means inefficient, bad or improper administration including

unreasonable conduct; abuse of power or authority;
unreasonable, unjust, oppressive or improperly discriminatory
procedures and delay; discourtesy and lack of consideration for
a person.
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Functions and Powers

What we cannot investigate

complaints against organisations not listed in Schedule 1 to
the Ordinance

complaints against organisations listed in Part 2 of Schedule
1 to the Ordinance about matters unrelated to the Code

complaints relating to

security, defence or international relations
- actions by the Chief Executive personally

— exercise of power by the Chief Executive to pardon
criminals

— grant of honours, awards or privileges by Government
— legal proceedings or prosecution decisions

- contractual or other commercial transactions

- personnel matters

— imposition or variation of conditions of land grant

— actions in relation to the Hong Kong Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs

- Crime prevention and investigation actions by the Hong
Kong Auxiliary Police Force, the Hong Kong Police Force
or the Independent Commission Against Corruption

We shall not undertake or continue
an investigation into a complaint if

the complainant has had actual knowledge of the subject
of complaint for more than 24 months

the complaint is made anonymously

the complainant cannot be identified or traced

the complaint is not made by the person aggrieved or
suitable representative

subject of complaint and complainant have no connection
with Hong Kong

statutory right of appeal or remedy by way of legal
proceedings is available to the complainant

investigation of similar complaints before revealed no
maladministration

subject matter of the complaint is trivial
the complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is not made in
good faith

investigation is for any other reason unnecessary (such as
lack of prima facie evidence, the organisation involved is
already taking action, or the complainant is just expressing
opinions)

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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The powers we have

determine whether a complaint is duly made

conduct preliminary inquiries for the purposes of determining
whether to undertake an investigation

undertake or continue investigation notwithstanding
withdrawal of complaint if it is in the public interest to do so

dealing with complaints by mediation if the subject matter
involves no or minor maladministration, subject to mutual
agreement by the parties concerned

obtain information, document or things from such persons
and make such enquiries as the Ombudsman thinks fit

summon any person to obtain evidence related to
investigation, and may administer an oath for this purpose

enter and inspect any premises occupied, managed or
controlled by any organisation

decide on complaints and make recommendations

report the results of investigations to the head of organisation
concerned, or if appropriate to the Chief Executive

How we maintain secrecy

The Ombudsman and all his staff and advisers are bound
by the Ordinance to maintain secrecy for all matters of any
complaint and investigation

The Ombudsman may in the public interest publish a
report on any of his investigations without disclosing the
names of the persons involved

Offences

Any person who

without lawful excuse, obstructs, hinders or resists the
Ombudsman in the exercise of his powers under the
Ordinance;

without lawful excuse, fails to comply with any lawful
requirement of the Ombudsman under the Ordinance; or

makes a statement which he knows to be false or does
not believe to be true, or otherwise knowingly misleads
the Ombudsman in the exercise of his powers under the
Ordinance,

commits an offence and is liable to a fine and imprisonment
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The Ombudsman may, of his own volition, initiate direct
investigation ("DI") operations where injustice may have been
caused by maladministration. Our DI operations may be prompted
by topical issues of community concern or significant public
interest indicative of suspected systemic problems which need
to be rectified.

Launching Direct
Operations

Investigation

Before deciding whether or not to launch DI operations into an
issue, we usually conduct a preliminary inquiry. If the inquiry points
to the need for further study, we will commence DI operations.
Where the circumstances warrant, we may launch DI operations
without conducting a preliminary inquiry.

In general, we will publicly announce our commencement of DI
operations and invite members of the public to provide information
and views on the topics under investigation. Apart from seeking
information from the organisations concerned like we normally
do for complaint investigation, we may, depending on the nature
of the subject under study, invite views from relevant sectors
and experts.

We often seriously discuss our observations and views with senior
officers of the organisations under investigation, at the outset as
well as before conclusion. Such exchanges are useful in clarifying
points of doubt and furthering insight into the issues.

Publication of Reports

If the Ombudsman considers it to be in the public interest to
publish a DI report, he may announce the findings at media
conferences or through press releases, and upload the report
to our website.

Naturally, our DI operations may not all come to a conclusion that
there is serious maladministration on the part of the organisations
concerned, and some organisations may have taken remedial
or improvement measures in the course of our investigation.
Nevertheless, the public would still wish to know what we have
done and what we have found. Hence, all our DI reports are
published in one way or another.

During the year we completed ten DI operations, with eight reports
publicly announced at press conferences and the rest through
press releases. The reports of all DI operations were uploaded to
our website. A full list of DI operations completed during the year
is in the table below, and the case synopses are in Appendix 4.
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In 2023/24,

NETKT

We completed

BEIFRETH
DIRECT INVESTIGATION OPERATIONS

% —%F Chapter 2

FHRAETH
Direct Investigation Operations

NERET
We made

TR
RECOMMENDATIONS

DI/456  HEAKZEEATERABEMNIEE Measures and Usage of On-street Parking Spaces Designated
FERER for People with Disabilities
DI/457  REMEBRERE S ARG S Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher for the Elderly
DI/458 HERYEREZEEREEIMMES Education Bureau’s Monitoring of Boarding Sections of Schools
for Children with Intellectual Disabilities
DI/459 BUSHHARBREHEFRZHSE  Government's Enforcement against Defective Sewage Works of
i Ez Ay New Territories Exempted Houses
DI/461 18231 RE MK Effectiveness of 1823 in Handling Complaints and Enquiries
DI/A62 HBHHRREEZE [REEXE] k [HE— Housing Department’s Arrangements for Housing for Senior
ANEAL] ;M8 Citizens and Converted One-person Units
DI/463  ARBEBE it FEARKFEEE Handling of Complaints Involving Trees on Government Land
DI/465  RERLEEBE TR INELEFRE Repairs and Maintenance of Outdoor Recreational and Sports
BERPEA R B AR (S Facilities under Leisure and Cultural Services Department
DI/466  RYNIRBEEBHIFEIONEE Regulation of Licensed Swimming Pools by Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
DI/467 BRYMNREFEBSLHUEER T EHT Food and Environmental Hygiene Department’s Regulation

SRERMEFFAEBERRORE

over Sale of Food in Hot/Cold Holding and Non-prepackaged
Beverages by Means of Vending Machine

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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Overall Complaints and Enquiries

2023/24F E R B2019BMmTREBEE - DR The year 2023/24 signified the first full year where public services

BMELENERTZRFE - AFE

> 2k Stel returned to normalcy since the COVID-19 pandemic. This year,

4351 RIEF - BREBIEAIKTE - ELEIEH AR we received 4,351 cases of complaints, which is relatively low.

RFRT66REIMEIZR °

BRIH L FEE A28 RILHFES -

Pandemic-related complaints plummeted from 766 to 33 year

on year.
EIWR R
Total Complaints Received 4,351
o —RIRHF . 4,205
Normal Complaints
o [RMEFERS
A _IL& i - 146
Topical Complaints
2 %R R
Total Complaints Completed 4,397
o —MRIRER . 4,246
Normal Complaints
o REFERS
il -EEL%X i ‘ 151
Topical Complaints
EINESR
" 8,599

Total Enquiries Received

N EiNCS Together with 628 cases brought forward from last year, we had

[EERRIEHA,979RIEH - WK T &+ 14,397 a total of 4,979 complaint cases for processing this year and we

R SR2FBEE TFETK °

REFEE 2023/24 £

completed 4,397 of them; 582 cases were carried forward for
completion next year.
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BPEARFE T ERIEL V7T RITHFEZE - HBF
12 BIEN88.3% ©

EETEREENRFES - 52,053R 2D REL
MR R MR ARKEHERER -

BRETERNERMNEE M
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Complaints Completed

We completed processing 4,397 cases, i.e., 88.3% of all for
processing this year.

Among the complaints processed, 2,053 were pursued and
concluded and 2,344 were closed after assessment.

The distribution of cases pursued and concluded by mode of
handling was as follows:

O Bil 1,771
NY By Inquiry (86%)
FHFAS 95

By Full Investigation (4.6%)

oo YEG 187
BEDY By Mediation (9.1%)
::/ B IR A R IR R B R AT 2,053
Complaints Pursued and Concluded in Total (100%)

Hepm @R (2,344%R) KHIEBER  EF8IE
RS ROTEIE (1,470F » 362.7%) @ SiEBE
NEBEESEED (KB (8745F + 37.1%) -

HMEREB T EL2HMEES -

EHBYIINRFERET - SNHERS -

The rest of complaints handled (2,344) were closed after
assessment due to insufficient grounds to pursue the complaint
(1,470 or 62.7%) or outside our statutory purview (874 or 37.1%).

Detailed caseload statistics are given in Appendix 3.

A detailed breakdown of cases by organisations is in Appendix 5.
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RFF N
BT AR R B
Through Electronic By Post
Means
77.2% 10.6%

FR - 3BO%RNRFRLHABFUEL - BLFE
BIEWUER M LRFRSE - BRRBREBORF
FELT -

RIFNEERE

RIBIER AR L AV EEREG A - T RIFL IR
MAKREMT :

Mode of Lodging Complaints

N [ 9
2 =
B A z: mH
In Person By Phone By Fax
9.1% 1.9% 1.1%

This year, 38.0% of complaints were lodged through our website.
With the enhancements to the online complaint form on our
website, more complaints had been lodged through this channel.

Major Causes of Complaints

Based on the allegations made by complainants, the top five
causes of complaints were:

® fam =
=) & &
L BRIORTE BEETN JERRSOR BERIATE V28 Bl R BERRE
6 7R Ineffective control Delay or inaction Lack of response Staff attitude
Error, wrong advice
or decision
43.0% 14.7% 12.7% 10.3% 4.7%

_ﬁy\*y\nﬁ&lj*af EI:XDFF

NEEZIAIIRRFZF

EHEFEBEAMFREANR DN —RIFER
o RPITERBRIEH) —RRIEZE H4, 2467 - Hep
B2,045R (1548.2%) BIRENAR - HERr2,201
= (1551.8%) RIHMNERFRZEDERE - I8
HAERRBEL (KA - KFFROHER -

— R R (E R
Normal complaints

4,205

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R

Normal Complaints and Topical
Complaints

Among the 4,351 complaints we received:

FRER B EZ
C. Secondary cases of topical

nature

146

Among the normal complaints received and with complaints
carried over from last year, we had completed 4,246 normal
cases. Of them, 2,045 (48.2%) were pursued and concluded and
2,201 (51.8%) were assessed and closed by reason of insufficient
grounds, or outside our statutory purview.
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s BRAEREERZVFARETA (88FR)

. UEEEETEBANRYEL (285)
ERAREEAE
B

CIEBIY 5T88 - REFEE MR ABEE - 7] LET
[VIXE] @ WACESHRFRAZERASE -
ZRINEF AN ZE - BPIAEERREN S
BAAAEE-REENRFEZR M T—Ei#
TEERRERNEZEAS - RMCEEERFAE
Whe [&/m] -

E17MRZUBA A ERZNEZRS - HIEI335
R (1518.9%) REBESHBETRZE ° 8

FANERT AERNRFERNFADGET
OB ER6 o
E2HAE
RR ARG P RRAINERRE - BETR

KE - BIRFERBR - 1TEEES| LA RS2 F
EHERRE - IRBRABLEHEREERANSE
HNAES ZAMEEME2EASE -
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Key groups of topical complaints received by the Office this year
include:

e Unfair treatment to a virtual asset trading platform (88 cases)

e Lackof reply to objection to a development project (28 cases)
Inquiry and Full Investigation
Inquiry

The Ordinance provides that for the purposes of determining
whether to undertake a full investigation, the Ombudsman may
conduct such “preliminary inquiries” as he considers appropriate.
In the interest of complainants, we often use this procedure to
resolve complaint cases of a general nature more quickly, without
unnecessarily resorting to the more time-consuming action of full
investigation. For simplicity, we call this “inquiry”.

Among the 1,771 inquiry cases concluded, inadequacies were
found in 335 (18.9%). Detailed statistics of complaints concluded
by inquiry are given in Appendix 6.

Full Investigation
For complex cases which appear to involve issues of principle,
serious maladministration, gross injustice, systemic flaws or

procedural deficiencies, or simply require deeper and fuller
probing, we will conduct full investigation.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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EAREFE - FFEENEAFAETFALERNE In the year, we conducted 95 full investigations. Results are as
FEZRLESRE  £RWT - follows:

B2HEAEERNRFERES
Results of Complaints Concluded by Full Investigation

u 43.2% B Az
Unsubstantiated
27.4% i Ava

Partially substantiated
147% [l BFFRL - BB ERE
Unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found
126% || &L
Substantiated
21% [ EFERELF LAE
Withdrawn or discontinued

FEBRT LrERATERNERFERES 1§ As shown above, 54.7% of the complaints concluded by full
54 7% & T[] ~ [T#BH K] 3k 3% investigation were substantiated, partially substantiated or
SRR - BESBRRK] o unsubstantiated but with other inadequacies found.

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R
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RErEAERBENTHRREER
Forms of Maladministration Substantiated by Full Investigation

Y
'l

NREETHREEAER @ 2T HEER - 8=
2024F3A31H - A67EEH D EAMS EP R
EMTRABEE  ESRI3ERBMEZ BT -

REEATRERNERRZESHNHES -

EMEERKRERER

EFEER > REBEHNNIET257REZR - B&5
EPI0RERENRAE  tesh - HAERT
102R A% - LER 10T RERER RIRARE -

292% [ HiE - ERSCRTEHER

Error, wrong advice or decision
14.6% FERSE B EHRERITH

Delay or inaction

14.6% EERN
Ineffective control

10.4% W TERFHE
Failure to follow procedures
8.3% [ 25mEERS
Lack of response
6.2% [ HEHRZ BRKERNIBER
Negligence, omissions
6.2% | EUER - BETR
Disparity in treatment & unfairness
4.2% Efth
[ Others
42% W BEFTZ
Faulty procedures
21% W BBEERXRE
Poor staff attitude

We made 80 recommendations upon completing the full
investigations with 67 accepted by the concerned departments
or organisations for implementation and 13 under consideration

as at 31 March 2024.

An index of cases concluded by full investigation is in Appendix 7.

Summaries of selected cases concluded by full investigation is

in Appendix 8.

Re-assessment and Review of Cases

During the year we re-assessed 257 cases, with 150 cases
subsequently re-opened. Moreover, we reviewed 102 cases.
Conclusions were upheld for all these cases except one.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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202324 EE1TIREEZNRTEF

EAFE  BfEREESH - &5 - BENTENE
WO ENMBRGEFHE T2ES -

Achievement of Performance Pledges 2023/24

All targets of our service standards in handling enquiries,
complaints, re-assessment and review of complaints were fully

W\ 22

\

e

Complaints

met.

AEIEE
Target

PRAEIZZE
Service Standard

Achievement

RUREF AR S5ETERA 99% 100% (BIZ)
Acknowledge receipt of a complaint Within 5 working days (exceed target)
HHABBMESGE - LY PTERERNES 1018 Z{EXRA 90% 99.7% (FB1E)
(HES Within 10 working days (exceed target)
Close a complaint case which is outside our — 15fBIZ{EXA 99% 100% (EB1Z)
statutory purview after initial assessment Within 15 working days (exceed target)
TERIR AR A 2R 3EAR 80% 86.5% (HBIZ)
Cconclude a complaint case Within 3 months (exceed target)
6B A A 99% 99.1% (EF)
Within 6 months (meet target)

&=H# BRI 1R % AHER EE=X
Enquiries Service Standard Target Achievement
REEEEH SETERA 95% 100% (FB1Z)
Reply to a written enquiry Within 5 working days (exceed target)
10 TVERA 99% 100% (BIZ)

EXMFENERERSF

Re-assessment and review of complaints

Within 10 working days

AIEE
Target

i8R
Service Standard

(exceed target)

EEE
Achievement

TR EMTERER 1MEAR A 95% 100% (EBIZ)
Complete re-assessment of a complaint case  Within 1 month (exceed target)
2@ AR 99% 100% (iEB1%)
Within 2 months (exceed target)
TER B RIR AR EZR 3fEA A 70% 78.8% (HB1F)
Complete review of a complaint case Within 3 months (exceed target)
6@ AR 90% 97.1% (#BIZ)

HIFEE 2023/24 FR

Within 6 months

(exceed target)



5% =% Chapter 3

gy
Complaints

A EB KRR Judicial Review and Litigation

BHRAMTRERBNAE - BRTAERREE A complainant not satisfied with this Office’s conclusion may,
R E BRI MAIARERRBHEVEEZ - £F apart from requesting a review by this Office, seek a judicial review
ER - ERERABHR=ZRIRAFHEENFNA by the court. During the year, three litigation cases against The
BRHRE - B EBREHIFRDBEF Ombudsman were heard by the court with judgments handed

down. All judicial review cases have been ruled in this Office’s

favour.
B e FIR
Brief description of the litigation case Judgement by the court
AR ATMEBFEE A (RO FE8fkkiiz2 o RINEREMR2022F 11 AEBLE RS -
REBETNREBERFIRE - BBEAVEABKR o HBABZRBRERFBLFTY - LFFEENR2023F11H
A e HEIERGE  WHSRFEEESGEAE -
A complainant applied for leave to apply for o HEARLEFEEAAERBLFTY @ REDEET
judicial review against The Ombudsman’s B oo
decision on not taking up his complaint on e The application was refused by the Court of First
the basis of section 8 and Schedule 2 of the Instance in November 2022.
Ordinance. e In November 2023, the Court of Appeal dismissed the

Applicant’s application for leave to appeal against the
Court's decision with costs awarded to The Ombudsman.

e Applicant’s application for leave to appeal against the
decision of the Court of Appeal is in progress.

AR ABLER AR B R IR H A% I F (M) JE IR AR o RINEEMR2022F 12 AELE RS -

REOMIEBEHR - BB RDEABIZAETA o o HFAMKIBARERF LFETA o EaFEENR20234F8A
A complainant applied for leave to apply for BEEESIFMBENRE  WHESHFEEESRE -
judicial review against The Ombudsman’s o HNFEEEMBBAREEZEFNESR  WK20245F2
handling of his complaint by making an REEERE ©

enquiry with an entity which was not subject e The application was refused by the Court of First

to his complaint. Instance in December 2022.

e Applicant applied for leave to appeal against the Court’s
decision. His application to adduce new evidence was
dismissed by the Court of Appeal in August 2023 with
costs awarded to The Ombudsman.

e The Ombudsman accepted the Applicant’s request to
dismiss the proceedings and approval from the Court
was obtained in February 2024.

WFARBRFEENZIEERFIRERSEHA o  MR2023FNMA - RINVZEERZBERREHBED &2
o BEMEREERETAS  JIKEAR  WESHFES
A complainant made a civil claim against The BENE o

Ombudsman for not taking up his complaint. e RAAMZIBATERFLFTA - REDIAETH o

e The claim was struck out by the Court of First Instance
in November 2023 on the grounds of being frivolous,
vexatious and abuse of process with costs awarded to
The Ombudsman.

e  Plaintiff's application for leave to appeal against the
Court’s decision is in progress.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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BEEEG):S

R M F AL T - A DAREE K S A
BRI RS R ITHRE IR AR -

What is Mediation?

Mediation is an efficient and amiable means of dispute
resolution which can resolve complaints involving minor or no
maladministration.

EE): ) o
Advantages of Mediation

IEH L
Non-adversarial

REE
Efficient

A A
fRRFZ AR
Solution-focused

LS

EYER
Win-win

ARES

Procedures of Mediation

&
\ ="
Y EEE TR R
B ER
Identify suitable cases
for mediation

FERCRIR AR A TR
KEER2ENEE

> Seek prior consent from

both the complainant
and the organisation

Tl o

AE# - ERERE LF S Em R RN F KA 1T /Y
AT S

> Conduct mediation > Discuss problems

in person, through and explore possible

telephone or online options for resolution

under complaint for
voluntary participation

ERE BRI OB IBE
Reach a mutually acceptable
settlement agreement

*g 24 ) ERERES 2023/24 3
\

CUNU
@l
OR HEFETKY - ZRKEREESNERRFAR

Assign another case officer to take over the
complaint and examine it afresh in case of
unsuccessful mediation
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NEWI/ERE our Performance

EARFE  REORARLERIINGS ABENK This year marked another fruitful chapter in our mediation
& BRINFARR T 187 IR © endeavours, in which we resolved 187 complaints by mediation.

BZRNARERNWEREEE (2023/24FE)
Top Five Organisations with Complaints Resolved by Mediation (2023/24)

37 (19.8%)
0 (16.0%)
20 (10.7%)
17 (9.1%
I 13 (7 0%)
RYIRIR EEE BRE Eﬁ(ﬂ‘%j Ak EPPY RARIE S 2 T KT 8 o
BEE HD BD D b N Full names of departments and
FEHD CSO organisations are in Appendix 1.

R A Bh il 2R 30 Bl HE AR RIS EF o £2023/244F By conducting mediation, complaints could be resolved amicably
B RS ERNRFERTFIIETRE135 within a short period of time. In 2023724, the average time taken
X e to resolve a complaint by way of mediation was 13.5 days.

BINFABERNMEE (2023/24FEF)
Nature of Complaints Resolved by Mediation (2023/24)

‘|\|I 33.9% W ERILERBITE
Delay or inaction

29.4% e - BRBORTERR
Error, wrong advice or decision

15.8% V278 Bl eI R
Lack of response to complaint

127% B E=EFH
Ineffective control
23% W B2FTZ
Faulty procedures
1.8% [ HERZ - BREEROER
Negligence, omissions
1.4% BEREERE
Poor staff attitude
0.9% [ BELEE - BETA
Disparity in treatment, unfairness
0.9% [l TEREFHE
Failure to follow procedures
0.9% [l Hft
Others

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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A&/ IEE D8

AR - AEGUARSRAE T ABHERFAR
EBBNZHRBRABRRBNER - EAFE -
B2% X EIMEMIRF AR SEBBERTNEAE
HY S R AR S E194% RN M B A B B RRR
B RFRERERIAT

Positive Feedback from Users

Upon successful conclusion of mediation, we invited the
complainants and participating organisations to share their
feedback with us through our questionnaire survey. Over 92% of
the respondent complainants and participating organisations were
satisfied with our mediation service and over 94% were satisfied
with the performance of our mediators. Some of the comments

we received are as follows:

@@ [HREHSRBEAAS BNEH SRR  BHBN | LU RBREERA NS
B snmepapessT

@ “Your services will definitely alleviate grievances of complainants created by
& red tape and rigid routine deficiencies.”

@@ [TORHEZHEARBAYERMASRNAELGR - STRFNSENLEEF -

@ “"Extremely helpful & polite, and most of all professional, save a lot of efforts
@‘ for us.”

@@ [BEORARESARER  RATABOE SR EEU BRI NEN TS AR THAE
B = U eREa R R AT RS - |

@@ “It is my great pleasure to appreciate your staff's invaluable service. Her
efficient service in handling my case has made a successful settlement.”

[ CERFBIETNEXRMAMNE ZLR - A0 ML EREUR FIE 77 RER &
@_,@ ERMEZRRBLZD  RTHRE-FTHER  ARETAENBASTR  GHEHR
IR PR A AR o

& "We deeply appreciate the open lines of communication and regular updates
@Q provided by your office. We are truly grateful for the effort taken by your team
to help us resolve the complaint.”

[AFBET X RER BT - RRERERHTABRERILFK - TO B RAAES

RBRBFATHENEE - EREFIRENFTRAMBANEEE PUMMAILEN - B8

@@ MAAKTT ~ FRERNENARFFERENEEHA ERARNERELEZRILEN

& RHEERENERHE  KRERENBENFERTR - KERFZBHABEK £
ERGAREFR - & T ERRAAENERYR

@@3 [EERAANCETERBSTOBRITRE  ZE2EBEANSE  F55
TR S A EE TN AT RIBSHKE  BHRORAB I HKET - |

(@S RRET —BRE  KAMGEFEZFRONDR « +7 FRAABE T ARREK
@@ FANEE - AREEFRBIETEERNRE  BHATRABENEX ML) - BRI (E
ZA]JER R © ]

FIREE 2023/24 3



S IE Chapter 4

)i
Mediation

ny

3 iR 48 Award on Mediation

NEB2018F I HFEE BT EI TR To acknowledge the participating organisations’ commitment to
fREE - URBE N2 WA KRR EMAERE o and excellence in mediation, we have introduced an Award on
Mediation in The Ombudsman’s Award since 2018.

2018 - FE/Z2& Housing Department
@ TR O E A B TR R ERMNER

For proactive attitude towards our invitation to mediation.

KRB ERE - BN F AR BARENER R
For adopting a pragmatic approach in exploring win-win solutions by jointly resolving problems with the
complainants.

‘ 2019 - BYIREEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

BE)

MR ERFABTINEE - TMREBE R EEREN T RABRIRIE o
For swiftly responding to the complainants’ concerns and providing pragmatic and constructive suggestions
for complaint resolution.

‘ 2020 - TR RER 24 EBS#5E Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency

D)

LUBM R RARERIEFABEEIEBER - 2 LETHERIMOMEE  mEkRRekFRE il
FERTTVE ©

For explaining to complainants in clear and plain terms its enforcement policies, procedures and even
technicalities in respect of in-situ inspection techniques to eliminate misunderstandings and hence shift
from disputes to solutions.

‘ 2021 - EF 2 Buildings Department

D)

D)

REEREG  AREERFALGIGEENRBSHREBNER  WELESRIRFAZZHAR
For promptly and proactively responding to the complainants’ enquiries and queries relating to frontline
operations and services and for willingness to explore suggestions raised by the complainants.

‘ 2022 - B4 L= E Leisure and Cultural Services Department

DG

2023 - BRI B R FAE Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office
RO ERFATEEREARRBSHERFEDGEINEEEN  WIREEFEER S EMMER T RENS
P e

For swiftly informing the complainants of the progress of their applications for Government subsidies provided
during the pandemic and providing a dedicated hotline for checking the progress of the case at
any time.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 27/
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Access to Information

RENBEERMER (RRER T
( T <sFRD ] ) HERERRMARAZ -

DNHREANBS

(R RBFHRAO—ETEIES - RERER
YRS BB PN 2 & RS R 18 R S R R B Sk R 4R
EREMNER - BRIEE (TR HIIREREEE
eI o

HRAFEERIREHR

B SRETBFRR » RIENRMER B MR
EEREKF - EELE - BRFEMARIBRF
MERREDH - ERFE - RBRIF AR
BEHHNBRFERRBTIIR - EERERENT2R Y
MAAEHONERT  RFHREFRIAF23R
(32%) BTRZEE °

One of our functions is to investigate complaints on non-
compliance with the Code on Access to Information (“the Code”).

Transparent Government

The Code is a set of administrative guidelines adopted by the
Government. Government departments and public bodies to which
the Code applies are required to provide information they hold
routinely or on request, unless there are specific reasons under
the Code to withhold it.

complaints on Access to Information

Government statistics show that refused information requests
have been staying at relatively low levels. In fact, only a small
portion of refused requests have ended up as complaints to our
Office. During the year, we received only 79 complaints about
cases related to access to information ("ATI"). Among the 72
ATI complaints concluded, inadequacies were found in only 23
cases (32%).

BERAFHIRAFERNIRFEHAE
Number of ATI Complaints in the Past Five Years

0 (PRI BB
Organisations covered
by the Code

B (SRR SREEE AN
HIHEE
Organisations not covered

108

by the Code 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

@ HEREE 2023/24 FH
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Access to Information

BRAMERNIEHR (2023F4818E2024F3 831 A BREMNG T &IE)
ATI Complaints (Statistics between 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024)

(=FAI) RENHAE (=FAI) REEE M HAE
Organisations covered by Organisations not covered

the Code by the Code

EEIRER

: ) 64 15
Complaints received
ERERNER 46 ¢
Complaints concluded*
* BERLFEEANER * Including those carried forward from last year

TRABERNKRFHIEANTEZEEHE
Number of Inadequacies Found in ATI Complaints

8(28.6%) [l BAEEEOESMALEOE
Failure to meet target response time or no response

8 (28.6%) BB RMFE2ER IR EIE M5 AHIERIEH R

' 42 = H A8
e E"|' Failure to provide Part 2 reason for refusal or lack of
Total elaboration on reason cited for refusal
4(14.3%) RAEBAIZF AN EBRIIFEE
Failure to inform complainant of channels for internal

review or complaint

2(7.0%) [T ¥ (FR) wExRERER
Wrong interpretation of provision of the Code

RALIEMES| A 28R IEBIE /i
Inappropriate Part 2 reason cited for refusal

1(3.6%) . EIBE BT AR
Unreasonable refusal

4(14.3%) a%rs

1(3.6%)

T T RERFARAESREBTNEZRE ° Note: A complaint case may involve more than one inadequacy.

BRAFENNERFAEREESEAUIRABNE The reports of selected ATI cases are available on our website.
BIE o
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Improving Public Administration

REBFEB MR T EOFEL L I ERFOREA
EIERRRABRMA MR R ERBITHRREM
SIEMTMMERE - AREERFAFHAKTT
B e

RERHNEZFETIEN BUTER

(1) BIEEBHIES - EEFEE S BMERER
SXENES BEFI R0t 38 B B Bk

S

(3) HMEREMREHAIINFEE

(4) HMERFPIREHER

(5) Ineg#RE REH & EIE

(6) FINE)EMWMAIEMERRKE

(7) ATRIEHFEERMESHNER

(8) hns& B T3

9) Efth
BRERAZNEZREERREBREAHITER -
NEETHASHME KBS FIEED
BEABRASNERMERER -

SERSHFIREEHRRIRE - UE
RRABENEBNEELE HERZEWMEER
ke BERMFPREBNEZERZS - FREEA
R CEG)  MITBRREER®ME W &
BMARBERENTER TR FEHHELE - A
RAITBREERXZ—MH#EE  LEHE @A
FTBRREEENERKANA @ HREOIARR
RIEGEE -

@ HEREE 2023/24 £
N/
-

Through impartial investigations, we aim to find out what have
triggered complaints, redress grievances and address issues
arising from maladministration on the part of Government
departments or public organisations and bring about better public
administrative practices.

Our recommendations are mainly categorised as follows:
(1) guidelines for clarity, consistency or efficiency in operation

incentives to foster inter-departmental co-ordination and
arrangements for enhancement

~
)

(3) measures for better public enquiry or complaint handling
(4) measures for better client services

(5) measures for more effective regulation or control

(6) clearer and more reasonable rules and charges

(7) clearer and more timely information to the public

(8) enhanced training for staff

(9) Others

To ensure practicability and effectiveness of our recommendations
in bringing about better public administration, we often discuss
our observations and views with senior officers of the departments
or organisations concerned in the course of investigation.

We will monitor the progress of implementation of our
recommendations by requesting periodical updates from
the departments or organisations concerned until our
recommendations are fully implemented. Where a department
or an organisation fails to take forward a recommendation,
the Ombudsman may submit a report to the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region pursuant to the
Ordinance. In addition, if the Ombudsman deems that a serious
irregularity or injustice has taken place, he may make a further
report to the Chief Executive. Within one month or such longer
period as the Chief Executive may determine, a copy of the report
has to be laid before the Legislative Council.
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NEEFENE TRNAERIEENEZNER The figures of our concluded investigations and recommendations

wmr made for this financial year are set out below:
ZEPOEZ TEE N 2
Under consideration Not accepted
RENERAST
Total number of
recommendations
made
90.9%
EERNTEENESR
Accepted for implementation
TR THEAERE TR T W EEFETE -
Full investigations concluded: 9 5 Direct investigation operations concluded: 1 O

RHMERZ RHEMERZ
Recommendations made: 80 Recommendations made: 1 06

—MALAE - REBREWNEERZEFTSEFTSH As always, most of our recommendations were accepted. A

BEWM - \BORBREREENSIEZERAAS small percentage of them were not accepted or implemented

FIk & RATBE I B A AR R 7L - T8 H because the departments or organisations concerned might

EITSIBEFMNTE - B ELEBEBEIE & have subsequently come up with other alternatives or our

T BERMABERMNIERE ° recommended measures were no longer needed as the action
having caused a complaint would not be repeated due to, for
instance, cease of their relevant work.

EXFE EEAENSEZNEZENEHR Major examples of the improvement measures implemented in
Bt 8% 9 o this financial year are listed in Appendix 9.
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Spreading Our Message

EAFEE  REERETEEERE  BRU [&
ARERR] RTENEBEEY  WEREH
S EESMREZRMOENBE - BRER
MELEFERERFLE  MRTELFEHREN
Rtk - ENEREE  BRAFREERBIRET
ERSZNHANE  FAREEUR EFTRER

ﬁﬁ?leL*ﬂ%gﬁﬁﬁE °

BERNBBRRNE QR

BARRTHAFEETERELMOFERL
W AMRTRIPAESTHINER - HATE
WERALABATHFHETY  UBFL2RERE
8.

This year, we rolled out an array of promotional activities,
including a publicity campaign under the theme of “"Hong
Kong Needs a Clear Mirror”. Our contacts with stakeholders,
through meetings, visits, talks, etc., turned more active. We
staged a youth advertising contest for the first time to deepen
youngsters’ knowledge of our work. On the global level,
international ombudsman institutions resumed face-to-face
meetings and conferences while keeping the on-line format to
facilitate exchange of ideas and experience sharing.

Media Events and Press Releases

We organised four press conferences and issued two press
releases to announce the results of ten direct investigation
operations. We also declared the launch of five direct
investigation operations to invite public views on the topics
involved.

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R
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BEAENEN
Spreading Our Message

New Publicity Campaign

A new publicity campaign with the theme of “Hong Kong Needs
a Clear Mirror” was launched in October 2023, with outdoor
advertisings and social media initiatives. Throughout the years,
our Office has been acting like a clear mirror when handling
public complaints: we examine complaint cases in an impartial
manner, reveal the facts as they are, make objective and
unbiased comments, and then put forward recommendations
for improvement. The ultimate goal is to lift the standard of
public administration.

By AT £B 5

INDEPENDENT osgcTE -

e

SENALEETH R
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B THERFESERDIRAS

BABN AL EEASTELBNTE  FEIURBE
E AR X CRRELRDF

Engagement with Local Working
Partners and Public Education

We are committed to reaching out to all sectors of the
community to nurture a positive complaint culture and share
our experience.

A
B

RTEEAT AP R B R T1I3RZRE -
RNEOESMIAE - WD FHRMAEIBRFD

2

Sharing Sessions

We delivered 13 experience-sharing sessions to different
government departments and public organisations to
promulgate our mission and scope of work and share our
experience in complaint handling.

W\ 34 SRE S 2023/24 £
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School Talks

%+ E Chapter 7

1§L/A\%Eﬁ En'l'
Spreadlng Our I\/Iessage

We wish to nurture among the youngsters a positive culture on
expressing opinions and an understanding of the importance of
good public administration. To enhance their understanding of
our Office, we organised altogether 16 school talks attracting
2,500 students to attend.

BOFELE

REEAFEFNFERTRS (¥ 8] —K
BBEGEE] NEERILE HEFIFR
HARKTHMERMN - HIAIKEIK B 26MBREB
#E30017 2B

Youth Contest

A Youth Contest named “YOUTH CREATE e A better Hong Kong"
calling for advertising initiatives was launched in the fourth
quarter to educate the younger generation on the importance
of good public administration in civic society. Over 300 entries
from 26 schools were received.
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BERBMNFTARREXRERRE

B iE

20243 - AEEHE RENN A HEBEEE
ERFIRENZFAZHTHEEER LAY
BIRITEVEIS »

Leadership Forum of the Professional
Development Programme for Newly-appointed
Principals by the Education Bureau

At a leadership forum organised by the Education Bureau
in March 2024, we shared views on the essentials of
administrative management and qualities of leaders with over
90 newly appointed principals.

AREE R EFE B ST R BB N 2023114

FEAZNBEIRAREHRE - 5IMmEREREARP
RBUEERREMEREERD - ISR AREA
=RIERFEEFE o ptoh - 62BN A BRIRER -
KHMAERBTREASHRE

, wme
REFEE 2023/24 £

The Ombudsman’s Awards

The Presentation Ceremony of The Ombudsman’s Awards this
year was held on 15 November 2023.

This year's Grand Award went to the Immigration Department,
whereas the Efficiency Office and the Hospital Authority were
the runners-up. The Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office
received the Award on Mediation. In addition, 62 public officers
were given the individual awards to recognise their exemplary
performance in public service.

M seswapiwisce T8
AT —#HIEHE -
For the full list of awardees,
please scan the following QR
code.
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B G M K PR b M AE RO B B2 Overseas and Mainland Liaison
HPEANMAH A S M EERE - BERBES We maintain close ties with our counterparts on the Mainland
B8 o and worldwide.

2023F9A1MH » REABHBEEMNEBFEER On 11 September 2023, our delegation attended the Board
gRRENTERMER LBITHNEHESS SR of Directors’ meeting of the Asian Ombudsman Association
FEEERE AEBEEEATMNRFEERE ("AOA") and its General Assembly in Kazan, Tatarstan, Russia.
WER- Our Office was re-elected as the Secretary of AOA.

HZMLATHEHERRFEEHBRAFEENFEF We participated in the 35th Members’ Meeting and a

@ MA2023F10A318 X111 A 1B ER B ALERITH conference held by the Australasian Pacific Ombudsman Region

FIBEEETHMATE - of the International Ombudsman Institute in Melbourne on 31
October and 1 November 2023.

NEEZLFEN2023411 A8sAEEE B 81T Our Office was invited to attend the 2" South East Asia
ME_ERMERFEEREESE =2 LTIE Ombudsman Forum Plus Meeting held in Yogyakarta, Indonesia
KB o on 8 November 2023 for experience-sharing.

2023F 1M H29R - AEEFHEERSIERRRE We received the delegation from the National Supervisory
BREEMEENERERZEGHERRE - & Commission led by Mr Cai Wei, Director General, Department of
ﬁHﬂF‘ﬁ ANEERKREIROFENIERNR @ & International Cooperation, on 29 November 2023, during their
S B & MBS B ASER o visit to Hong Kong. We exchanged updates on our achievements
of work in recent years and experiences of participating in

activities at regional and international levels.

aain &
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Staff complement

123

AR R

BB B RS R b0 RIS E UL - L
RIS TR BRI S

. HIRBEBABABRE

o  ABIEZHE  BBAABNAEETARR
EREMBATIE

o WMAMEFEEIEDS ARCRSZE
PARR AT KRR 55

s MWEMEBLASLEZMNIIEY

BEAN B LB E 2 HAREEIE RB IR
MWL ERRIE - DA MR TIERRGEE -

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R

Embracing a Better Future

Our operation returned to normalcy this year after the challenge
of the COVID-19 pandemic over the previous few years.

We continued to nurture and develop a healthy contingent of
investigation officers and supporting staff. As at 31 March 2024,
we have a staff complement of 123.

33% [l BEEMAE

Directorate

FHEAE
Investigation

528% |

43.9% TBRETEAE

Administrative & Support

Training and Development

We are committed to building our professional capacity and
fostering a learning culture by offering diversified learning and
training opportunities:

induction training for new investigators

e atutoring scheme for junior investigators to facilitate their
settlement in the job

e respective workshops on mediation and complaint handling,
an experience sharing session on mediation cases, and in-
depth and professional training in mediation

e a workshop on cyber security awareness against phishing
emails and messages

We also arranged staff to attend online or classroom management
and vocational training offered by other organisations to enhance
their work knowledge and job skills.
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We invited the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data to conduct a workshop for our staff on the protection of
personal privacy in our work context.

We arranged our staff to join a “National Studies Course” at Peking
University for deepening their understanding of national policies
and development. Another group of our staff attended a “National
Education Programme” in Shenzhen. Our staff members attended
related seminars organised by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region from time to time. In-house briefings
were also held to deepen staff's understanding of the importance
of and responsibility for safeguarding national security.

To keep staff abreast of the best practices and latest trends in
complaint handling in different jurisdictions, we ran workshops on
the “Ombudsman Self-Assessment Tool”. In addition, we sent staff
to attend online or physical conferences organised by overseas
ombudsman institutions to broaden their horizons.

Employee Wellness

We care for the wellbeing of our staff and have implemented
an Employee Wellness Programme, which offered coaching
and counselling to our staff to help them achieve personal
and professional effectiveness. We organised staff wellness
workshops, aiming to empower them with positive energy for
positive living.

Feedback on Our Service

Members of the public not satisfied with our services should
write to our dedicated Chief Manager, who will oversee the
Administration and Development Division's independent inquiry
into such complaints. Complaints regarding our investigation
findings and conclusions will be taken up by the relevant
Investigation Divisions under our existing mechanism for review
of cases.
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(AR BIRA) MRATIHE— 5
List of Scheduled Organisations

F1EB 1 RPI (5B397F) KMi&R1FE 18T ELPT BHESC BB
Part 1: Government Departments Listed in Part 1 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397 in alphabetical order
BB Y Government Department &% Abbreviation

BEBAERE Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department ~ AFCD

AERERERETNAAREREEE Al registries and administrative offices of courts and  JA
BB RITHI S tribunals for which the Judiciary Administrator has
responsibility
SRR Architectural Services Department ArchSD
Bt E Audit Commission Aud
BEaan (BFTEErT) Auxiliary Medical Service (Government department) ~ AMS
EFE Buildings Department BD
BT &R 5T B Census and Statistics Department C&SD
REBZ2REE (BATFEBPT) Civil Aid Service (Government department) CAS
EmEE Civil Aviation Department CAD
TARIEBHRREE Civil Engineering and Development Department CEDD
NajEfE Companies Registry CR
BHE Correctional Services Department CcsD
EBEHE Customs and Excise Department C&ED
BEE Department of Health DH
I A] Department of Justice Do)
RiEE Drainage Services Department DSD
WETIRE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department EMSD
RIBRES Environmental Protection Department EPD
N1 Fire Services Department FSD
RYNIRBEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department FEHD
THRRENAELHKE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office CEO
TR 1T AR 755 B Government Flying Service GFS
BT LB ET Government Laboratory GovtlLab
BT i PR 7% 2 Government Logistics Department GLD
BINEXE Government Property Agency GPA

W40 ) HFES 2023/24 £
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(EHERBEMRD) MRAIIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

BB Y Government Department &% Abbreviation
BT 4 T Government Secretariat GS

- BRI RRPAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office CSo

- BRI R RIABAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Private CSPO

Office

- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau CSB

- ABEREEERR — Commerce and Economic Development Bureau  CEDB

- B R A E TS - Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau CMAB

- (b8 B Rk R — Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau CSTB

-#RE — Development Bureau DEVB

-HER — Education Bureau EDB

-IREBEREER — Environment and Ecology Bureau EEB

- BRARRERNHAE - Financial Secretary’s Office FSO

- WRARRALARAE - Financial Secretary’s Private Office FSPO

- I EBREBED - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau FSTB

- BBREER - Health Bureau HHB

-REBREEFELR - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau HYAB

-BER - Housing Bureau HB

- BRI R TER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau’ ITIB

- BIRBEMNB — Labour and Welfare Bureau LWB

- ERARIRIRPAE - Secretary for Justice’s Office SJO

-RELB - Security Bureau SB

- BRRYRE - Transport and Logistics Bureau TLB
BIE Highways Department HyD
RBEBRE Home Affairs Department HAD
BBRXA Hong Kong Observatory HKO
EEE Housing Department HD
ANEBEER Immigration Department ImmD
B EE Information Services Department ISD
BB Inland Revenue Department IRD
MBERESE Intellectual Property Department IPD
REHES Invest Hong Kong InvestHK
NIEREENBEERRBGEHZFAZ  Joint Secretariat for the Advisory Bodies on Civil JSSCS
BEgMaMER Service and Judicial Salaries and Conditions of

Service
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CRFREBEEHRD) MERAIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

BB Y Government Department &% Abbreviation
BTR Labour Department LD
THEEM R Land Registry LR
N BE Lands Department LandsD
EEEDE Legal Aid Department LAD
RER L E%E Leisure and Cultural Services Department LCSD
HER Marine Department MD
BAEBEERRAE Office of the Communications Authority OFCA
WEEEE Official Receiver’s Office ORO
REIE Planning Department PlanD
HHE Post Office PO
BEBER Radio Television Hong Kong RTHK
ZMYEGHES Rating and Valuation Department RVD
BB EEE Registration and Electoral Office REO
tEEMNE Social Welfare Department SWD
TXEESE Trade and Industry Department TID
BEHE Transport Department ™
E%E Treasury Try
REHEENZESWER University Grants Committee, Secretariat UGC
KIGE Water Supplies Department WSD
TBRREMEBEBEETRE Working Family and Student Financial Assistance WFSFAA
Agency

F280 o EBI (FB397F) WRIFE1EAII R EHIE
Part 2: Public Organisations Listed in Part 1 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397

Public Organisation &% Abbreviation
SRR BERB Accounting and Financial Reporting Council AFRC
WIS EER R Airport Authority AA
BRI (FEBUFERFT) Auxiliary Medical Service (non-Government AMS

department)
RRZ2RGH GEBUFEFT) Civil Aid Service (non-Government department) CAS
GREEBEEY Competition Commission comC
HEELRE® Consumer Council cc

W42 ) HFRES 2023/24 £k
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(EHEREEMRD) MRAIIEE—B
List of Scheduled Organisations

Public Organisation

5% Abbreviation

EEHEIB Employees Retraining Board ERB
TE#ELTES Equal Opportunities Commission EOC
HWEREEER Estate Agents Authority EAA
BEREMBERD Hong Kong Arts Development Council HKADC
BEEFEEZE® Hong Kong Housing Authority HKHA
EREEERE Hong Kong Housing Society HKHS
BEREEREER Hong Kong Monetary Authority HKMA
EREEERARAA Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited HKSIL
BRERER Hospital Authority HA
REEEER Insurance Authority 1A
NEEEE R A Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation KCRC
SNEEMER Legislative Council Secretariat LCS
REIMAEEETEEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority MPFA
BAABERILEZZES Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data PCPD
YMEBEEEER Property Management Services Authority PMSA
BAMPEEBERRZES Securities and Futures Commission SFC
EBEARFTIZBE The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment HKEAA
Authority
IREEEEE B Travel Industry Authority TIA
MEERED Urban Renewal Authority URA
AR B Vocational Training Council VTC
ANt RERD West Kowloon Cultural District Authority WKCDA

Bl (F397F) MIFR1F2EPPIFIE

Organisations Listed in Part 2 of Schedule 1, Cap. 397

e Organisation &% Abbreviation
BB ERK Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force HKAPF

BBEBR Hong Kong Police Force HKPF

BRBAZE Independent Commission Against Corruption ICAC
AGERAZEGWER Secretariat of the Public Service Commission PSC

1. BIFRRE  BNERAMBRAERRERMERERRERBETHEETER -

Note 1. The Innovation and Technology Commission, the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and the Efficiency Office

are under the Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau.
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HIRFATREINRAFAENER
Circumstances where Complaints are not
Followed up or Investigated

0V No gk w2

_
©

*RZ - PR BRR AR
TREEHRBIELNITE
TRREITEENDKRRIL
BRI BT - SRE SR

SRR SR ARRE
BHEBERRS

AFETENEE

5 B HN KB B 30 RE AR R R TE

B (FRRANWE - AR EETAD
BREANTTE
ERHPERS EREBREIRBAEL
By Lk & BRI SR 1T M ERERAI T 8D

1.
2.
3,

0 ® No ok~

FZHFEERENITE - BBEFIFEI7EHNER2
Actions not Subject to Investigation — Schedule 2, Cap. 397

Security, defence or international relations
Actions by the Chief Executive personally

Exercise of power by the Chief Executive to pardon
criminals

Grant of honours, awards or privileges by Government
Legal proceedings or prosecution decisions
Contractual or other commercial transactions
Personnel matters

Imposition or variation of conditions of land grant
Actions in relation to Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs

Crime prevention and investigation actions by the
Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force, the Hong Kong
Police Force or the Independent Commission Against
Corruption

ABERFFHIRS) — BBIEHIZEI97EFE10(1)1%

Restrictions on Investigation of Complaints — Section 10(1), Cap. 397

o g s wbd =

BFABRFERE NEBB24E A
RIFBERERY
BEFABIE R TE A

KRR IFARREIRENALTIEERRRER
B AR FREEE W E TR R
RFABRMNBRERIZEFRHE ERRTH
RHE

1.

> w

Complainant having knowledge of subject of
complaint for more than 24 months

Complaint made anonymously

Complainant not identifiable or traceable
Complaint not made by person aggrieved or suitable
representative

Subject of complaint and complainant having no
connection with Hong Kong

Statutory right of appeal or remedy by way of legal
proceedings being available to complainant

RIFEEARAENEMABAENER - EBEHIEI7EF10(2)1%
Circumstances where The Ombudsman may Decide not to Investigate —
Section 10(2), Cap. 397

1.

@

VAR B A& B AR RIER - MAARBRL
BITBREZR

RFBAFHTIRBNE

KRFEBHEEY  BEENFERIFEBEL
AEMBHMEERFE (Pl RZREH
B FOSMIBIERETTE) - SRR ARER
ZEEHR)

SREE 2023/24 £1)

Investigation of similar complaints before revealed
no maladministration

Subject of complaint is trivial

Complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is not made in
good faith

Investigation is, for any other reason, unnecessary
(such as lack of prima facie evidence, the organisation
involved is already taking action, or the complainant
iS just expressing opinions)
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BR&=F
Caseload

REFE
Reporting year"
21/22
& Enquiries 8,599 9,279 8,851 7,505 8,581
e Complaints
(@) ZERBEMNRFER (a) For processing 4,979 5,951 5,626 30,713 20,737
- BRI R - Received 4,351[146] 5,357[233] 4,934[140]  29,814[25,155]  19,767[15,034]
-ALEEEA - Brought forward 628 594 692 899 970
(b) BRI ERER (b) Completed 4,397[151] 5,323[254] 5,032[135] 30,021[25,155] 19,838[15,040]
BREVER Pursued and 2,053[8]  2,558[138]  2,739[102] 2,826[249] 2,807[326]
concluded
- EERBER - By inquiry? 1,771 2,112[119] 2,432(102] 2,480[246] 2,418[217]
- REEPERER - By full investigation? 95[7] 141[16] 92 167[3] 240[109]
- SRR RER - By mediation* 1871] 305[3] 215 179 149
BABLER Assessed and closed  2,344[143]  2,765[116] 2,293[33] 27,195[24,906] 17,031[14,714]
- B RABERRES - Insufficient grounds to 1,470[110] 1,787(85) 1,171[6] 1,295[203] 8,676[7,496]
pursue®
- RIEBIFRA G R E - Legally bounde 874(33] 978[31] 1,122(27]  25,900[24,703] 8,355[7,218)
(c) EXBMBRHRMERE AL (c) Percentage 88.3% 89.5% 89.4% 97.7% 95.7%
= (b)/(a) completed = (b)/(a)
() BETEE =(a)-(b) (d)Carried forward = 582 628 594 692 899
(a) - (b)
BERNEEAETHHE Direct investigation 10 9 8 9 10
operations completed
R
1. BEF4A1BZ=ZF3A31H -
2. B (BRFEEEN) FNAKREN —MELDHER -
3. RE CRHFFEKAD) B2GRENBRERNESR - RS RBEENTEREAE - THRER EARES -
4. RE CRHFFEKRH) B1BERREMNER - EP TP RITBAE @ kR P REMITERELE ©
5 B CRFHFEKRM) F10Q)&M T T RENELAROER -
6. RIE (RFEERN) FEBEABRELE - KZE10EAMRTEHEE -
[1 FRTREBRRAFEBEFERNEE -
Notes :
1. From 1 April to 31 March of the next year.
2. Pursued under section 11A of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for general cases.
3. Pursued under section 12 of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for complex cases possibly involving serious maladministration,

systemic flaws, etc.

Pursued under section 11B of The Ombudsman Ordinance, for cases involving no, or only minor, maladministration.
Not pursued and closed under section 10(2) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.

Outside the Office's jurisdiction under section 8 or restricted by section 10(1) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.
Number of topical complaints.

—o ok
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THRETHREHE |
Case Synopses of Direct Investigation Operations

EipE

Transport Department

E B X4 % Case No. : DI/456

FRRZREATERREMNNEREERE
n

NERHEME
BEATEROEZAEM ( [BFERAML] )
AERH %*ﬁ‘ [BEALREFAZE] ( [FFA

El ) MBEEREEM - B2021F1H298H
o BRESERAUNERERERE [AHK

D

BEHTHIENRRADRERAE] ([EH
2J ) AN U EBMREEEN T RixE

TENERKRALHRTT - ZHERERK - AR
uﬁi?rﬁéi?ﬁﬁ’]l SUBRE - MORALS G OE B R A%
B - RERERYE - EREEHTEBEIED
BIZ - FHECAAI ORISR - BEHBRAEN RS
PILEFITRERTTRITEE AR

NENEZR

HREERERTRN TMRAREER  BREAD
AHEBEE ERRU M B R RHEIER - EETE
FEMBAERAERNAEIL FARE NG FEE
EHEHBREASHRFER  FHER - BEEA
EZRMERF R EFAE WL - a8
NBIEEBTEEREBAENTS - REME &
BEEE B RS B BIEUOA PARZ I FF A &
HERETANERIEF FHERRERRGE
r%ﬁ °

REFEE 2023/24 £

RERRSEFEED
in accordance with case numbers

Measures and Usage of On-street Parking
Spaces Designated for People with Disabilities

52X B # Completed on : 25/4/2023

Our findings

In the past, only drivers with disabilities holding the Disabled
Person’s Parking Permit ("DPPP") were entitled to use
the on-street parking spaces designated for people with
disabilities ("DPS”). With effect from 29 January 2021, the
Transport Department (“TD") introduced a new measure to
extend the eligibility for using DPS to holders of the Parking
Certificate for Drivers Who Carry People with Mobility
Disabilities (“Parking Certificate”) to facilitate the carrying
of specified persons with lower limb mobility disabilities.
The new measure has aggravated the shortfall in the supply
of DPS, and suspected cases of abuse is on the rise. Our
investigation found inadequacies in the Department’s
formulation of the new measure, assessment of the supply
and demand of DPS, processing of applications for Parking
Certificate, as well as prevention of abuse and handling of
complaints.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to TD, including
that the Department should fully assess the supply and
demand of DPS; regularly survey the usage rates of DPS
and release the data to the public; comprehensively review
the eligibility and approval criteria for Parking Certificate
and the procedures for handling parking abuse; review
and strengthen measures against various forms of Parking
Certificate abuse. In the long run, TD should consider and
explore legislative amendments to address the discrepancies
between the DPPP and the Parking Certificate in terms of
approval procedures, eligibility criteria and conditions of use.
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Social Welfare Department

@ B =49 case No. : DI/457

[BRETERMEHES
istal ‘

Pilat Schame on Community Care Servica '
Voucher for the Elderly

REMHERERYSHBTE
NERHEME

REHBRBERSES ( [HES] ) AR
[FIRAE] B XEBIREERLZ - B2
s - ARETEANEELHBE DRI - OFES
B@E  BNAUREZR °

REHAEHER  HER/MNE ( [HF] ) DRRA
BIEEREFAHRSFHERE - FRHORE SRR
HRIBREBE TS  BoMENTLRRREERE
AT R - HERRAIRFEMETHEZRE
i KRB RMEGR—UBHFA - ZBNEET
RFEABRRGEMOREANGFER - ARt
HANBEXRNREEE -

NENEZR

RFEEMEFRENMEREEE  BEEHAREF
BEEMERHRFNALTRER - eI FIRE
R BREZHBENHERERERREREZ S
DARRBERE  SHEREFRAMBEENTZA
REFEXE  BERBREESRERRTMESH
EIMUERELEREE © TREFSABRRE
BUMRE: ZREMABEXERESEEER
M AEELRFRESE -
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FTEHRABTHHRERE
Case Synopses of Direct Investigation Operations

Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service
Voucher for the Elderly

52 A B # Completed on : 14/8/2023

Our findings

The Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher for
the Elderly supports frail elderly persons to age in place
under the “money-following-the-user” mode. Overall, the
Pilot Scheme had been enhanced in various ways with more
obvious progress in recent years. That said, there were still
areas for improvement.

Our investigation revealed that the Social Welfare
Department (“SWD") had taken effective steps to enhance
the utilisation rate of vouchers. While the supply and
demand of home-based services in different districts could
generally maintain a balance, there was a deficit of centre-
based services in some districts. SWD randomly interviewed
only one voucher holder in most of the service monitoring
visits at recognised service providers. The Department had
not maintained statistical information on voucher holders’
reasons for switching service providers. The Pilot Scheme
was rarely publicised through channels with a wide coverage.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to SWD,
including approaching those voucher holders not using
the vouchers received and helping them choose suitable
service; inviting more organisations to offer more centre-
based service places in districts with keen demand;
providing more support to voucher holders without children
or carers; instructing its staff to conduct random interviews
with at least two users or their carers during each service
monitoring visit; understanding voucher holders’ reasons for
switching service providers; and considering arranging more
newspaper or television interviews with real cases cited to
promote voucher services.
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Education Bureau
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Education Bureau’s Monitoring of Boarding
Sections of Schools for Children with Intellectual
Disabilities

52 A B #i Completed on : 25/4/2023

Our findings

Some schools for children with intellectual disabilities
("ID") receiving aids from the Education Bureau ("EDB")
have boarding sections that provide boarding service to
children with moderate and severe ID. We found that, save
for stipulations on staffing establishment and provision of
funds, EDB had not laid down any details about operational
requirements, restrictions, or inspection in relation to these
boarding sections. EDB’s external school review (“ESR")
would not directly assess the operation of the boarding
sections either. Nevertheless, given the limited ability of
children with ID to communicate effectively, we consider
that EDB should ensure its effectiveness in monitoring
boarding sections and enhance the services of them, so as
to safeguard boarders’ welfare.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 12 recommendations to EDB,
including stipulating in the Practice Guide for Special
Schools on Planning and Managing Boarding Service the
basic requirements for certain aspects of boarding sections’
daily operation; requiring boarding sections to install CCTV
surveillance systems with recording function and conducting
random checks from time to time of those recorded
footages; including the use of physical restraint or seclusion
on boarders as an item for review during inspections, and
formulating detailed and rigorous guidelines for adopting
such interventions in boarding sections; providing guidelines
on the design and facilities of seclusion space in the boarding
section; including in ESR the observation of boarding
sections’ environment and boarders’ daily lives; arranging
surprise inspections at the boarding section and drawing
up key performance indicators; reviewing and broadening
the content of inspections; devising clear arrangements and
inspection indicators; exploring the feasibility of arranging
professionals and parents to participate in inspections;
and strictly requiring boarding sections to adhere to the
requirements for reporting serious or life-threatening
accidents.
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Government's Enforcement against Defective
Sewage Works of New Territories Exempted
Houses

Our findings

The enforcement responsibilities in respect of sewage works
of New Territories Exempted Houses (“NTEHS") scatter
among the Environmental Protection Department (“EPD”),
the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department and the
Lands Department (“LandsD”). Our investigation revealed
inadequate collaboration in complaint handling and no
established mechanism for information exchange among
the three departments. LandsD has not fully discharged
its enforcement role or conducted any data analysis of
complaint cases, rendering it difficult to monitor complaint
handling effectively. Besides, under the prevailing regulatory
regime, no substantial measures are in place to ensure NTEH
owners' fulfilment of their maintenance responsibility.

Oour recommendations

The Ombudsman made ten recommendations, including that
the three departments should set up an inter-departmental
working group, draw up operational guidelines for frontline
staff to rationalise the responsibilities and procedures for
inter-departmental cases and devise a proper mechanism
for information exchange; LandsD should formulate a
monitoring mechanism for complaint cases, conduct data
analysis and take lease enforcement action decisively,
while exploring concrete measures to ensure NTEH owners
know how to effectively fulfil their responsibility for proper
sewage treatment and maintenance of sewage works; and
EPD should enhance publicity of the correct use and proper
maintenance of septic tanks and consider more extensive
use of new technology in an appropriate time to trace the
seepage source.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24

N P
~—



Kt$%4 Appendix 4

ITHHETHRERE

Case Synopses of Direct Investigation Operations

MEREERQE

Efficiency Office

@ =45 Case No. : DI/461

2 Am23WBAER
= I mmAR AR

1823 IR R K B H B AR

NERHEME

MERERNE ( [BER] ) BET182338#H24
I —UEURTS - AT RBEE A RE23ES LT
RIBER - WERWHBRFRBAO®RF - AFFHEH
B 1823 RBEA BB IE S #RPI M AP PIIFEE TNE
BEF - RERR - 182BEEFEKEELREE TS
MmN AR E2BUF S ERBRIE © s -
1823 R ERIE - MBEFPINAELH - BRE
ERBIRERE T EbRANEEM -

NENEZ

AR B MERMRIZL T13REH - BREEEAT
BB P a0 R A5 {8 5= 1 88 L e 0 [ =i F e EL A BRI B
B AEEERRALEBLRERENER  gL8
MR EEkEEHREE FEOESR - HERS
RETEI{EHES] - B L2 TERIERBEEL - UE
BREG  BEMERHEEARLIZZRRBELKE
B [EREEA]|  BR2EEME IR
BT HHER B AR  BH TR EFNERR
B REREERTERRE - UE—F1RT1823
BEREANLER  E—TRAATEENMRERESR
A AREERFHERETOT MBS RBEEE
TEA [EGERME | RERME - KIHBIBFRE
R R BRI FIH MR A o

.50 JGE 3
\\D, FIFEE 2023/24 £

-

Effectiveness of 1823 in Handling Complaints
and Enquiries

52 A B Completed on : 5/3/2024

Our findings

1823 under the Efficiency Office (“EQ”) provides a one-
stop service round the clock to answer public enquiries
about the services of 23 participating departments, and
receive complaints about Government services. Our
investigation found that 1823 cannot effectively resolve
cross-departmental complaints and complaints involving
unclear delineation of responsibilities. We consider that
1823 should escalate cases about recurring district problems
involving unclear delineation of responsibilities in a timely
manner to the high-level structure of the Government for
effective resolution. Our investigation also identified room
for improvement in 1823's handling of calls, co-operation
arrangements with participating departments, daily
operations and use of data.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 13 recommendations to EOQ, including
that it should stringently enforce the requirement that
departments reply within a specified time limit with reasons
if they consider a case outside their purview or should be
handled by another department; establish a mechanism
and draw up guidelines to standardise and regularise the
procedures for escalating cases about recurring district
problems with unclear delineation of responsibilities to the
respective District Officers of the Home Affairs Department
or the Task Force on District Governance (“TFDG") in a
systematic, proper and timely manner; request participating
departments to submit forecast plans of new services or
arrangements on a regular basis for preparation accordingly;
proactively monitor and conduct timely review of the newly
upgraded telephone system with a view to further enhancing
1823's call answering rate; expand the application of artificial
intelligence on enquiry handling; and conduct systematic
analyses of cross-departmental cases and consolidate
relevant data, submit reports to the TFDG from time to
time to facilitate the Government'’s resolution of cross-
departmental district issues.
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Housing Department’s Arrangements for
Housing for Senior Citizens and Converted One-
person Units

55 R B 8 completed on : 11/7/2023

Our findings

In the 1980s, the Housing Department (“HD") introduced
the Housing for Senior Citizens ("HSC") scheme to provide
hostel-type public rental housing (“PRH") for elderly tenants
aged 60 or above. HSC has three types according to the
design of units, namely Type 1 (“HS1"), Type 2 (“HS2") and
Type 3 (“HS3"). Converted one-person (“C1P") units of a
similar design as HS1 were also provided in response to
the society’s demand for one-person PRH units at that
time. Tenants have to share the kitchen, living room and/or
bathroom facilities.

Our investigation found that, with the change of times, units
with shared kitchen and bathroom facilities have become
outdated and unpopular. Despite that the Hong Kong Housing
Authority has taken multiple measures to reduce the vacancy
rate of those units over the years, after a lapse of nearly two
decades, HD has yet to recover all HS1 and C1P units which
are no longer available for allocation, and the vacancy rate
of the partitioned rooms in these units were persistently
high with long duration of vacancy. On the other hand, the
vacancy rate and refusal rate of offer of HS2 and HS3, which
are still available for allocation, were also high. We consider
that HD should ensure more effective deployment of relevant
PRH resources to meet the strong demand for public
housing.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made eight recommendations to HD,
including that HD should review whether HS2/HS3 units
should still be classified as ordinary PRH flats, and consider
ceasing to allocate these units to general PRH applicants
and tailoring a specific allocation scheme for HS2/HSS3;
consider in the long run the needs for changing the use of
HSC. Moreover, HD should promote and introduce more
transfer incentives, approach and collaborate with the Social
Welfare Department or welfare agencies to proactively lobby
and encourage the elderly tenants of HS1 and C1P units to
transfer, thereby speeding up recovering these units.
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Handling of Complaints Involving Trees on
Government Land

52 R B & completed on : 10/7/2023

Our findings

The Tree Management Office (“TMQ”) under the Development
Bureau co-ordinates and supervises departments’ handling
of tree complaints. While TMO has established a mechanism
under which it adjudicates on cases involving disputes over
responsibilities, our investigation revealed that when TMO
intervened in the disputes according to the mechanism, the
cases might have been seriously delayed. Besides, from
time to time, tree management departments had divergent
interpretations of the division of responsibilities and even
repeated disputes over similar issues. No departments had
drawn up any internal time frame for carrying out ordinary
tree work. Meanwhile, while the backlog of complaints with
overdue replies by the Lands Department (“LandsD”) had
significantly shrunk, there was no information on whether all
the trees involved had been properly handled.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made eight recommendations, including
that for complaints involving disputes over responsibilities,
TMO should consider using the overall handling time of a
case as a criterion for intervention; conduct systemic analysis
on such cases for collating information about departments’
common differences in opinions and misunderstanding,
and review and update the relevant Technical Circular as
appropriate in a timely manner; require departments to
formulate a time frame for carrying out ordinary tree work
based on the actual need; strengthen data collection and
analysis; and continue to monitor LandsD’s performance in
handling tree complaints.
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Leisure and Cultural Services Department
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Repairs and Maintenance of Outdoor
Recreational and Sports Facilities under Leisure
and Cultural Services Department

Our findings

The quality, suitability and safety level of outdoor
recreational and sports facilities have substantial impact
on raising the living quality of the general public. As the
management authority for a huge number of outdoor
recreational and sports facilities, the Leisure and Cultural
Services Department (“LCSD") has a duty to ensure that the
facilities are in good condition and to arrange for their timely
repairs and maintenance. Our investigation revealed that
some LCSD frontline staff had failed to report in a timely
manner damage in outdoor recreational and sports facilities.
Furthermore, there is room for improvement in LCSD’s
monitoring of overall facility repairs procedures, arrangement
of contracts with contractors and monitoring of contractors’
performance.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 11 recommendations to LCSD,
including that it should formulate practice guides for frontline
staff on facility inspection and improve the current routine
inspection form; strengthen facility inspection training for
frontline staff; follow up closely on the development of the
computer system designed for facility inspection and repair
records so that in the future, staff can inspect in real time
the relevant records and follow up on the repairs for facilities
in a timely manner; review the current term contract
arrangement and in the long run explore options that allow
more flexible arrangements for facility repairs by contractors;
and consider making use of smart technology to facilitate
public report of damaged facilities.
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Regulation of Licensed Swimming Pools by Food
and Environmental Hygiene Department

Our findings

The Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (“FEHD")
regulates licensed private swimming pools in accordance
with the Swimming Pools Regulation and licensing conditions
to ensure public safety and hygiene. Our investigation
revealed inadequacies in FEHD’s inspection of licensed
swimming pools in terms of frequency, quality, method
and record. Besides, licensees are not required to maintain
duty logs of life-saving attendants or to provide basic life-
saving and first-aid equipment under the existing licensing
conditions. FEHD's guidelines on the monitoring of pool
water quality were insufficient and no accident notification
mechanism was in place.

Our recommendations

The Ombudsman made 12 recommendations to FEHD,
including specifying in operational guidelines the follow-
up arrangements in the event of closure of pools during
surprise inspections; strengthening staff training and
guidelines on the inspection of pools; applying technology in
recording inspection results; reviewing the existing licensing
conditions (including exploring stipulating the requirement
for maintaining duty logs of life-saving attendants and
addition of basic life-saving and first-aid equipment);
establishing an accident notification mechanism; issuing to
licensees guidelines on the handling of pollution sources in
pool water; stepping up enforcement against non-compliant
pools; exploring ways to engage pool users in monitoring;
and setting up a standing communication mechanism with
the Leisure and Cultural Services Department, the operator
of public pools, on the regulation and management of
swimming pools.
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Food and Environmental Hygiene Department’s
Regulation over Sale of Food in Hot/Cold Holding
and Non-prepackaged Beverages by Means of
Vending Machine

Our findings

In recent years, more and wider variety of food in hot or cold
holding and non-prepackaged beverages are available by
vending machines emerging in the market. As required by
law, any person who intends to engage in this mode of food
business must first apply to the Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department (“FEHD") for a permit to sell food by
means of vending machine (“VM Permit”). Our investigation
revealed that some permit holders have not complied
stringently with the licensing requirements and conditions
imposed by FEHD, and there is room for improvement on the
part of FEHD in its processing and approving of applications
for VM permits and monitoring of licensed vending machines.

our recommendations

The Ombudsman made ten recommendations to FEHD,
including requiring permit applicants to submit information
about the devices and operation of vending machines and
keep it in the case files; updating existing guidelines with
instructions to staff on how to compile specific records of
pre-approval inspection; beefing up the licensing conditions
with clear and specific details on temperature control,
machine cleansing and sterilisation, and record keeping,
while exploring stepping up random checks on such records;
exploring the feasibility of more proactive bacteriological
testing of food and beverages sold by means of vending
machines; requiring permit holders to display the Permit
on the outside of machines, and disseminating information
about licensing requirements/conditions imposed on vending
machines to facilitate public monitoring; requiring all vending
machines of food under temperature control to be fitted
with an externally readable thermometer or to provide
relevant information; and providing organisations which
dispenses free food by self-service machines with important
information for safeguarding public hygiene and health.
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REXFRIBFHES
in alphabetical order

B IR
BIMRHR EEESE
BRHE BR#E"

No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and

EE Y Department or organisation received concluded®
E18 5 - BUTEBM Part 1: Government Departments

BEAREREE Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation 48 15

Department

REEE Architectural Services Department 8 3
BEitE Audit Commission 1 1
B2 E YK Auxiliary Medical Service 1 0
EFE Buildings Department 164 103
RRZ 2R Civil Aid Service 2 0
RfE Civil Aviation Department 5 0
TARIRARE Civil Engineering and Development Department 14 2
Nl E Companies Registry 15 6
BHYE Correctional Services Department 33 20
BEEH Customs and Excise Department 64 12
BEE Department of Health 83 34
I A] Department of Justice 32 4
RIEE Drainage Services Department 13 6
BERBERNE Efficiency Office 38 31
HWETIEE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department 17 7
RIBREE Environmental Protection Department 79 31
=10 Fire Services Department 39 18
RYIRIBREE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 386 207
THRENAELBHE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office 9 4
B FRAT AR 75 BX Government Flying Service 2 1
IEgisglet=3ki Government Laboratory 1 1
B RS E Government Logistics Department 2 1
BINEXE Government Property Agency 8 1
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EIREN
I RR BERORHR
BR&E BR#E"

No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and

PR AR Department or organisation received  concluded’
T 4 Government Secretariat
- BBRRERAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office 29 59
- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau 17 2
- BB REEERD — Commerce and Economic Development Bureau 1 0
- B R A BB — Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau 1 1
- X{bRE B MIREER — Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 3 1
-BRB - Development Bureau 11 11
-HER - Education Bureau 68 41
-IREBERERER - Environment and Ecology Bureau 4 1
- MHRRIARRAE - Financial Secretary’s Office 2 2
- =B RESR - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau 40 16
- BBRER - Health Bureau 16 12
-RBEEEEBR - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau 6 2
-BER - Housing Bureau 20 12
- BRI R IER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau 3 1
- BIRBENE — Labour and Welfare Bureau 5 2
-RELB - Security Bureau 26 2
- BR R — Transport and Logistics Bureau 6 4
BIRE Highways Department 59 43
RBEBRE Home Affairs Department 88 46
BEBRXE Hong Kong Observatory 4 1
BAERR Hong Kong Police Force 57 10
EEE Housing Department 463 303
ANRETEET Immigration Department 155 73
IEgigi ) Information Services Department 1 1
iR Inland Revenue Department 81 24
BIFT R E Innovation and Technology Commission 5 3
MBERESE Intellectual Property Department 2 2

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 \ 57



Kt$%5 Appendix 5

%3RO IRETERNRFER
Complaints Received and Complaints Pursued & Concluded

BEREIN
EEWRK HERHNRFR
BR&AE BR&E"
No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and
B P R 48 Department or organisation received concluded®
ANERB RS K Judiciary Administrator 14 6
BT Labour Department 54 24
TR Land Registry 9 2
AR E Lands Department 221 119
ERERE Legal Aid Department 60 19
RSN L EBE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 199 100
BER Marine Department 14 5
BAEBEERRAE Office of the Communications Authority 19 8
BN EMEH AR A= Office of the Government Chief Information Officer 2 0
WEEERE Official Receiver’s Office 10 5
HEE Planning Department 12 4
HHE Post Office 38 21
BEREAR Radio Television Hong Kong 4 2
EMYEGHES Rating and Valuation Department 11 3
BREBE Registration and Electoral Office 10 3
tEREMNE Social Welfare Department 126 64
THEHE Trade and Industry Department 6 3
BEHE Transport Department 380 253
E#E Treasury 1 0
IKIEE Water Supplies Department 98 50
ERRENSBEEERE  Working Family and Student Financial Assistance 26 16
Agency

H2EH T REHE Part 2: Public Organisations
FET R BERD Accounting and Financial Reporting Council 1 0
WIZEE D Airport Authority 12 2
BREEBEEE Competition Commission 4 1
HEELRES Consumer Council 24 7
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EERE
BEENRF BERIOBFR
BR&E (FES - §=N
No. of
No. of complaints
complaints pursued and
B P R 48 Department or organisation received concluded®
EEBEZIB Employees Retraining Board 6 2
TERSRES Equal Opportunities Commission 24 6
HWEREEER Estate Agents Authority 8 2
EEEELZES® Hong Kong Housing Authority 8 6
EREEERE Hong Kong Housing Society 27 12
BERECREER Hong Kong Monetary Authority 19 8
EREEERARAA Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited 4 2
BRERER Hospital Authority 188 45
BRBAZE Independent Commission Against Corruption 2 0
REBEEER Insurance Authority 14 4
FEHERE A A Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation 1 0
SOEEMER Legislative Council Secretariat 2 0
REIEATERTEIEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority 7 5
BAERLEZEE Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data 13 5
VHEEREEER Property Management Services Authority 29 30
BHERHEEHEREZEE  Securities and Futures Commission 106 5
BEBERRTZB The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 13 5
Authority
IRIFEEEE D Travel Industry Authority 7 2
MEEZER Urban Renewal Authority 20 6
B4R B Vocational Training Council 20 5
AR ERR West Kowloon Cultural District Authority 1 2
Hfth g2 Other Organisations? 240 1
&5t Total 4,351 2,053

1.

BREL—EFEERD  BEAFES TRRELERORFESR -

2. [HMmgE] BIETE (RFZEEKRD) MRINEEE

Notes :

1. Including the complaints received in the previous year but pursued and concluded in the prevailing year.
2. "Other Organisations” are organisations falling outside Schedule 1 to The Ombudsman Ordinance.
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DEMDNERZNRFERES
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

B s

Department or organisation

UERSR
HRNRN
LETY

No. of
complaints
concluded
by inquiry

REXFRIBFHES
in alphabetical order

BRERMK
FAEZE
NEES

Cases with

inadequacies

or
deficiencies
found

FE1TD - BTIHM Part 1: Government Departments
REAREREE Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation 13 3
Department

REEE Architectural Services Department 1 0
Bt E Audit Commission 1 0
EFE Buildings Department 78 24
TARTREERESE Civil Engineering and Development Department 2 0
ARG Companies Registry 5 1
BHE Correctional Services Department 20 1
BEREHE Customs and Excise Department 12 0
BEE Department of Health 30 6
A Department of Justice 4 0
RiEE Drainage Services Department 5 1
BERERNE Efficiency Office 29 5
WETEE Electrical and Mechanical Services Department 5 1
RIBRES Environmental Protection Department 27 1
SEBI R Fire Services Department 17 2
RYNIRIBEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department 160 47
THRRENAELKE General Office of the Chief Executive’s Office 4 2
BT FRAT AR 75 Government Flying Service 1 0
NEgin| o3 Government Laboratory 1 0
HINEHE Government Property Agency 1 0

' HEFES 2023/24 £



Ft$%6 Appendix 6

UEMARNERZNIRFERER
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

HERAR BRERMK
BRI FAEZE

BR&E RS

Cases with

No. of inadequacies

complaints or

concluded deficiencies

RIS AR Department or organisation by inquiry found
T4 & Government Secretariat

- BRI RRHAE — Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office 45 9

- REEEBR — Civil Service Bureau 2 0

- B R ER R - Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau 1 0

- XL BB Rk #E - Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 1 0

-EER - Development Bureau 11 1

-HER - Education Bureau 38 3

-IREBREER - Environment and Ecology Bureau 1 1

- WRARERRAE — Financial Secretary’s Office 2 1

- I EBREBED - Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau 7 0

- BBREER - Health Bureau 11 4

-RBREEFEBR - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau 1 0

-BER - Housing Bureau 12 0

- BRI R ITER — Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau 1 0

- BIRBEMNB - Labour and Welfare Bureau 2 0

-REZB - Security Bureau 1 1

- B RYRE — Transport and Logistics Bureau 4 1

BRIE Highways Department 35 4

RB=BEE Home Affairs Department 39 10

BBRXA Hong Kong Observatory 1 0

BEBERR Hong Kong Police Force 10 5

EEZE Housing Department 270 28

ANBERE Immigration Department 66 6

BT E R Information Services Department 1 0

iR Inland Revenue Department 18 7

BIFT R E Innovation and Technology Commission 2 0

MBERESE Intellectual Property Department 1 0
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UEMARNERZNRFERER
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

w1

Department or organisation

DEMRAR
HERNRF
(EES:¢E]

No. of
complaints
concluded
by inquiry

BRERMK
FAEZE
NEES

Cases with
inadequacies
or
deficiencies
found

ANERB RS K Judiciary Administrator 6 0
BTER Labour Department 22 1
TR Land Registry 2 0
4R ZE Lands Department 109 23
ERERE Legal Aid Department 19 0
BRI EBE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 87 11
BER Marine Department 5 1
BAEEEERRAE Office of the Communications Authority 8 1
WEERZE Official Receiver’s Office 4 1
HEE Planning Department 3 0
HHE Post Office 19 8
BEREER Radio Television Hong Kong 1 1
EMYEGHEE Rating and Valuation Department 3 1
ERERR Registration and Electoral Office 3 2
ERANE Social Welfare Department 57 7
THZESE Trade and Industry Department 2 0
BipE Transport Department 213 60
KIGE Water Supplies Department 44 10
EBRENSBAEERE  Working Family and Student Financial Assistance 12 0

' HEFES 2023/24 £
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Ft$%6 Appendix 6

UEMARNERZNIRFERER
Results of Complaints Concluded by Inquiry

HERAR BRERMK
BRI FAEZE
BR&E NEES

Cases with

No. of inadequacies

complaints or

concluded deficiencies

Department or organisation by inquiry found

H2TH T REHE Part 2: Public Organisations

WIS EIRE B Airport Authority 2 1
BEEBLZEY Competition Commission 1 0
HEELZB® Consumer Council 4 3
BEBEZIB Employees Retraining Board 2 0
FERSRES Equal Opportunities Commission 6 0
HWEREEER Estate Agents Authority 2 1
BEEFEZESY Hong Kong Housing Authority 6 3
EREERE Hong Kong Housing Society 11 2
BEECRIEER Hong Kong Monetary Authority 8 1
EREEERARA A Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited 2 0
BREER Hospital Authority 43 13
REEEER Insurance Authority 3 0
BEIEATESFEEER Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority 5 0
BAABERTLEES Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data 5 1
MEBBREEER Property Management Services Authority 30 6
BHERHEEEEREZEE  Securities and Futures Commission 5 0
EBEEALTZB The Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 5 1

Authority
REEEER Travel Industry Authority 2 0
MEERER Urban Renewal Authority 4 0
BT Vocational Training Council 4 0
BAAXEERR West Kowloon Cultural District Authority 2 1
H fth s Other Organisations’ 1 0
a% Total 1,771 335
1. [E AR RIENE (RFZERM) MR1ANHEE -

Note 1. “Other Organisations” are organisations falling outside Schedule 1 to The Ombudsman Ordinance.
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Kt4%7 Appendix 7

KerHEAEREZNERZES
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRXFTRERF S
in alphabetical order

F1809 « BUNFEBPT
Part 1 . Government Departments

BEER ZRHE
{El R 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
REBAREEE
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department
2023/1308 RECREM RIS S| RIBRABRBEMME EEEE % TRGSL 0
B ILE
Failing to provide clear guidelines and instructions on Unsubstantiated
how to identify maintained trails on countryside maps
EEE
Architectural Services Department
2023/05228B JE SR M S MR R ROK R E R 4t N ava
Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for Unsubstantiated
shower cubicles of a swimming pool
BEFE
Buildings Department
2022/1619E REEEREXNERNERIEEME iz PN AV
Failing to properly follow up on the unauthorised Partially
building works of a village house substantiated
2022/3740 REGEBERFARRNZIHENZETERLBEME #99 B AL
k)
Failing to handle the complainant’s report of Partially
numerous unauthorised building works and reply to substantiated
his queries
2022/4011 ERBESRERYBELERT DAV
Delay in following up on a removal order issued Substantiated
against unauthorised buildings works
2023/0088B IR BRI AR A B2 KR 2 [Dava
Delay in handling the complainant’s seepage case Substantiated
2023/0153(1) REZERBERMERNENEL X HFHER WEF AL - BiE

Failing to properly handle a request for historical
documents of a building

@ FiFEES 2023/24 £3])

AEBRK

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found



Ft%7 Appendix 7

KrEHATRGERNERRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RFEE
Complaint
A "R

Companies Registry

BEREswH
Overall
conclusion

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

2023/1018 REZERERFABBERRRAET UL ZN A 0
Eof iy
Failing to properly handle the complainant’s Unsubstantiated
complaint about a company mistakenly using his
residential address as its registered address
HES
Department of Health
2022/0792 (1) BEREEMIZF AR L ER ERORBEE (K [Dava 3
) MK
(2) EERFANBERMERERE - EEZFHREEEX
- MR &R FREERR (AKIZ)
(1) Delay inissuing a correct isolation document to Substantiated
the complainant (substantiated); and
(2) Extremely unorganised handling of the
complainant’s case in that the Department
had repeatedly issued isolation documents
each bearing a different isolation period
(substantiated)
2022/29698 RABRA R REMBUT PR RS B20198 ik R S 8 R TPK AL 0

EATERERAEDRORRE LT

Failing to explain to the public and other Government
departments the quarantine arrangements for
recovered COVID-19 patients in case of any new
confirmed cases in the same household

Unsubstantiated

2022/3659A (1) BRFAXBEGHAEENTREZRHENESR
= AEERNBETEENER  MREITE

WMEE RAENRE (TKRZ) AR

2) EREHBERZS M@ E (THKIL)

(1) The transparency of the follow-up actions taken
after the occurrence of adverse events following
COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn
the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(unsubstantiated); and

(2) Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

KL 0

Unsubstantiated
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RE2EHABREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

2023/0201

RBE

RIREE
Complaint

BE—RIBRERIERARFETEBEEE2019EM
REREEIRARTE  WEZSRAME BN - BXE
h AR M At 3 h AR < R B AR Y BRAE (S 1

Mistakenly issuing the COVID-19 Compulsory Testing
Order and relevant follow-up letters to a foreign
domestic helper despite her clarification and DH's
confirmation of her compliance with the testing
requirement

Drainage Services Department

2023/0990A

MERERQE

B3 IR 48T B ARHEH B (E - ERRERIE SR BUT L i #97K

R

Delay in handling the flooding problem on a piece of
Government land due to the shifting of responsibility
between the Department and the Lands Department

Efficiency Office

2023/0135C

HETEE

BAREREHEE REBRNEERRENRFEN T

E:i

Failing to refer a complaint about flying faded and
damaged national flags and regional flags to the
relevant department(s)

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

BEREswH
Overall
conclusion

Substantiated

TR SL

Unsubstantiated

BRI - BHE
AEBRE
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found

2022/3578 BEEREFARRERUFRAERFTE L E2HIE iz PN AV
Repeatedly requiring the complainant to submit Partially
information to prove that the products concerned met substantiated
the safety requirements

2023/0522C JEFR # 1S SO MO R B B (e R A eV

Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for
shower cubicles of a swimming pool

s 66 /)r HEFES 2023/24 £
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No. of Recom-
mendations
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEREW ZEEE

18 2R 4w 5% BIREE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations

BIERES
Environmental Protection Department

2022/1619F EBRPREEITKNEMAEAR - REE—FHE

Failing to take further enforcement action after
giving advice to the person in charge of a premises
suspected of discharging effluent

A

Unsubstantiated

2022/3620 REFBGEE/TE) - ABAEI M IS B SR L /)RR
TR
Failing to take proper actions to close down two

concrete batching plants continuously operating
without a valid licence

NEXAL

Unsubstantiated

2023/1195D RAEBREGERBRBIEEER - #E  MES
) am RO R

Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade

SHBE B

Fire Services Department

2023/0403B RESIRFAZSGREBIRITERIEEERE

Lack of positive response to the complainant’s
request for return of Bank Guarantees

BYREFLEE
Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

2022/1619A ZHES TF I AR & TR AL B AT ER e B B B S R R R
BRMENER  BLELXHREAKERDERFALH
D73 HEFE H R

Arranging inspections on an allegedly unlicensed
food premises by uniformed staff and staff arriving in
government vehicles, but failing to arrange night time
inspections and reply to the complainant about the
issue of piling of refuse

ARIL

Unsubstantiated

[pava
Substantiated

REFTRKSL - BE
AEBRK

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found
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RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RIREE
Complaint

BEREswH
Overall
conclusion

2022/2602 (1) RBHEZEBREAREM (PAKIL) BOKIL  WEB
(2) RBREREERFANEF (BAKL) s UK T
(3) ARBHEREEETHETHRKILEE@AEA,LNE
2 A eEEEETARRKR (PKZ)
(1) Improper management of a public market Partially
(unsubstantiated); substantiated and
(2) Failing to follow up on and respond to other inadequacies
the complainant’s complaints (partially found
substantiated); and
(3) Failing to regulate the irregularities and terminate
the tenancies of the stall tenants who breached
the tenancy agreements and then put up those
stalls for public auction (unsubstantiated)
2022/2840 REZEBBEARESM ARG - B
FSHEHK
Improper management of a public market Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found
2022/3803 (1) EEERHR —REKRFIEPEMEREEERE N rava
B ElmEREL  UREERAE KL
(2) EREIEBERF (TRL) UKk
(3 RELEEBFEMEBSME CRETH
(1) Unreasonably refusing to conduct surprise Unsubstantiated
moisture content checks at the subject premises
of a water seepage complaint, change the
case officer and terminate the investigation
(unsubstantiated);
(2) Delay in replying to a staff complaint
(unsubstantiated); and
(3) Failing to reply to telephone calls and voice
messages (inconclusive)
2023/0088A ERRRIBIREF ARDZKER N
Delay in handling the complainant’s seepage case Unsubstantiated
2023/0208A HREMBETHINEY PR AR B EET S 2N A
Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction by Unsubstantiated
miscellaneous articles outside a wholesale market
2023/0503A HEAL TS INEY B AR B EB AT N ava

Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction by
miscellaneous articles outside a wholesale market

g 68 /)r HEFES 2023/24 £

Unsubstantiated

No. of Recom-
mendations
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEREswH EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

18 2R 4w 5% BIREE Overall

Case No. Complaint Conclusion

2023/0824

RATHEIR A BRE XBE IR —FWETN

Ineffective enforcement against street obstruction
caused by unauthorised extension of business area of
a cooked food stall

oA

Unsubstantiated

2023/1195C

REFALGERBRBHGREER - #E  WES
) am 9 i 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of

depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade

KA

Unsubstantiated

2023/2751

BRI R R E

BEE=EESRESHWMEFAZL [EHEIFTAEL
] - BERFANLE
Completing a fixed penalty notice for issuance to

the complainant in the presence of a third party,
prejudicing the privacy of the complainant

Government Logistics Department

2023/0403A

AEBIRFABRSCRBIRTTEARFLER @ E

Lack of positive response to the complainant’s
request for return of Bank Guarantees

BN - BERRRBAE
Government Secretariat - Chief Secretary for Administration’s Office

2023/0135B

BAEE (ARERREREE  BRREE - BEOH
TE) BOEA R R e KB IE R B8 N R PE A IR AR

Failing to follow up on a complaint about flying

faded and damaged national and regional flags in
accordance with the Stipulations for the Display and
Use of the National Flag and National Emblem and the
Regional Flag and Regional Emblem

BRAE - BBR
Government Secretariat - Education Bureau

2022/2969A

RE RSB RS - MAH2019E8RBEHHEE
BENRRER  WBRFAZFERERARAED
MR ERIERER

Failing to provide clear guidelines for schools on the
quarantine requirements for students recovering from
COVID-19, resulting in the complainant’s son being
refused by his school to resume classes due to a new
confirmed case in the family

kAL

Substantiated

IR - BHFE
BAEEK
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found

iy

Partially
substantiated

Partially
substantiated
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RE2EHABREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RIREE
Complaint
IR 4E 47 R /N TR 2023/ 24 B AR B R AT /N —

Unreasonably refusing to allow a primary school
to continue operating Primary One classes in the
2023/24 school year

2023/1747

BRESw

Overall
conclusion

oA

Unsubstantiated

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

BRI BRI/ NETE2023/24 B BRI )N —

Unreasonably refusing to allow a primary school
to continue operating Primary One classes in the
2023/24 school year

BUF#HEE - BREELER
Government Secretariat - Health Bureau

RFANBRAESGRAEBRATRAZRIBENES
S BRERNBETIFERENER - MREBEITE
RMEERAENRE (KL) - AR

2) EREHBERZESemBEBE (THKIL)

(1) The transparency of the follow-up actions taken
after the occurrence of adverse events following
COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn
the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(substantiated); and

(2) Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

BFAIS - REEBFEEKR
Government Secretariat - Home and Youth Affairs Bureau
ERBETHANBAT TEHE AR IEEHNELZE

it3)

2023/1894

2022/3659C (1

2022/3610

Improper and unilateral termination of the Mutual Aid
committee Scheme without prior consultation

BB - RRE
Government Secretariat — Security Bureau

2023/1893(1) BEEEBABRIMRRERERES B AEEENENX

Unreasonably refusing a request for information
relating to daily occupancy of community isolation
facilities

‘ 70 /)r HEFES 2023/24 £
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Unsubstantiated

Partially
substantiated

A

Unsubstantiated

AR - 1B R
BERRK
Unsubstantiated but

other inadequacies
found
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
{El SR 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
BEE
Highways Department
2023/11958B REFALGERBRBHEREER - #E  WES Npava 0
) o B0 A R
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
RBEHHEE
Home Affairs Department
2022/1972A RBEERBREENRABEEINIBER [Dava 3
Improper handling of five graves built outside a Substantiated
permitted burial ground
2022/36928B ERMAMBREREEE —EERB LB EREENS WEF AL - BiE 1
EEENER SHEHEK
Delay in providing information to the Lands Unsubstantiated but
Department regarding an urn suspected to be illegal other inadequacies
hillside burial found
2023/0135A R BT R [E T R A R EMR R IB Y B HE K [ 5E WEF AL+ BiE 1
K3 SHEEK
Failing to take follow-up action at the district level Unsubstantiated but
regarding a complaint about flying faded and other inadequacies
damaged national flags and regional flags found
2023/0208B RBER T PIRIRE M BTSN E AR R TRGSL 0
Failing to take positive steps to coordinate Unsubstantiated
departments’ handling of the irregularities outside a
wholesale market
2023/0503B RBESR TP R IR BTSN E AR R N ava 0
Failing to take positive steps to coordinate Unsubstantiated
departments’ handling of the irregularities outside a
wholesale market
2023/1195E AREBAT BB RERMEIREREL - #es  MES B SL 0
) om Y el 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated

depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
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RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RIREE
Complaint

BEREswH
Overall
conclusion

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

2023/2289A RBHERBIEBNENEIEEML A BT 82 35 M ZN A 0
7 BHHEE 5
Failing to properly handle illegal occupation of Unsubstantiated
Government land by village houses in a village, which
amounted to shirking of responsibility
EEE
Housing Department
2022/2920 (1) BREBHEERERFANRSIRF (HBHKL) DAV 5
(2) RBEEEBEXRBBIRFAZ A [BRFEALE
TR | EHMERR (BKZ) AR
() BREZEZERERFANEARERR (FHHL)
(1) Failing to properly follow up on the noise Partially
complaints lodged by the complainant (partially substantiated
substantiated),
(2) Lack of a written reply to or acknowledgement
of receipt of reports made by the complainant
using the Tenancy Abuse Report Aerogramme
(substantiated); and
(3) Failing to properly follow up on the complainant’s
reports of tenancy abuse (partially substantiated)
2022/3706 (1) SERUMEUBRFARERAELEWEFEAORIEE iGN Ava 2
1 (REFTAK - BRESEREK) - UK
(2) BEZRKEENBEZMZENEARERRE B
BZRARATFRA (KAL)
(1) Mistakenly disqualified the complainant from Partially
bidding for the rental of a shop in a housing substantiated
estate (unsubstantiated but other inadequacies
found); and
(2) Failing to make available to bidders the criteria

SREE 2023/24 £1)

for approving tenders and factors in determining
priority, which was in contrary to the principles
of transparency and fairness (substantiated)



18 5 4 5%
Case No.

2023/0079A

AREBE

Ft%7 Appendix 7

KrEHATRGERNERRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

RIREE
Complaint

RANKRERFAEBMBRELZNFRE - BX
RARBKIRFARRERANAN - ARBMEBRELR
PR (TEZ) - AR
EIREBEMRFARINERAXM  TREER
FAMBLEFENBEFE (THKIL)

Having misled the complainant for a long time
that deletion of her daughter’s residence was
unnecessary, the Department suddenly required
the complainant to submit supporting document
for applying for deletion of her daughter from the
tenancy (unsubstantiated); and

Unreasonably refusing to accept the
complainant’s supporting document and delaying
the handling of the complainant’s application

for deletion of her daughter’s residence
(unsubstantiated)

Immigration Department

2023/2469

(1

KRIFAERFEEFHITREERE - BHRELR
BB - BRATARE  SFIaLEERAMKR
A (PRKIL)

BIfEIREF A LB IR A TN E R - BIFTIDAR R
FATEHREGER (KIL) AR
RUABEBEAIRHFA - MRAREBAMFIE L&
RERA TERE (THKIL)

Failing to inform the complainants that the
photographs they uploaded for applying for
HKSAR passports did not meet the specifications
despite that such photographs were successfully
submitted through the internet (unsubstantiated);
Allowing the complainants to make appointment
bookings for collection of their HKSAR passports
despite that their uploaded photographs did not
meet the specifications (substantiated); and
Informing the complainants that their uploaded
photographs did not meet the specifications

by email only, without calling them as well
(unsubstantiated)

BEREswH EZEE
Overall No. of Recom-
conclusion mendations
Npavi 0
Unsubstantiated

BB AL 2
Partially

substantiated
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RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EREE
{El SR 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
h B4 E
Lands Department
2022/16198B BB BEENE IEEG B BUS 1t BN ERER + 30 & H117T N D AVERKIEY - 2
g IR B NERBIEMSERYE—FRER SHEHEK
FA
Failing to take prompt land enforcement action Unsubstantiated but
against illegal occupation of Government land by a other inadequacies
village house and reply to the complainant about found
the operation of food business at the village house
without payment of regrant premium
2022/1972B RAZERE T RN R RERINEE oavi 0
Improper handling of five graves built outside a Unsubstantiated
permitted burial ground
2022/3692A REERRZECBRFAR-—EEEZBRE LS DAV 1
IEEBERE IR W
Failing to reply to the complainant’s enquiry or report Substantiated
about an urn suspected to be illegal hillside burial in a
timely and appropriate manner
2023/09908 BRBE L ARHE M - EREEERBEN T HAKR B AL 0
I
Delay in handling the flooding problem on a piece of Unsubstantiated
Government land due to the shifting of responsibility
between the Department and the Drainage Services
Department
2023/1195A AERRLGERBRBAGEEER - #eE  WES 2 A 0
) o Y el 78
Failing to resolve the long-standing problem of Unsubstantiated
depositing of construction waste, machines, vessels,
etc. at a waterfront promenade
2023/22898B REEZERBEEBNONEIEE GBS T A ZE RN i SaNava 1
B BEHEEZR
Failing to properly handle illegal occupation of Partially
Government land by village houses in a village, which substantiated

amounted to shirking of responsibility

g 74 /)r HEFES 2023/24 £



Ft%7 Appendix 7

REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

EEdwm EEEHE
B R 4R 5 RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
BRI BESE
Leisure and Cultural Services Department
2022/3487 (1) REEBBKAE TR - ABURF AR XEA il AV 3

—IERIKERNEKE - I EB KBk Z i B Ba Ef
(TRSL) - AR

2) RERBFRBLIKEBREEETERRKIKEA
LT BAREBEERHERE SR (L)

(1) Ineffective patrol at a swimming pool, causing Partially
the complainant to be hit at the head by other substantiated
swimmers under coaching while swimming in
one of the coaching lanes (unsubstantiated); and

(2) Failing to follow the procedures for confining
coaching activities to the designated public
coaching area to separate different types of pool
users (substantiated)

2022/3895(1) ERREAHESZE RS HEENER AR - B 0
SHEMRE
Refusing to provide information of books removed or Unsubstantiated but
withdrawn from public library shelves other inadequacies
found
2023/0522A JE SRS AR R BV BK S B KA WEF KA - BE 1
FSaEHEK
Delay in repairing the hot water supply system for Unsubstantiated but
shower cubicles of a swimming pool other inadequacies
found
2023/2178(1) ERIEHEEBARBERBEANPNELELE RKAL 0
Refusing to provide the list of Chinese books Unsubstantiated
purchased by the Hong Kong Public Libraries
2023/2775A DT EENABESEANNZEEHER - BHNIER ZN AV 0
AR TEENHEAERREMZSOME - alEEM
RABEILRIETA
Unreasonably regarding the complainant’s taking Unsubstantiated

photograph of a book cover for the sake of borrowing
the book later on an infringement of copyright while
allowing readers to photocopy books using the
photocopiers provided by libraries
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RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BRESw

RIREE Overall
Complaint Conclusion

RERFANEEAQBARAR (TKRIL) AR AL

B R 4R 5%
Case No.
REE
Planning Department
2022/4287 (M
)

SREE 2023/24 £1)

RBERRFR RS SRR BRI E R R
B URORAEYEERFANBREEHR (KZ)
ESRBH A RFENBART IR BIERART
RBALTRREERBRAKRERR (TRKIL)
BEEERENATREERARALRESRE
AR EBREMER (TKL)
BRARDERESREFAFBRELNRE  BER
REBEWTHREZI SR (TRL) UKk
BRARFEE WX RAENRAL T IRE
RATER XN - EARIER (TRL)

Inaccurate contents in a written reply to the Partially
complainant (unsubstantiated); substantiated
Failing to upload the supplementary information
of an application for planning permission to

the website in accordance with the procedures
and properly reply to the complainant’s related
enquiries (substantiated);

Unfair procedures for consultation on the
application for planning permission, including
that the public were not given sufficient
opportunity and time to give comments
(unsubstantiated);

Failing to properly handle and publish the views
from the District Council and members of the
public on the application for planning permission
(unsubstantiated);

Submitting or referring the application for
planning permission to the Town Planning Board
for approval without giving due consideration

to whether the application was appropriate
(unsubstantiated); and

Providing only an English version or a Chinese
summary but not a full Chinese version of

the application form and discussion paper,
posing an obstacle to public understanding
(unsubstantiated)

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations
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KrEHATRGERNERRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

B R 4R 5% RFBE
Case No. Complaint
BEREAR

Radio Television Hong Kong

2023/2890(1) EIRE BRI ERN B NERNEK

Unreasonably refusing a request for a copy of its
television programme

tEEAE
Social Welfare Department

2022/2969C BARRBTEE R EEBIRMARIRIES - A
BIRFARFE2019ER RS RRERBRAREDS MK
R BIRBIRH R E R

Failing to provide specific guidelines for subvented
organisations offering after-school care service,
resulting in the complainant’s son being refused such
service by an organisation after his recovery from
COVID-19 due to a new confirmed case in the family

BEREswH EZEE
Overall No. of Recom-
conclusion mendations

2N 0

Unsubstantiated

Partially
substantiated

2023/0079B REHERBRFAREEHEK

Failing to properly handle the complainant’s request
for document

A 0

Unsubstantiated

2023/0291 (1) EREBRFA (FHKLZ) UK
2) REZZREHREZRSNERF (BHKIL)

(1) Delay in giving a reply to the complainant
(partially substantiated); and

(2) Failing to properly handle the complainant’s
complaint against a care home for the elderly
(partially substantiated)

IXE52
Trade and Industry Department
2023/1155 B AETIEAMEOFAINEY - SR E A E

FIZE B R QPRI E AR

Demanding provision of an export licence issued by
the Mainland authority for the import of goods not
requiring such a licence

B A ST 5
Partially

substantiated

Npava 0

Unsubstantiated
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RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

EEdwm EEEHE
B R 4R 5 RIFEE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
EmE
Transport Department
2022/2992 (1) TEHEEBRFARBEETHRESMEHMERE B P IL 2
ALEERFE (RFIKY - BEESEHRE) U
&
) HwEFARNBRERER (FHKL)
(1) Improper handling of the complainant’s Partially
application for postponement of driving substantiated
test for compliance with a quarantine order
(unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found);
and
(2) Its reply to the complainant had error and
omission (partially substantiated)
2022/3119 & Hh R A A SR RS 57 A TN B RC B B A B R B S 4B B R - E#E 5
FHE SERE
Improper disclosure of the Certificate of Particulars Unsubstantiated but
of Vehicle of a vehicle registered in the complainant’s other inadequacies
name found
2022/3139 (1) ERBITEFIEWMELIRBIAE (THL) N ava 0
(2) BAEREFASINAEANBRAOHANE (TKL)
(3) BUESREANBABABASINEE (TKIL)
LA K
(4) EEIFHEEETEZRKIRGAEBESZIRNE G
B THDAEKRE (TAL)
(1) Delay in holding an auction of Personalised Unsubstantiated

Vehicle Registration Marks (unsubstantiated);

(2) Giving a very short notice to applicants for
notifying them to participate in the auction
(unsubstantiated);

(3) Using Registered Mail as the only means to
notify applicants to participate in the auction
(unsubstantiated); and

(4) Shifting to the Post Office the responsibility
of postmen not requiring recipients to sign to
acknowledge receipt of mail items during the
pandemic (unsubstantiated)

;,g 78 ) BIREE 2023/24 F3]
\ 4
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEREswH EZEE
18 2R 4w 5% BIREE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
2022/3263 () TEHEEBRFAREETRHESMEHMERE B AL 2
AIEH R (RFTKY - ERESEHRK) MU
&

2) REUERTEREAETRESMBESHNE L
B RBEEHIEHRE (KL)

(1) Improper handling of the complainant’s Partially
application for postponement of driving substantiated
test for compliance with an isolation order
(unsubstantiated but other inadequacies found);
and

(2) Inconsistent handling of applications for
postponement of driving test submitted by
candidates under isolation and quarantine orders
(substantiated)

2022/3299 NEHEBIRFARBETREES MBEHMEREZHIT N ava 0
HAFR G
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Unsubstantiated

for postponement of driving test for compliance with
an isolation order

2022/3507 NEHEBRFARBETRESMBHMEREZHIT RKAL 0
HAER G
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Unsubstantiated

for postponement of driving test for compliance with
an isolation order

2022/3547 NEMERRFARBEFRESNERS MR LR i 52N ava 2
SrEATHRE
Improper handling of the complainant’s application Partially
for postponement of driving test for compliance with substantiated
quarantine and isolation orders

2022/3855 BREZEREB A ERMARZEHES [ AEL BB A AL 0
BEEE] Al EHENAEN AR E
Failing to properly deal with the problem of someone Partially

making profit by applying for other people for permits substantiated
under the “Driving on Lantau Island Scheme”

2022/4357 REEFTAEREIE R E/2022/23F E B LB R5T S N 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated

Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district
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HEHEAER

HRHOE=RRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

RIREE
Complaint

BEREswH EZEE
Overall No. of Recom-
conclusion mendations

2023/0044 RALETAZERRIE X E#92022/23F [E B K &5 2 N avi 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated
Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district

2023/0064 REEFTAZERE IR R /2022/23F £ B LB 43513 TRGSL 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated
Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district

2023/0070 REZEREBANSRATEZ T EBLERS [ KIE B3 AL 0
B RSl A BN BRI EE AT R
Failing to properly deal with the problem of someone Partially
allegedly using illegitimate means to grab the quotas substantiated
for permits to be issued under the “Driving on Lantau
Island Scheme” to make profit

2023/0251 FREFAN [ 5B17] WAL - UREBERIEFA [pava 0
FH2 [ 5817 REPOMEEREL
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated
course of mail delivery and unreasonably requesting
the complainant to visit an HKeToll customer service
centre for a replacement

2023/0302 RALETAZERRIE X E792022/23F [F B K &5 2 2N AV 0
Failing to apply the prescribed criteria to handle the Unsubstantiated
Bus Route Planning Programme 2022/23 for a district

2023/0410 FREFAN [ BT WAL - LR [ H@TT] B3 [pava 0
| AN TR E
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated
course of mail delivery and failing to answer the
complainant’s call to the HKeToll hotline and reply to
the complaint

2023/0419 FRIGFAR [ Hi@TT] BEHHaL [pAva 0
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated
course of mail delivery

2023/0441 FREFAN [ @17 WAL - LUKk [ H@7T] B3 [pAava 0
mAEE
Losing the complainant’s HKeToll Vehicle Tag in the Substantiated

course of mail delivery and failing to answer the
complainant’s call to the HKeToll hotline

g 80 /)r HEFES 2023/24 £
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REEHAEREEZNERZRS
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

BEER EEEHE
{El SR 4R 557 RFBE Overall No. of Recom-
Case No. Complaint Conclusion mendations
2023/0560 BEREERFAN [ 5B17] BEHELAE #h93 AL 0
Omitting to handle the complainant’s application for Partially
an HKeToll Vehicle Tag substantiated
2023/0696 () FHFEABREARBEMRPINBE R RERER B3 A AL 1

202354 R BIH) - M ACRRRF 102023558 4 /]
B/ BEHEEEW T EZMN2023F2 AR
MFTECER RS - M Al HZFME A T AR T
—HWEE (BHKIL)

2 REAERERBAKBAEDEN=F  ERRESE
KB (RBZ) - AR

(3) RAERBEMEA ERAB ARHAREERER A
1EBR - MBEBRRETEERNPEA - BEST
BER (TKIL)

(1) Unreasonably refusing to accept the Partially
complainant’s new application, which was made substantiated
in February 2023, for Hong Kong and Macao
cross-boundary private cars quota despite
that his existing quota would expire in April
2023 while the new quotas could only be used
starting from May 2023 the earliest, and giving
inconsistent replies to the complainant’s queries
(partially substantiated);

(2) Beingrigid and inflexible in processing quota
applications by not allowing automatic renewal
of quotas, in view of the pandemic, for 3 years
(unsubstantiated); and

(3) Failing to require applicants to provide relevant
information for screening purpose before
drawing ballots, resulting in the appearance
of many successful but ineligible applicants
and reduced administrative efficiency
(unsubstantiated)

2023/1631 TR AR FIMAUE - DESEHBTEE e FERNEKAL + (B 2
SHEHE
Sending letters to the complainant’s previous address Unsubstantiated but
despite that he had already updated his address other inadequacies
found

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 1(\81 /)w

T



Kt4%7 Appendix 7

RrEAERERNERZRL
Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

18 5 4 5%
Case No.

2023/1790 M

RFEE
Complaint

[ZB1T] FREEEALHEER [MEAKE ]
WA - BERFINHER [ZR1T] ZEMWE
B (PRL) AR
REZZRIERAF AL ERE A EROFERIENR
RBREER - UEBERE [MUEAKE ] 0ERSE
mEH (L)

Extending the implementation of HKeToll to other
tunnels even though HKeToll system often failed
to read the Driver Card of the two-piece device
(unsubstantiated); and

Failing to properly handle the complainant’s
feedback on reading of the Driver Card and
Vehicle Tag and enquiry about the coverage of
the two-piece device (substantiated)

BEREswH
Overall
conclusion

iy

Partially
substantiated

EZEE
No. of Recom-
mendations

2023/2765 (1

[ZBIT] ZARRFEEARERARS  SRBEE
ARBEIHPAME (TKIZ) ARk
[5@1T] BRRBERELELRIRFAFR LM
RENER (RL)

Tunnel fee had to be deducted from the vehicle
owner’s account because HKeToll system often
failed to read the Driver Card (unsubstantiated);
and

Failure by HKeToll Hotline staff to properly
answer the complainant’s enquiry about the
above-mentioned problem (substantiated)

Partially
substantiated

2023/2873(1) (1

SREE 2023/24 £1)

BREEARERBRMINITRTE N ERHE
BER (PRL) - AR
AR E BRI AM (KS)

Refusing to provide information about driving
instructors in breach of traffic regulations or
involving misconduct (unsubstantiated); and
Failing to update the name list of driving
instructors in a timely manner (substantiated)

Partially
substantiated
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KrEHATRGERNERRS

Index of Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

Part 2 : Public Organisations

18 5 4w 5%
Case No.

BREER
Hospital Authority

2022/36598B (M
)
(1M

RFEE
Complaint

BFARXBEGHAZBIERE ZRHENE
BEM FRERNBREIERTNER MRS
BB E RAENRE (TR AR

ERERERZE MBI E (THKIL)

The transparency of the follow-up actions taken

after the occurrence of adverse events following
COVID-19 immunisation of the complainant’s
late father was extremely low, and that there
was no channel for family members to learn

the follow-up actions taken by the authorities
(unsubstantiated); and

Refusal to provide the causality assessment by
the Expert Committee (unsubstantiated)

TEERR
Urban Renewal Authority

(1) EEEBEE [AFRALHEEBEME R
2] TREGEIRNERERSBNTES

A (TEAL) - AR

LIRS TR MRS RBE (RFTK
Y BEERERK)

Unreasonably refusing to disclose the actual
amount and the computation of a grant for a
maintenance works project under the Building
Maintenance Grant Scheme for Needy Owners
(unsubstantiated); and

Offering a grant amount too small for a
maintenance works project (unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies found)

2023/1886A

2

BB
Vocational Training Council

BRAERBEIRBE (CRFERSTAD BRIEABEREER
FRONRIMEHER

Failing to handle a request for information regarding
a film footage in accordance with the Code on
Access to Information adopted by the Vocational
Training Council

2023/2455(R)

B
Overall
conclusion

EEEA
No. of Recom-
mendations

Unsubstantiated

BEFIARAL - BHE 1
ABBRK

Unsubstantiated but
other inadequacies
found

Dk

N ava 1

Partially
substantiated
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KerHAEREERNEREEER
Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full

Investigation

BLEE - HBERRUEENE

BRERNXTHIEFHES
in alphabetical order

Department of Health, Education Bureau and Social Welfare Department

5>  ®4«®EDH

= #BERKR#E EDB and SWD

RHIBRESREEEALTEXARRBEDHORE
RERZHRREW

RFAMEBRFERD2019BRESREERE
FERABRZHED - HERIE R DRI R R ER
e ([RFE] ) PLEBRERTERS - BFA
RFFEZREARR R EMEFIFEEEA L
EERORRLSE  HERRMERMNE ( [
F| ) TWRAR LRER D BIR SR RFEF O IE
HEERES -

RENAERE  FLEEEEBTRREENEH
RIGLEERREN (BEREEALAERAER
By MEFHRERE)  EBHER HE FH2
RERFFLANREZTEZZRE LRLTH - RER
B BEBERAENABRBALRREEHRE
Al °

HERBEAMBEREHR (BRERES) - AIRE

BRI REYH LAEREARENRESEBL SR
AESIA - ZHRINER : HERRREHRMBER
REFLBEIT2ERFEHERONHRIES - 2F
R LM B P REER [ B AR T D EE A
B REs REHERES -

' REFEE 2023/24 £

SN B
AN DAY

AN Unsubstantiated

Partially substantiated

Unclear quarantine and class resumption
arrangements for COVID-19 recovered persons
when their family members were subsequently
tested positive

The complainant’s two sons, recovered from COVID-19,
had been denied by the school to resume class and a After
School Care Programme Centre ("ASCP Centre”) to receive
ASCP service due to their family member tested positive
subsequently. The complainant complained against the
Department of Health (“DH") for failing to explain to the
public and other government departments the quarantine
arrangement for recovered persons in the above situation;
the Education Bureau ("EDB") and the Social Welfare
Department (“SWD") had also failed to provide clear
guidelines for the above situations to schools and ASCP
Centres respectively.

Our investigation revealed that DH did disseminate
information about the COVID-19 epidemic and isolation/
quarantine arrangements through different channels,
including that a recovered person is not required to undergo
quarantine even if their family members have tested positive
subsequently. Yet, EDB, SWD, the School and the ASCP
Centre had failed to fully grasp the above arrangements.
We considered that DH should examine how to disseminate
anti-epidemic information to the public effectively.

Although EDB had issued the “Health Protection Measures
for Schools” (“the Measures”) to schools, it failed to
foresee parents may have queries on the above situation
and incorporate the relevant arrangements into the above
Measures timely, which we considered unsatisfactory.
SWD had also only asked ASCP Centres to heed and refer
to the relevant guidelines provided by the Centre for
Health Protection generally. We considered that EDB and
SWD should promptly provide schools and ASCP Centres
with clear guidelines and update relevant guidelines and
documents.
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HEHATREZNERRRER

Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

FEE

Department of Health

L

[

HE ER 3 [6) — % 5 7B SRS SREE 1R T 3 Hh 58 AR
STRIBERSH

#4£2 DH FXsZ  Substantiated

BN Tm - BEIIBRERT ( [IME] ) #
20225 AIE R BEBREE X 2019 R RS HmEY
SRR - R AFE TR GRAE fliER A
= ( [eiEd] ) ERTERR - EZR D3
R bRl < M BRI IREE 1 -

RENRASERBMFR AR OFRIENH —
BERARBKRAERE - TBELZEEENRAIP
DEAT HRAOIMEEIRRT - BBEUREHRREUL
BEETE » HRRIENER T EHARFARE
RIMBEBIRARE - BREENZRERER
ExcellBRZ AZRMM - METHEROBRIR
REXCEERTRITM B RITHIME B - ZEE
Y8 VBB R R R F] BE SRR M AG B B Y 45 5| AN B M K
MEEREHI R © i - REHERIIERTERIBER
EHRHIRAS - RIREZIDE AW BIET SRR E
Moaslillomm R TAENERZRELE -

COVID-19 - '
swab sample +[]

Mistakenly issuing Compulsory Testing Order
and follow-up letters to a foreign domestic
helper arriving in Hong Kong

The complainants® were dissatisfied that despite the foreign
domestic helper having taken the specified COVID-19 test as
confirmed by the case officer of the Compulsory Testing
Prosecution Office (“CTPQ") under the Department of Health
("DH"), CTPO still issued a Compulsory Testing Order (“CTQ")
and two follow-up letters to the helper arriving in Hong Kong
from her country of origin in May 2022.

Our investigation found that the whole incident was caused
by a series of human errors in a test centre and CTPO.
The test centre, which was not under DH’s management,
input a wrong passport number of the foreign domestic
helper into the test record system, resulting in follow-up
actions by CTPO. Subsequently, despite that the CTPO case
officer confirmed with the complainants that the helper
had complied with the testing requirements, the officer
had repeatedly failed to update the case status in the Excel
file, which was a crucial step for case curtailment as the
Excel file was the master record for CTPO's future actions.
The officer’s failure to update the Excel file might be due
to unclear guideline to staff or insufficient staff training on
updating case status. We also found that CTPO had delayed
taking follow-up action on the CTO, suggesting that there was
no mechanism in CTPO to monitor the progress of follow-up
on outstanding cases of suspected non-compliance.

A | BEEsEmnES

@ o HIMBBRHKREERERE

o WMFBBEEHE R R A E
AR AIIES| - WANRAERI A B B

=l

s M EKMEABERARRABYE
TVR3EZ HOHE I

Recommendations to DH
e Provide a written confirmation for the conclusion of the
helper’s case

e Review the guideline and strengthen staff training on
properly updating test records and case status

e Review and enhance the mechanism of monitoring
progress of similar enforcement action in future

L —RIMERER TR EET

Note 1.

A foreign domestic helper and her employer
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Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

KEIREE

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

L

[

ERERRERERERNZEZHREESR

HEE EMSD

#BD X

BRFATHKRETRE ( [REE] ) BE2FRM
PEHENEREREREN  RRZENBIIE
REFERBERNEATRE

RFAM  thEEBEZZRABEFRIMRE
BERRNZE2RRER - 2R BEZERKRHFA
BERREN RTABEFERK MARAFHA
REMR - ZFRBRFAREIEINERREE
REREEHBEHNCERNALERBERE -
BBBEZLTMEMERBIEN -EAFRAEH
B ZBRBFANBBREAETR - MEZNHE -
EETEBLRIZEHE  TERSRENEBEF
AMEREE - REALTRELROE ©

HAENELR  ER—HAF  BEAZRRFAR
RORBEERIR (B3 LmR) SiRlER - 8
BERAREREMNRHTEN  SRFARSE
BERAEERIMEH -

AERBRBEAERTMERE -
GEEBEEERRRARNDE -

B - A

, wme
REFEE 2023/24 £

Partially substantiated

Repeated requests for information on electrical
products regarding safety requirements

The complainant was dissatisfied with the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department’s ("EMSD"”) repeated
requests for information concerning the electrical
products he sold. He considered the handover of work
and communication between EMSD staff ineffective and
inefficient.

Allegedly, upon EMSD’s request, the complainant provided
Staff A with information concerning the safety requirements
of two models of smart toilet seats. However, one month
later, Staff B contacted the complainant for the information
again due to Staff A's inadequate handover of work before
his retirement. EMSD claimed that Staff B's request was
justified because the complainant’s initial submission could
not prove that the products had been issued with safety
compliance certificates prior to the relevant date. However,
our investigation revealed deficiency in the communication
between EMSD and the complainant. EMSD’s explanation
that its staff should refrain from disclosing fine details of
irregularities to suspects when collecting evidence for
prosecution was unconvincing.

Our investigation also found that on a separate occasion,
Staff C of EMSD requested the complainant to provide safety
certificates of four models of smart toilet seats (including
the two mentioned above) without specifying his need for
the latest product information. Therefore, the complainant
mistook it as a duplicated request.

We recommended that EMSD state clearly and explicitly
the information required when reaching out to industry
practitioners.
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REREE

Environmental Protection Department

> TRk

[

S 0 ) 4 SR AR 6 OO B - RRER N BV BAOK AT

R{R¥ EPD

RFATEMEDRR LR (N8 TARR] A [BREJ )
RERFREE ( [BRREF] ) BURRREES
B ERZEBRETRNEEIRR -

RiE CERSREERD) - RELBAERERA
BRRIERTFER - REFAEHR - AREEM
RABRIDAEE  RRBCBSERERE B
BETRATHERE - BHERSRHEBEAN « B4
ZRMERIE BREEHSF - ERTEPIALER
BZEEREREENRELIR - BRNZLEERIE
FhE R IR AR B R A OR IR B R LT LA - RIBAR
BRI MIRE LR EEEER X -

REFHERAF/RFRECREBEREMRTHE
HHIRIUD BAEE T8 - AR IEAREEEE—
E RBRBRIZEBESHP MEARETHRE
B2 °

Unsubstantiated

Enforcement actions against two concrete
batching plants operating without a valid licence

The complainant alleged that two concrete batching plants
(referred to as “Plant A" and “Plant B") were still in operation
despite the Environmental Protection Department’s
("EPD") revocation of their licences. He queried EPD for not
intervening and shutting down these plants.

According to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the
operation of concrete batching plants requires a valid
Specified Process Licence (“SPL"). Our investigation revealed
that EPD had taken various follow-up actions against Plant
A’s operation without a valid SPL, including conducting
frequent inspections, issuing an Air Pollution Abatement
Notice, initiating multiple prosecutions, obtaining an
injunction order, etc. However, the current legislation did
not empower EPD to shut down an unlicensed concrete
batching plant. Regarding Plant B, the operator was
appealing against EPD’s decision of not renewing its SPL.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the SPL remained valid
during the appeal process.

After investigation, we considered EPD to have taken
necessary and appropriate actions to tackle Plant A's
unlicensed operation according to its jurisdiction and
the existing regulatory regime. There was no evidence
suggesting inaction or maladministration on the part of EPD
in the incident.
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Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

RYUBRRFALEERRBEBAE

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department and Home Affairs Department

L

)

HEMBHEHNRWEERESBENRE

MERFATHRYREFEE ( [RRE] ) &
RBEHKEE ( [REBREE] ) REFEARKELE
AR RUBETISHITABMERAAELFE R
MYEKBE  URAEHUWEREEMEKBA
BEZME -

NEFEER  RRFAMRMEVAETHE  BFEE
FEREBREDNBETE  ZFTSNB L1186
0N REMBE TS —FRERFRT BE—REE
FL7E300 ABRZEHAIR REEN [RR]
BB SRELREARE [RIR]  ZBERERH
CEAERREETIAEBTLE  RBAZEREEE
e htEEEZERFENEIWILBENIZNE
o AMERETEEHE -

NERR MEARLERZ O BESRERER
B RFAEREMSRGR EEERHIIERE
REEHBBTE  MEREETVEERIRE

BHRE - REMT  RFREGEERELMLED
5 DRUERARE

HIFEE 2023/24 FR

BREREMR#ZE FEHD and HAD T5¢/ Unsubstantiated

Follow-up on obstruction and noise problems
caused by a wholesale market

Two complainants were discontented with the failure of
the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (“FEHD")
and the Home Affairs Department ("HAD") in resolving the
problems of street obstruction caused by large quantities
of waste and miscellaneous articles deposited on the
pavements and carriageways in the vicinity of a wholesale
market and the excessive noise generated by electric pallet
trucks used for moving the goods around from night to early
morning.

Our investigation revealed that: FEHD had taken enforcement
actions against the street obstruction, including conducting
joint operations with the Hong Kong Police Force; FEHD
would not provide cleansing services in the wholesale
market area after 11:30 pm but would normally clear the
rubbish and remove the unattended pallets in the area by
7:30 am; FEHD had initiated a disciplinary inquiry into a
suspected disciplinary case involving some workers who
collected pallets for others and reminded them to behave
properly; HAD had discussed the situation of the wholesale
market with stakeholders through the District Council and
the District Management Committee and communicated
with the traders for publicity and education purposes.

We considered FEHD and HAD to have by and large
followed up on the problems according to their purview;
the Government had to strike a balance between the night-
time operation of the wholesale market and its impacts on
the nearby residents; FEHD and HAD should keep a close
watch and follow up on the problems, while the Government
should closely monitor the problems and proactively
consider relocating the wholesale market as a long-term
solution.
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Health Bureau, Department of Health and Hospital Authority
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REEHERERHRARERRNBERES
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BRIFARFBFE BEEXBEBHERE LR
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BHEEDEA BRI EERBAENZZENT
RRERBORERF  HEBERERLEHKIH
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ReEEEAIRR - FERIARIES - —12F
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RHERE - RERR - EREBFFEARNMG
BENZRNERLEREE  TREFREZEREZE
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FHIEFFINAKHIA o
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B&R/ HHB B3R AT
TEsZ  Unsubstantiated

Partially substantiated

Reporting of unexpected serious adverse events
following immunisation with COVID-19 vaccines

The complainant complained that the transparency of the
follow-up actions of authorities after the report of serious
adverse events following immunisation with COVID-19
vaccines of her late father was extremely low. There was no
channel for family members to learn the follow-up actions
taken by the authorities, and the authorities had refused to
provide the causality assessment by the Expert Committee.

The findings of our investigation revealed that after the
Hospital Authority (“HA") had reported the case of the
complainant’s father to the Department of Health (“DH"), and
after DH had notified HA of the relevant causality assessment
results in accordance with the prevailing handling
mechanism, as the then mechanism did not include the
procedure of notifying individual affected persons and their
families of the results, HA did not contact the complainant
thereafter. In addition, the Health Bureau (“HHB") and DH
started to put in place a mechanism more than a year after
the commencement of the Vaccination Programme to
standardise the procedures for applicants to pay a fee to
DH for obtaining the required assessment reports prepared
by the Expert Committee. Our Office is of the view that the
authorities were slow in handling the applicants’ request for
the assessment reports and did not explain that the Expert
Committee does not have the relevant reports, thus giving
the applicants the impression that the Department had
refused to provide the relevant information. HA and DH have
now incorporated the procedures for requesting assessment
reports into the mechanism.

A | mEsEEmnES

@ e ZBERNEBEEENPBEEEHE
BT REF O EAREETE
ERWOEF - WEHAIEBEES - 8
THRENEZEAEMEAANBRERE
BIRITHHIREERE

Recommendation to HHB

e To provide information on the handling of enquiries
about adverse events following vaccination on the
thematic webpage and to strengthen the relevant
guidelines to instruct staff and healthcare professionals
to clearly explain to enquirers the operational flow of
the existing mechanism
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MU FFREEEZBEELBRRE - XD
ERFEREMBAREZREMFNERD BB -
ZEIEM -

£l
%_
=
==

, ‘ wme
REFEE 2023/24 £

Unsubstantiated

Government'’s decision to terminate the Mutual
Aid Committee (“MAC"”) Scheme

The complainant was dissatisfied with the decision of the
former Home Affairs Bureau (“"HAB") to terminate the MAC
Scheme without proper consideration and consultation.

Our investigation revealed that public consultation is not
mandatory in the decision-making process under the
Government'’s prevailing policy. The Government would
decide whether prior public consultation is necessary
after considering the background and needs of individual
policies. Since the termination of the MAC Scheme would
have profound impacts on MACs and the residents they
represented, it was reasonable for the stakeholders to
expect the Government’s prior consultation with them
before making a decision. While the Bureau had considered
relevant factors (e.g. the roles, functions and number of
MACs, communication channels between the Government
and residents) before deciding to terminate the MAC
Scheme, it did not conduct any open consultation to collect
stakeholders’ views. Instead, the Bureau provided all MACs
with a post factum explanation for its decision. This might
have fallen short of the expectation of some stakeholders
who expected the Government’'s consultation prior to
making important decisions.

In sum, we do not consider the former HAB's decision to
terminate the MAC Scheme without prior consultation
as violating the Government'’s established policies and
procedures. The Bureau had considered comprehensive
information before making the decision. No information
revealed that the MAC Scheme was terminated without
proper consideration. However, it would have been more
desirable if the Government had communicated with various
MACs and stakeholders thoroughly before making the
decision.



Ff$%8 Appendix 8

HEHATREZNERRRER

Summaries of Selected Cases Concluded by Full Investigation

FEE

Housing Department
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Tendering arrangement for the lease of a shop
in a housing estate

The complainant submitted a rental tender for a shop
designated as “plumbing and electrical repair” in a housing
estate, but the tender was rejected by the Housing
Department (“HD") because he was already running a
shop providing the same services in that housing estate.
He alleged that the Special Conditions of Tender of the
shop did not specify that tenders from tenderers operating
the same trade in the housing estate concerned might
be rejected. He was dissatisfied that HD had mistakenly
considered his tender being in violation of the conditions
and disqualified him from bidding for the lease of the
shop, and tenderers had no way or access to ascertain
HD’s criteria for approving tenders and the factors to be
considered in determining priority.

Our investigation revealed that, on prevention of monopoly,
the relevant guidelines of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
stipulate that where this is a second shop available for
operating an existing trade in a housing estate, it should
not be leased to the operator running the same trade in
the estate if possible. Nevertheless, the existing tenant
might be granted the tenancy if no other tenderers offer a
reasonable tendered rent for the shop. In this case, HD had
not disqualified the complainant from bidding. However,
when HD informed him that the failure of his tender
was due to “inappropriacy”, it might have caused him to
misunderstand that he had been disqualified from bidding.
Our investigation also revealed that HD had failed to explain
clearly to tenderers the principle and practice of prevention
of monopoly in the tender process, which led to disputes
and complaints. Moreover, the tendering documents of the
shop did not mention to tenderers the criteria adopted in
scrutinising tenders and factors in determining priority. In
our view, not making available to tenderers the principles
for approving tenders is against HD's intention to enable
reasonable, fair and transparent tender exercises.

AEEZRHNES
o RIVANMKRBEBRRERORLT
I @RS ERR

s ZETRBB/ABEREBEARFEERAZ
U7 7 A B S B D L BT O R B
LEZEERNEMCEBEER

Recommendations to HD

e Review the description of tender results in the
notification letter to tenderers to avoid misunderstanding

e Consider explaining to tenderers through proper
channels the general principle of prevention of
monopoly and considerations pertinent to the vetting
of tenders for leasing shops
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FIREE 2023/24 3

Handling of the application for postponing a
driving test by a candidate under isolation order

The complainant and his wife had to postpone their driving
tests since they had to comply with an isolation order" (“10")
and a quarantine order? (“QQ") respectively. The complainant
was dissatisfied that the Transport Department (“TD")
rejected his application and considered his application to
have been made on medical grounds despite that he had
clearly pointed out that he was asymptomatic. Meanwhile,
TD rescheduled his wife's test. The complainant was
dissatisfied that TD handled applications by candidates
having to comply with 10 and QO in different ways.

Our investigation revealed that TD initially handled the
applications for postponement by candidates having to
comply with 10 or QO by regarding both as applications
made due to circumstances beyond the candidates’ control
leading to their being unable to attend for the tests. It only
accepted those applications made by candidates who were
holding Test Forms which were still valid on the end-of-list
appointment dates and allocated end-of-list appointments
to the candidates as the new test appointments. Upon
review, TD made special arrangements for candidates who
had to comply with QO: it allocated to them earlier test
appointments with waiting time about half of that of end-
of-list appointments and allowed them to purchase new
Test Forms if their Test Forms would have expired by the
new test appointments. Meanwhile, TD considered that
the complainant’s application for postponement was made
on medical grounds since he was confirmed to have been
infected with COVID-19.

Notes:

1.
2.

Issued to infected persons during the pandemic
Issued to close contacts of infected persons, inbound persons, etc.
during the pandemic
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We consider it not unreasonable of TD to have rejected
the complainant’s application since his Test Form would
have expired by the new test appointment. Nevertheless,
it could not explain clearly why it handled the two types of
applications in different ways. Moreover, we consider TD's
saying that candidates had made applications on medical
grounds had caused misunderstanding or disputes. The key
point for handling applications for postponement under the
relevant legislation is whether the candidates are through
circumstances beyond their control unable to attend for
tests. TD actually did not need to delineate whether the
candidates had made applications on medical grounds.

MEmERHNES

WIBEMER  BRAFEREME
ZHE [FEEPTEEEHMIER] R
B I ER R

mREE [SEEmEEH BRI
ROCHFEFNEENEELE -
MRS EREVEIERMEER
%

Recommendations to TD

e To review the approval criteria to ensure that
applications for postponement made due to
circumstances beyond the candidate’s control are
handled in a fair manner

e To review the content of its written reply to
candidates making applications for postponement
due to circumstances beyond their control to avoid
misunderstanding and to note that proper explanation
should be given
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Partially substantiated

Handling of an application for cross-boundary
private cars quota

The complainant alleged that the Transport Department
("TD") unreasonably refused to accept his new application
made in February 2023 for a Hong Kong and Macao cross-
boundary private cars quota, despite that the quota he
held would expire in April 2023 while the new quotas could
only be used starting from May 2023 the earliest. He also
alleged that TD was rigid in processing quota applications,
by not allowing automatic renewal of quotas, in view of the
pandemic, for 3 years, and failed to require applicants to
provide relevant information for screening purposes before
drawing ballots for successful applicants, resulting in many
ineligible applicants getting selected and the lowering of
administrative efficiency.

TD agreed that if an applicant’s original quota would have
expired before the expected effective date of the new
guota, the holder should be eligible for applying for a new
quota. In this light, TD would change to use the expected
effective date of the new quotas instead of using the closing
date of application to determine whether an applicant is a
current quota holder. We consider TD's previous decision
unreasonable, but are glad to learn that TD had reviewed it
and decided to make the said change.

Regarding other allegations, TD explained that re-allocation
of quotas upon expiry through open application aims
at benefiting more people, and the current application
vetting procedures can obviate the need for processing a
huge number of unsuccessful applications and thus save
manpower. We accept TD’'s explanation.

Ay, | DERBRHNES

@ s EBREFEEWRERR EHBAED
RERBERAANERAN A&
LR AR A R EERA
H

Recommendation to TD

e To implement as soon as possible the improvement
measure of using the expected effective date of the new
guotas to determine whether an applicant was a quota
holder, rather than using the closing date of application

' HFE B 2023/24 T3
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Substantiated

Loss of vehicle tags in the post and arrangement
for implementation of HKeToll

The complainant, when applying for renewal of vehicle
licence, applied for a HKeToll vehicle tag (“the vehicle
tag”) concurrently. He complained against the Transport
Department (“TD") for losing his vehicle tag in the post, and
that the Toll Service Provider (“TSP") staff had unreasonably
suggested him to visit a service outlet for re-issuance of
vehicle tag, wasting his time.

TD explained that due to an error in the computer programme
instructions, some applicants’ mailing addresses could
not be completely transferred from the Department’s
computer system to the HKeToll system, resulting in the
loss of the vehicle tags in the post. TD admitted that there
are inadequacies on the part of TSP for suggesting the
complainant to re-apply for the vehicle tag in person. TD had
subsequently taken improvement measures with TSP and
apologised to the complainant in this regard.

Besides, TD started accepting registered vehicle owners’
("RVOs") application for vehicle tags back in November
2021, but only issued the vehicle tags in January 2023 when
announcing that HKeToll would be implemented in February
in the same year. Such arrangement had caused a sudden
surge in applications for vehicle tags and enquiries from RVOs
within a short time, which exceeded the TSP’s capacity. The
arrangement was not satisfactory. The incident reflected
that there was no buffer reserved for handling unforeseeable
events in TD's plan. We urge TD to learn from this case. It
should set a reasonable schedule for implementing new
transport schemes/measures in future, and announce the
details as soon as possible.
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in alphabetical order

FNEHD  PEPIAMEERABETEIDRATTHR RN NEEEE
Part 1. Examples of Improvement Measures Introduced by Departments and Organisations Following Our Direct
Investigation Operations

g (EXRER) bl
Organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BRENERE s RUBFVR EEBEZHAETFRERIMNEMRRGF I (4)
Agriculture, Fisheries and NEFAREERARFARLNEMREDERE

Conservation Department Established an electronic platform for submitting

(DI1/445) applications for dog licence by veterinary clinics on behalf

of their clients and notifying dog keepers directly of
licence issuance by electronic means

o HEMEMRIHN  AFREATVABIAEEEARENM (4)
EEAEER

To remind dog keepers to renew dog licences through
Short Message Service before expiry of the licences

EFERMBEE EF%Z BD

Bulldings Department ("BD") & . EHARRAEREEAERESHEROEE  ABREE )
Lands Department (“LandsD") i
<
ez To regularly provide LandsD with a list of cases with
information outstanding for monitoring information
exchange

o HLEHAREESEF ( [FANE] ) BEUHOBERE ()
52
Simplified the enforcement procedures for dealing with
unauthorised building works (“UBWs") in New Territories
Exempted Houses (“NTEHS")

o BEUHMETIA  BEMRARRKALERS - AR ()
BRI AR LIERIE
Established a new e-platform for submission of all work
reports by consultants and for facilitating the monitoring of
their performance

o  BREBERNBHRER LM MES LA TIEST L RERER (5)
TE - WER S N EBER SR M
Specified a time frame for registration of outstanding
removal orders with the Land Registry and established a
mechanism for internal monitoring

o EEBREFEREGENBRNESR P RMUESNIA LR (%)
ANEER - KEEEINERDESR
Priority of prosecution accorded to cases of persistent
non-compliance with removal orders, cases involving
NTEHSs of four or more storeys, or UBWS under
construction

g )r FiIREE 2023/24 3
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organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

o  TREMRFEEEMPEERENERER (7)
To publicise convicted cases with heavy penalties through
social media from time to time

M= Both Departments

o  RUBIMFIEKNE  REFEAFTANEBREYNER )
Set up an inter-departmental liaison group to follow up on
matters relating to UBWS in NTEHS

Rz o HEARMFEEXEMRMBABITHIERES - WIHBE MERE Q)
Civil Aviation Department AR VEFH
(DI1/449) Drew up collaborative guidelines with major local

paragliding associations and help them revise their
operational manuals at appropriate time

s HEENABAERRBARIDIMRBHRFERTELR & )
REMEZ2AEBERSTIRENBERTZ2E
To collate and analyse information from the perspective
of civil aviation safety for the Police’s reference before
referring complaint cases on allegedly illegal paragliding
activities or services to the latter for follow-up

o HIEEIIABEEFEEMRENREBENEZEEER 2)
Formulated a guideline to facilitate the Police’s handling of
paragliding-related reports and incidents

o  EBITTHIRHEAMEMREBBIEHTEARZHERLE ()
Aol E
Implemented real-name registration scheme for
paragliding activities in collaboration with local paragliding
associations

s REERZZINBARRITERICTEME: REDRIZTE - A (5)
EMPIRE AR EER LREI R RER
Assigned registration numbers to registered paraglider
pilots and made labels for them to affix to their paraglider
equipment to display their numbers

o ABIRERGRATRESRSN  UEEMEHIERSIZEK ()
ETEIRENAS  TeARERASEREHEHEEDLR
pics
Prepared investigation report templates for paragliding
associations for their investigation of paragliding accidents
and incidents in accordance with the requirements of
collaborative guidelines, and will take further follow-up
action together with law enforcement agencies based on
the investigation results
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o TEHIRS R AHIREE MR EREHOEFIOEKE - R ()
RABRART Al 5B 15 B AR AR = AR TS ) B R (E
To carry out regular on-site inspections of the operations
of paragliding air services provided by relevant permit
holders at the hotspots of such services

o BESEREA  LIERARENEAREHLE RAFAEHE (7)
B 3R 55k
Produced a promotional video to enhance public
awareness about the safety of paragliding activities and
the relevant permit system

RYIRREEE FEFETMAMARANMAGE  FTRBFESEMRE - B2 (%)
Food and Environmental R ETEMNER - URHEAHBEANEE

Hygiene Department Introduced an additional clause to newly signed tenancy

(DI/403) agreements for market stalls, stipulating the Government’s

power and responsibility for carrying out maintenance, repair
and improvement works in public markets, as well as the
obligations of tenants

RYIRREEE MEHETERRENNE - BERE  BEYHEETARE - AU (5)
Food and Environmental NEREP

Hygiene Department Enhanced the follow-up actions to tackle the management

(DI/416) problems, including rodent infestation, obstruction of

passageways by goods and non-compliant stall tenants, in
public markets

RYIRIREEE o BREEREUBHARETHBIFT S ()
Food and Environmental Guidelines on the review mechanism of mosquito

Hygiene Department surveillance methodologies drawn up

(Dl/as) . ERFERERZGMARHANIE - UESEERIRA (5)

F o REVANEBTIE

Added to the Complaint Management Information System
a new function for analysing hotspots for more effective
deployment of manpower in anti-mosquito work

s EAQRMERARAERMAEMBLEMREE  HEDR @)
BT

Online information and statistics under the Dengue Vector
Surveillance Programme consolidated for easier viewing by
members of the public

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
\\
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o FRMERKIFINERREFHREEREEE®RELN @)
WA - G INARE SRR EE
Explicated the response mechanism under the Dengue
Vector Surveillance Programme through press releases
and departmental website to raise public awareness and
participation

RYPBRIBREEE o FERFRTHREEKS - MAREEFERSHMNRFEN ()
Food and Environmental Il
Hygiene Department Monitoring of the cleanliness of shops adjoining rear
(DI/446) lanes stepped up through special operations and surprise
inspections
o  INFBEFERFAMBMEERBBMEE  RRABAR (5)
ETIERBENAR

Communication and collaboration with the trade and local
academic institutions strengthened to explore ways to
enhance the effectiveness of anti-rodent work

o TRFEBENRBMARIAITINGE  MEBBBARA (5)
FRRHEEME
Complaint Management Information System enhanced
with the function of hotspots analysis for more effective
deployment of manpower in rodent prevention and
disinfestation

o IIBHATFENEZA S FHERRETAMEENIEI - A (®) & (8)
T 3 A P ) BE B
Training for frontline and supervisory staff on the correct
use of tools and equipment for rodent disinfestation
strengthened, and monitoring of contractors stepped up

B K A= B MRENI RERIT S BUER B~ PP R M FIE B MR B RR M — 15 oh )
Government Secretariat — EINEEEZEERE  HYHEEEZENGSR  BESE - RIEE
Constitutional and BB AIEENES - FrREEERSREEHNREETENB X

Mainland Affairs Bureau HEER

(D1/443) Compiled and provided to all Government bureaux and

departments as well as related organisations under their
purview a list of non-government foreign-language interpreters
(with the interpreters’ names, contact methods and service
hours, languages they can interpret, validity of their Service
Engagement Letters issued by the Judiciary Administration,
etc.)
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HiE (ERER) L=
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BRB o FITEEBFIEIE — MR TVER RER Q)
Government Secretariat — Drew up time frames for carrying out ordinary tree work by
Development Bureau departments

(Dl/aé3) o P REBFIEEFBOMARFER  BRAHEBETH @)

FAAREFR —EARAKERREEN ANLER

To include the overall handling time of a tree complaint
case involving disputes over responsibilities among
departments, as a criterion for the Tree Management
Office’s intervention

o SDIMTPRHFIEREFZNEAREFRESE RS MR 2)
ﬁ@ ’ E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?f?ﬁmu%ﬂﬁ?
To analyse tree complaints involving disputes over
responsibilities among departments, to collate information
about departments’ common differences in opinions and
misunderstanding, and to conduct exchanges and sharing
with the departments regularly

o B8R EWMEMBBER - MAEZFAER - AN (5)
B SR EPY BR IR M R IR ER IR IR
Categories of data in 1823's monthly reports enhanced
to include more statistics for more rigorous monitoring of
departments’ performance in handling tree complaints

o ESREBPITEE AR i P IE R IEAT 1823 M AR IR B BY (B 28 (5)
HFERREFZE  UEEERIBFIRERFNBER
Required departments to report at regular meetings data
and follow-up actions relating to tree complaints not
received via 1823 for comprehensive monitoring of the
status of departments’ complaint handling

e FRTHEZNHEMRERE  HEETUWBRBRE/HARSR (5)
MR - BREEENBAEL SRR
Continue to monitor the Lands Department’s performance
in handling tree complaints through regular meetings and
other channels to ensure proper handling of problematic

trees
HER HIET R AT A ALY SRWECE M B A E 2 A B 55 RS (5)
Government Secretariat — Established and announced a more comprehensive application
Education Bureau and approval mechanism regarding the collection of other
(DI7421) charges by private schools
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organisation (Case reference)

REREER ([RER] )  BRK
REFEBLR  RRREE  BRYR
FEAEE ([RERE] ) - BBE -
RBEBRE ( [ RBEZE] ) &
R EE

Government Secretariat —
Environment and Ecology

Bureau (“EEB"), Home and Youth
Affairs Bureau, Environmental
Protection Department, Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
(“FEHD"), Highways Department
(“HyD"), Home Affairs Department
(“HAD") & Lands Department
(“LandsD”)
(D1/455)
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HEERED
Examples of Improvement Measures

Szl

Improvement measures Category

RBpBEZBEMITMNERRBIEHBENHAAC - WES 2)
FHRBETERIEIFEAB (M AR ERE

HAD encouraged other departments to make good use of

the coordinating role of District Offices and to continue to

tackle illegal occupation or obstruction of streets through

joint operations

BSARSL (R EER | - REZHATRERY [REFER (2)
MALENE] - ERREBEINRBRIRFESBENBE IS

ET

The Government set up the Task Force on District

Governance and, under it, the Working Group on

Environmental Hygiene and Cityscape to enhance inter-

departmental coordination of environmental hygiene

matters at central level

BIERE A BT A LB IEERPGEEM BN ERE (2)
PEEPPIME] - URFRIBEE LHWFEH

HyD and LandsD implemented an inter-departmental

mechanism for early resolution of disputes on

responsibilities involving illegal deposition of construction

materials on public roads

RERMRIRERSMEEFETHIIA (5)
EEB and FEHD increased the penalties for offences relating
to street obstruction

REREEBHE ( [EXE] )
Leisure and Cultural Services
Department (“LCSD")

(DI/424)

1BETIEEI RREX @ FIAXEK [FRAZETE] ( [H98R (5)
FTEl] ) BHEEIKETRIRIE AR IEERN R R T4
2R DEEGRESESLSRBHERBGN  WEHRS
ERELSHRAXENTE R RE

Revised the guideline and application form specifying

that activities organised by swimming clubs using

the swimming lanes allocated under the Central Lane
Allocation Scheme (“CLAS") should be non-profit-making
and for training purposes only, and issued letters to
remind the National Sports Associations (“NSAs") of the
relevant terms, and will regularly review the records and
inspection reports on the hiring of swimming lanes by
NSAS

FARSEEASRHEEBSIVEEBKGRNLE: - 28F ()
REZREN - MRBIEEREROET

To provide NSAs with a monthly record of the cancellation

of hire of swimming lanes by their affiliated clubs, so that

the NSAs can keep track of the situation and expedite the

process of reviewing non-compliant cases
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i (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures

BERIEBITERE A R RIS REFIS R - BRIKRH
FRATEHERER - ZBFERE RN ERER -
WA S BB B SR KIR D RS

To strictly enforce the admission and signing-in
arrangements for using swimming pool facilities by
organisations to ensure no unauthorised transfer of
swimming lanes, and to deploy staff regularly to inspect
the use of swimming pools and to review the inspection
records of NSAs for continuous monitoring

BRECDETEI TR EMIKGHEARER  BEZK
AR AT E fth B BE S AR E R

Revised the number of lane hours for the main pools
allocated under CLAS to make more swimming lanes
available for use by other organisations or members of the
public

RERXERAIED RO FEMKGRTELR  ZFEZEFEHEA
Bk ENERERS M ETE A ZLIKR

Set an upper limit on the number of main pool swimming
lanes to be located to each swimming club so that

more interested clubs or organisations can have more
opportunities to hire those lanes

EXERZBERE RERRKAKS [PREERT TE
NET BRLDERETEI T EKAR D e & B 12 BE 2R E] B - I
BEZENRTIDBLERANSB YW LHEM

The Review Committee formed by the representatives
from LCSD, NSAs and the trade had worked out the
mechanism for allocation of swimming lanes under CLAS
and for future monitoring, and had notified the NSAs of the
assessment criteria and marking scheme and uploaded
them onto websites

x5l
Category

RER L EHRE o
Leisure and Cultural

Services Department

(D1/460)

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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ERFIBEAENTRIERNETEL [EREESR] &
#

Required all e-books shortlisted for acquisition

or replacement to be submitted to the Collection
Development Meeting for approval

FEOMAPIBFENTENIBN - WL RIME AR DA fE
RNEEF K - WHEREE AR &R

Proactively analysed the booking situation of popular
e-books and acquired extra copies for meeting patrons’
demand and shortened their waiting time



i (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

xS
Marine Department
(D1/418)

Ff4%9 Appendix 9

HEERED
Examples of Improvement Measures

Szl

Improvement measures Category

TR A EB AR FFHBRIRH S - 852021 IR AN (4)
ABHRBEAORKEZE  WEYF - ABERELEAL
HERRENIABRREUE

Completed reviewing the mechanism for waiting for

private mooring (“PM") permission, including freezing

the waiting lists of all PM areas since 2021 and inviting

all applicants on the frozen waiting lists to apply for

unallocated PM spaces every six months

EEFITLAMEE AR ER TR AGKY - 2151 E W ()
WEBRERE M & T Al ERTSIELE - LAINRAL A BIRRR AL

ERE o B2022F RILEEAABBRENL S HEHRRE
FIEm#ZEELNE@mAT

Revised the conditions for permission to lay PMs, including

specifying their validity periods and renewal and extension

of validity periods upon expiry are not allowable, to

expedite the turnover of PM spaces. Since 2022, the point

system was extended to all PM permissions issued by the

department

TR ILAMER AL - HERAFBENEZFFRN (5)
RE 2RERCEERTERGHEHMEBREZR

Reviewed the arrangements for private vessel moorings.

Will keep open-minded on the proposal of regular open

tender and will keep in view whether there is a practical

need and suitable location for further consideration

TR MR AR IEEZ B M E S ARIE M R AR ()
IR BB NI TR I E BRI NE TIE

Finished examining the proposal of detaining the vessels

berthed at illegal mooring buoys or prosecuting the vessel

owners, and take enforcement actions against illegal

mooring buoys in the meantime

B ESUREENBIERIUCAM BB - B RHRERER (5)
W EREETHEITE  REEREEEMOME

Closely monitor the situation at typhoon shelters, including

solicitation for rewards for berthing, intimidation and

blackmail, and conducted joint operations with the Police

to initiate prosecutions against the vessels that violate the

law

TR A BILABAREOHWERS - RARITEEITTS (6)
R B s U B K T B N B ) — AR R B

Reviewed the charging mechanism for laying PMs and

considered the existing mechanism was in line with the

Government’s general principle of requiring fee levels to

be cost-linked
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HiE (ERER) L=
organisation (Case reference) Category
BERREHZS B EFE MD

I DEEME T 1D & o EEHTANSA BRI HRE AR RS RO TS ()
Transport Department (“TD") 2|

(DI1/453)

Implemented the guidelines for taking enforcement
actions against illegal carriage of passengers on vessels by
frontline staff

o MREEEMEEBLEHERBHERENERERER )
Ba iR AE
Expedited the referral of cases concerning vessels
suspectedly engaging in unlicensed kaito service to TD and
the Hong Kong Police Force for follow-up

o TR RN AL H B VERR AR LT IR RR IR - E sk (4)
HEEMERTRAEREE R Z #1555
Attached conditions to the operating licences for pleasure
vessels permitted to be let for hire or reward, requiring
those vessels to display lifejacket stickers and QR code
posters

o HENHEMEERATHKER K] 178 ()
Conducted more patrols and decoy operations targeting
illegal carriage of passengers

o ER/NETF - BRRESRAAARGAFRLE ZEEME @)
BRI - DA RIB AR & A RIS AN AR B A
EFOMERBENER
Explained to the public through brochures, posters and
promotional videos the points to note when travelling by
chartered pleasure vessels, and provided information on
licensed kaito services and the life-saving appliances on
board

A 104 FERE S 2023/24 F£3R
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i (ER&ES) L]

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

ERHE TD

o EIBENETEAETREHASUREEERFHRR - WL (2) & (5)
MHEEREN THABFIRE - BRHBERNREKEET
Pl 75 58 2 1Y [ P
To conduct regular surveys via contractors for assessing
the performance of kaito operators and refer relevant
information to law enforcement agencies for follow-up;
and to conduct by the Department itself blitz inspections
for monitoring the contractors

o  EREEENEHAREEMERTIECIECKER - AEM (4)
R R ER & EE RS
Required kaito operators to display specific labels and
flags on designated vessels to facilitate identification of
approved kaito services by members of the public

s REEMKREEHETRERAS  ERRFEFIREM & (4)
TR S P IE MR
Conducted surveys at berthing points of licensed kaito
routes; to invite kaito operators to launch new routes
when increase of passenger demand is noticed

o  REFIRUREABEBREEERBAEES FREBEREHNE (7)
&l
Provided on its website information about applying for
kaito licence for operating maritime transport services
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HiE (ERER) L=
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
HtEEHNE o HIFTEM L EAEDANER R & & E b i8R =75 55 iR (1 & (5)
Social Welfare Department KERBRFREE

(DI1/398) Devised a time frame for the non-compliant residential

care homes for the elderly to rectify their irregularities and
a timetable for the Licensing Office of Residential Care
Homes for the Elderly to conduct follow-up inspections

o {EET KZERIEHFD) - NIRALZERMNE & (5)
Amended the Residential Care Homes (Elderly Persons)
Ordinance to enhance the quality of residential care
homes for the elderly

BB FAEHEHER e FIAEZTEMN BKEFEERS] LHERTHREENR ()
The Joint Office for Investigation of - WE AR BRI EUER - DAMEDIT R FT EZRE B KB

Water Seepage Complaints To record reasons of prolonged completion time of cases

(D1/428) in the enhanced Water Seepage Complaint Management

System and compile statistics periodically for making
analyses and devising case management strategies

e MUERKEHEBREAMESFMRERER (BIEOREIIEXR 7)
NI BRI A D L)
To promulgate annual performance (i.e. percentage of
cases completed within 90 working days) on the thematic
webpage for water seepage

BHE WRAEELRERBEHKEE EBETD

%«@\ 3y AN =4 8
NS, oy g © EWERERABESEOARII  RYBHOTERT @
port Lep LY it R ARBNEEERNEENER
Department (“LandsD"”) & Home . . ) )
) . Y TD proactively collaborated with LandsD in evidence
Affairs Department (“HAD") . L ) :
DI/451 collection by providing information of the registered
( ) owners of the abandoned vehicles (“AVs”) confiscated on
Government land

A 106 FERE S 2023/24 F£3R
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Examples of Improvement Measures

e (AXRER) LR
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
HE#8E LandsD
s MBAESERMHBEEWMERNLBMRZE I - KR (5)
TIERBEERWMNET

LandsD relaunched its work on evidence collection and
prosecution for AV cases, and successfully prosecuted the
owner of an illegal AV

B E M BAEE TD and LandsD

s TURBBENSRET  EWERMBEENRSBAFIM 2

(BERBERBEBERRE) £2023F3A %M (RHBEK

RABEBREEERESITENIES) - BMET SRR

AHEE T RBEEHENIET

Under HAD's coordination, LandsD, TD and other

departments (including the Highways Department and the

Hong Kong Police Force) promulgated in March 2023 “The

Operational Procedures for Handling Abandoned Vehicles

in Public Roads and Public Rear Lanes” which clearly

laid down the procedures of respective departments for

handling motorcycles abandoned in public rear lanes

RE#EZE HAD

s RBAZBERVIREANEESDWHRE - BERIHFAIFIET (2) & (7)
Ba BIRITE - WEMTMMIRF AR AR B RIREITE
HAD to closely monitor the situation of AVs in the
district, coordinate joint clearance operations with the
departments concerned in a timely manner, and clearly
explain the follow-up actions to complainants and the
public
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REERE
Examples of Improvement Measures

E28D : S MPARBBEABET 2 HRASRERRNNEHEEED
Part 2: Examples of Improvement Measures Introduced by Departments and Organisations Following Our Full Investigations

#iE (ER&ER) ; 5l

Oorganisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

EFE  REREZS( [REZ] ) ERE - RRENMKAEE EPD, FEHD and LandsD

RYIRSBEEZE( [RERE] ) Rits
T E

Buildings Department (“BD"),
Environmental Protection
Department (“EPD"), Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department
(“FEHD") & Lands Department
(“LandsD") EF%E BD

(2022/1619) o BEANBEFRAFRH  BROERMELBRS MM @3)
ARSI BT
Be mindful of its internal procedures and staff deployment
to ensure that the enhanced enforcement strategy on the
issuance of Demolition Orders is properly carried out
o IRIERESMREIEIRFANANDLERE 3
Reminded staff to ensure the accuracy of replies to
complainants

M4 E LandsD

=EFIMNEEE - LEBRENESHRTIEER(E BT A 2
MEEHENR

Enhanced collaboration between the three Departments

with a view to following up effectively on improper

connection of septic tanks of New Territories Exempted

Houses to public drains

s REBSFERERFA 3
Reminded staff to reply to complainants in a clear manner
EFE o BERIMARBEERABEFMAEFRMEBEFREBRIETE - )
Buildings Department (“BD") ARABT —BEETEHRRGS
(2022/3740) For following up on the three removal orders to be

complied with, instigated prosecution actions against two
owners and served a superseding order for the remaining
one

s TREEZEMEE D ZMNmILERERAMRIALER - Wi 8)
8 B AR IR EB T ) AR5 7 5E I F8 5| IR AN LB 3 B B B F k%
il
The case and the lesson learned have been shared and
discussed at BD's internal meetings, and staff have been
reminded to provide timely and specific responses to
enquiries or complaints according to BD's performance
pledge and departmental guidelines

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) EHl
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
EFE MAREIEHRHETRERIERZIRER A EE ML BT ()
Buildings Department AEEBIFEREEY

(2022/4011) Instigated prosecution against the owners who have not

complied with removal orders and engaged consultants to plan
and arrange to have the unauthorised building works removed
by contractors

HEE BRERBERS T ZERBERGHELR EBLOGE - Wik (B (4)
Department of Health (“DH") B nYEARAPIAZELE  UERBEEREEERIZENTE
(2020/1710) OESN

Launched an online appointment booking function for the Child
Health Service under the Family Health Service. A portal was
also created on the eHealth Mobile App for service users to
access DH's booking system

BHEE o HAEBEREMMHAE (BN ) MRBLZE2REHR K )
Department of Health (‘DH") ERUIREE RN EB LTS  EARABIIRR
(2022/0225) eS| - BRBEEIEDSERARMERMEZELRE

FAfEZR - AR AZIFERE A RER

DH's Contact Tracing Office (“CTQ") provided direct email
and telephone contacts to Civil Aid Service and Medical
Post for frontline staff to follow up on cases concerning
wrong information in statutory orders in accordance
with relevant guidelines in a timely manner, to record
such cases properly, and to report for cases with wrong
information

e AZBIPLEFEREEAESIRENEF  HHRBMEREE 3
AE MRS IRE L TEE R A ERE N 2B E R
# K B8
Hotline centre updated the procedures of handling
enquiries and referrals for referring cases concerning
amendments of information of isolation orders or
guarantine orders to CTO direct for follow-up and reply

o W [FAEMEPL20M19TMRESHAEAR  LBRREKS] K (4)
[2019E s RENFARAGEERATRRRS] - X
ERED & R R REF R F I EE
Launched "“Online self-reporting for COVID-19 patient” and
"Declaration System for Individuals Tested Positive for
COVID-19 Using Rapid Antigen Test” for confirmed patients
to declare “close contacts” simultaneously

o  PDREIMEBERA AT K#ITH (7)
Separated the announcement and effective dates when
updating quarantine measures
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HE (ERER) Bl
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BEE o IREERBA/NOEBERFEZR  wREBERMEES - BER (3)
Department of Health EREMEEOTE v FHRGEREER

(2022/0578) Reminded staff to handle complaints carefully and

provided them with relevant guidelines, procedures and
line-to-take and review case progress regularly

s TMRHRBRRBUERSNGNMBHELME BEIRHEFTEREE - (4)
BB TR ABERIBELERS - ZIEEEFROTER
BB E R H A IR RIS A A F 28 T EE 8 E ik
The online reporting form or the system would
automatically provide standardised options in some of the
information fields to assist the public in filling information
and to minimise the chance of making mistakes. Outbreak
Intelligence Centre would also verify cases with uncertain
addresses in accordance with the geocoding provided by
the Lands Department

e BILHEBARS TRLELHAMEREERFRAREZSEH ()
B HEENSEEEXRIEARTEMETEATFHA - I
EREZEREE RN
Improved its information system so that when people
declared COVID-19 positive cases via its online reporting
form or declaration system, the relevant information
would be transmitted to its case platform without the need
for manual input and a case number would be assigned

accordingly
BEE o BIABRE - BHBLREHES  BRESKEEGCENT (1
Department of Health B WERETZ M R E A RIER RN R4
(2022/0792) To review the internal workflow and streamline the

procedure of issuing Isolation Orders, Quarantine Orders
and Isolation Records as well as devise more scalable and
versatile systems

o ZEBA [RELHEENES] WER  ZERDARER ()
To cross-check the data input to the Isolation Record
Robot to minimise human error

e REUERHMMNETIFIIRIRLHNFELEE  BIREZE (8)
BHRES WES KBRS  UREEAREN
To provide sufficient staff training and readily available
FAQs to facilitate the issuance of Isolation Orders,
Quarantine Orders and Isolation Records and for
answering public enquiries

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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HiE (ERER) L=
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BEE s KIARAFKINREEXMEREEREXIEFEHEP L (4)
Department of Health A —(EE # bk

(2022/0943) Designated email account of the Centre for Health

Protection as a central hub to receive requests for
isolation documents from different COVID-19 hotlines

o EMIE2019EAMA TR BT & INRoE NS RIEE - I ()
IEARREBR A E A - SIEEAE DT A RmESR
R RRERIL AR EDE - BT EARES
Pop-up messages and buttons added in the two COVID-19
reporting platforms with illustrations and links to redirect
people to report their cases on the correct platform;
wrongly reported cases picked out every day to contact
and help the infected persons complete the declaration
process as appropriate

s BEHEXSKBRTANEABENEGFEZPRERNERA (5)
REBREENENERHEL ¥
A system developed to enable comparison of personal
particulars in the reporting platforms with those in the
centralised Case Portal and the Immigration Department’s

database
o THIRMERBEME ABERMEZ T  WIESRIEREE A (5)
BSAR

To regularly remind staff of the importance of accurate
input of data and double check information before issuing
isolation documents

o EBBEH [AES] FacebookEE + WhatsAppZiig & A 7)
BHEEZTNHNEFZRS - NESESAEHN TR
Enhanced the publicity of the different functions of the
various hotlines through the Government Facebook page,
WhatsApp Helpline and an interactive voice response
system

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24



Bt %9

REERE
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HiE (ERER) L=
Organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
BEE s MIRFAREBEEARE TEMESHEBER (HBFILZATREETZ (4)
Department of Health £3K)
(2023/0201) Provided written confirmation for the conclusion of the

complainant’s case which was previously overlooked by

the department

s THHEBEAMERIIBASERBBEROIETE ZEER  BIER ()

Hnog 85 B A il

Reviewed and enhanced the mechanism for monitoring

the progress of enforcement action related to Compulsory

Testing Order compliance in future

J R A B B 1F 1 58 #2019 AR 7 35 81 a1 5o 8 R (B R Ak i /9 35 (8)

C{ NG|l o): A==

Reviewed the guideline for proper updating of COVID-19

test records and case status, and strengthened staff

training
WETEE IR R B B E A S TI5 R TaMA AR E TIE ()
Electrical and Mechanical Services  Closely followed up on the legislative work on compulsory
Department registration of vehicle maintenance workshops and mechanics
(2015/2167)
EI B M A ARIETENRRESHFIES - UERE TETHRE (1)
Fire Services Department New guidelines for handling advance payment bonds
(2023/0403B) promulgated for staff's compliance
RYIRREEE BETLIEIRSIN T ERE [HESHRA] EREEENRNIET (1)
Food and Environmental Hygiene Revised guidelines to improve the procedure for following up
Department on the compliance with “Nuisance Notice”
(2021/2581A)
RYIRIREEE o HBVRSHNREFEREFBRIERMEN - NEH 2)
Food and Environmental Hygiene # 0 EA IR EES R E AR E R
Department Enhanced collaboration with the Independent Checking
(2021/3102) Unit and the Buildings Department in following up on

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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requests for information so that they can respond to such
requests in a timely manner

o REKRFABHHMBLWER  ERFARBEEL & )
FERE R EEIE

Followed up on the complainant’s request for information
in his email and expedite the handling of the request if the
complainant still pursues it
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i (ER&ES) Szl

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

s HIEWTHRFEIHSHNERR RREEZEFASHANUERE ()
BEATRZEER - IREKaE
To consider obtaining building plans via the Housing
Electronic Building Records Online System when carrying
out the procedures for applying for a Closure Order, so as
to enhance effectiveness and efficiency

o THRFEBARRRFEENER ( [RENH] ) HRHLE (5)
Wl mRECENEREMERE RS ED BN
R SREPEABRSRNNERBERR - RIESIKEE#H
)z
To review regularly the internal communication
mechanism between the Licensing Section and District
Environmental Hygiene Offices (“DEHQ") to ensure that
the enhanced licence information management system
can achieve the desired results and DEHO can follow the
guidelines to conduct inspections and take enforcement
actions according to the latest status of the licence
applications

o RIEBBRERPIRIRLSS  BERLIEMRNE - W (8)
BEYH (RARERSPAD) (T <FRD 1) #9REB R -
RaeiE (PRI REBSERET RS A RERERDZER
Reminded staff to learn from the complaint and respond
to public enquiries in a timely manner and strengthened
staff’'s understanding of the Code on Access to Information
(“the Code") with training so that they will be able to
respond to enquiries and requests for information made
by members of the public in accordance with the Code

and its spirit
o RIEBBTERHEMIAFIREERE  EREEREDE A 9)
E B[RRI ERE

Reminded staff to take initiative to contact the
departments concerned if the departments did not
respond promptly to their requests for information

e MAEANMEE HRABKERREEERENBERTE 9
EoIBITHE - WEESHEFLHR
Strengthened internal supervision to ensure that staff
responsible for conducting inspections and instigating
prosecutions against unlicensed restaurants will perform
their duties in accordance with guidelines and keep proper
work records

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 \”3 /v
\?/

<



Bt %9

R EE R E G

Examples of Improvement Measures

i (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

Szl
Improvement measures Category

e TAUEPBENBEBERAST  WHERPRIESR  ETK 9
FRENIEE  BeRUZEARNERETFLELHENE
NEEA
Completed the investigation into the staff concerned
and took reference from the case to improve the internal
supervision administratively to avoid recurrence of missing
to make inspection records as seen in the case

RYREELEE

Food and Environmental Hygiene
Department

(2022/2602)

(2022/2840)

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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o  IREBEBARESIRERFER - BRETRIFAVHEE - 3)
AR AEFALZRIIEEE - WETTHKERIEERE AFERIER
FA
Reminded staff to handle complaint cases in accordance
with guidelines and provide complainants with interim replies
and case progress in a timely manner, and issue substantive
replies to complainants upon concluding complaint cases

s NMEEREFPKLNEN EARHEBRETNEETERE (5)
BISBAIEEN - EARENESFE
To step up the monitoring of stall operations and take
enforcement actions decisively if there is sufficient evidence
of breaching of the law or the leases

o INSREEE RAMEMIEI - ERMMAREERBREOERKR (8)
(RZETAG) EREE - WAEBSDRER  #@RF LR
=K1 8
Strengthened training for staff and contractors and required
them to manage the stalls strictly in accordance with the
terms of the leases and the Public Markets Regulations and
seek help from their superiors when encountering difficulties

o ERBRNEIREMMNEERERN  AEERHENFEE  Z& 9
AREGMEENLELER - UREATERT - AR TR
FRABEEMHBEEEE  ITHZETORKRER - RFH
EiORENAREMHRE - LERER
To review in a timely manner the operation of Kwu Tung
Market, and consider adjusting the business types of market
stalls in light of the community’s current needs, and where
feasible, rent out vacant stalls in a flexible manner, and for
the future development of the market, complete the planning
for the public markets in Kwu Tung at an early date to make
optimal use of resources
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HiE (ERER) L=
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
RYRREEE ( [REE] ) 18234 L - RIREMuL K [HHEH & FEAM] /IME-FREEE (4)
Food and Environmental Hygiene &#&l  /ERKXA [BEEFEH] REZEEAMII—EEEHERE
Department (“FEHD") Reviewed all relevant materials on the websites of 1823 and FEHD,
(2022/2902) and the Guide to After-Death Arrangements clearly stating that

“continuous residing period” means the period that the deceased
had continuously resided in the place concerned before his or

her death
BT AR E MmFES|  FIAREREBREERERBEHKIINE OFH (M
Government Logistics Department  #RITERIBUXHNEZ SR - LRSS EKR B REBFIETHE
(2023/0403A) Promulgated new guidelines setting out the key steps for handling

contract deposits, bank guarantees or similar documents received
under contracts for procuring goods and services to ensure
compliance by bureaux and departments

HER s HEMEMAFBARFUMPSRERBEXRTNEREERT 8 3)
Government Secretariat — FErg A RRAEERNRE

Education Bureau To provide on its website information about the complaint
(2021/3695) handling procedures regarding suspected breaches of

professional conduct by teachers, and the reasons for not
disclosing the results of the investigations of such complaints

s EEHERABEERFNENBERS  BRIEEAEA (3)
BREFERREIERFA
Internal complaint management system enhanced to give
timely reminders to the responsible officers to process
complaint cases and reply to complainants

o REARBAFTIRFNEEBRMEEI - URSMMERFASE (8)
BHETS
Trainings for enhancing communication skills with

complainants provided to staff responsible for handling
complaints from the public

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 \1 15 y

<



Bt %9

REERE
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) EHl
organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
HER o  FETAIIES|  REBEXZESRHFASHEMMIEEDE Q)
Government Secretariat — Education Updated the internal guidelines reminding staff to make
Bureau (“EDB") proper record of all relevant conversations that were made
(2022/1959) in the complaint handling process

o  EXAEIESI RBERNIESIFHIRFOME  KEERFE Q)

ABHIE P E2ATEMHTEMENREFERE - OIEE
BRERERNENRFSHABEREENAALE

Revised the classifications of complaints in internal guidelines
and guidelines to schools: complaints involving students
having been assessed by doctors or professionals as being
affected by incidents and resulting in severe emotional
problems, psychological trauma, or suicidal tendencies, will
be directly handled by EDB

J E%ﬁﬁﬂ%#‘é%l&ﬁf‘ﬁ*im%%l IREE (M

- RBRIFRTB BRI AR AERA R RO - BAENAIER -
,\/1%32§Elnaﬁﬁ DATERERE - URERS - 355 - RiE
SfEREABRR - BE<T (EAZER (FLEB) &6 &
BT AR

- BEGLTERLMETR

Internal guidelines and guidelines to schools are updated,

reminding:

— schools to preserve all records related to complaint
cases, including text files, images or audio recordings,
as evidence and to comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance when collecting, holding, processing
or using personal data; and

- staff to advise schools of the above

BBREER HiemFErT [BEEg] 78 SREREERREMTEIES (M
Government Secretariat — To enhance the operation guidelines if “restriction-testing

Health Bureau declaration” operations have to be taken in the future

(2022/0234C)

BEBRELER RAERAAEHRERSAEEN SR 2R EHRAENEER (7)
Government Secretariat — WEH - WEIEMAIES BB ERBEAESMERAAN TR

Health Bureau IR ITH SR EERE

(2022/3659C) To provide information on the handling of enquiries about adverse

events following vaccination on the thematic webpage and to
strengthen the relevant guidelines to instruct staff and healthcare
professionals to clearly explain to enquirers the operational flow
of the existing mechanism

@ HEREE 2023/24 F
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HEERED
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) EHl

organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category

RB=EBEE RTBERENFZHIT [EHER] 178 - ARRERES LA )

Home Affairs Department LB

(2022/0234A) Reminded staff to ensure that residents are notified of the relevant
arrangement of “restriction-testing declaration” operation

EEZE REBETAEZERALARIRFREAEN S BRI PIE 9)

Housing Department PR

(2022/0234B) Reminded staff to refer public complaints or enquiries to suitable
departments or organisations for follow-up action where necessary

EEE o BRBERAIITBEFMIIERS - BEAREESIHALER (1)

Housing Department BEREEFHENESNFEEE

(2022/2046) Examined its current procedures and working guidelines, and

confirmed that guidelines are in place for frontline staff for
handling dual tenancy matters
e REBBSZMEBEEER WNAGEREELTAREREZE 9
Reminded staff to adopt a proper and flexible approach in
handling cases in accordance with policies and procedures

FEZE EERERTRMAER [BEANE] HRARKEWESFRIGE ()
Housing Department —THETE  ERERBEEEEE  BATERANENER
(2022/2185) Where necessary, to take prompt enforcement action

against public housing estate tenants for non-compliance of
enforcement notices, including issuing written warnings to
explain the consequences of non-compliance

NG =500 o HBERAZRGHEBHEIME  WERFEERBEMAE (4)
Immigration Department FRT  RERFABENZEBHE ERZFEZRFL KD
(2023/2469) ESHE

To continue the enhancement of the automatic photo
screening function of the online application system, and to
add a note on the application page and website to remind
applicants that successful submission of application does
not mean its approval

e FEREKBEFEERPFNBABRBRNERSNE —FH (4)
e
To complete the connection of the system of online
application for HKSAR passport and the online
appointment booking system as soon as possible

T MBEEREEZHEE (RHAERTA) A (8)
Information Services Department  Stepped up staff training on the Code on Access to Information
(2022/2434(1))
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REERE
Examples of Improvement Measures

HiE (ERER) L=
Organisation (Case reference) Improvement measures Category
RERXLEBE LZHE R R BB RS E S R A B R L 20 - (%)
Leisure and Cultural Services A [FEEE] Brmeacs
Department To arrange balloting for selecting participants of a popular
(2018/4697) recreation and sports programme and give priority in balloting

to “new applicants” of the programme
RERLERE DRsR E R MR B VK E R GRS TIREENEE  EH (5)
Leisure and Cultural Services 1TAERE%E 5l
Department Enhanced the supervision of the progress of the maintenance
(2023/0522A) works for the hot water supply system of the shower booths

in a swimming pool, and implemented the relevant guidelines

accordingly
HEIE RIABEAROBAREHE  NAATERIRFR - WLH ) & (8)
Planning Department T RS IIREEERE M
(2022/4287) Reminded staff to provide comprehensive and detailed replies

to public enquiries and arranged relevant staff training
BEE 1BET TERRS| - BILEIERIE R B AR 3
Post Office Guidelines revised to enhance the procedures for handling
(2022/3124(1)) information requests
HEE o FENMBHMAMRT  BILESZE R AR EBURIERIE (4)
Post Office B BARTE B
(2022/3379) Computer system updated to prohibit delivery postmen

g )r FiIREE 2023/24 3

from delivering parcels prior to the deadlines for changing
of delivery options by recipients

e ABERESAMAMKEXrEZHBAREERNRTIMER (5)
EERENIEE - WEMPIREBERESZ=EHKEERNE
2 1% BRI 0 2= BR A R IR 1B R BLR IR AR R AT R E 2R
Added to its computer system the functions of sending
alert reports and anomalies reports to delivery supervisors
regarding parcels delivery, so that delivery supervisors
can remind delivery postmen of new parcel delivery
instructions and follow up with them on cases whose
delivery situations do not match delivery instructions



i (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

HtEEHNE
Social Welfare Department
(2023/0291)

Ff4%9 Appendix 9

HEERED
Examples of Improvement Measures

Szl
Improvement measures Category

o TRHEFTEVE RIS R E B E TR R R Q)
Devised guidelines on the time limits for retaining
information obtained by investigations

o REBSEREEIRFREMNENRFALER 3
Reminded staff to handle complaints in a timely manner
and inform complainants of progress regularly

U RIRRIERFIET BEWEUEHFARENRL « 8F 58k (©))

By A K
FEEE

Reviewed complaint handling procedures and will
receive photos, audio and video recordings submitted by
complainants as far as practicable

o RERFARHMES (©)
To listen to the audio recordings furnished by the
complainant

s RTBBEAETWE
ERORBNRE
Reminded staff to provide necessary details (including the
identity of interviewee) in investigation reports to avoid
confusion

0N

DIFFS (BREGENGN) - A% 8

BE
Transport Department
(2022/1460 and others)

BB R D B R F I R BN ERE TR B EA LR ()
To review the criteria for assessing new residents’ service

applications and residents’ service renewal applications with

stakeholders

BEHE
Transport Department
(2022/1603(1)-(4))

o HEBEFOHERIEHLRENEREB LTRSS PABENEL (5)
To conduct a review with stakeholders regarding the
approving principle for application of new residents’
service route and renewal of existing route

o INREKEIEFI - IREER B A AEBIRGS - IRHARDE (8)
To enhance staff training, to remind the relevant staff to
closely examine complaint materials and provide specific

response
s KMEEEEISERNAKEGRELEESRE  EFRIE ©)
feiEiE

To continue monitoring the public transport service near
the residential estate where the complainants lived and
optimise the provision of public transport in a timely
manner
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RERRED

Examples of Improvement Measures

i (ER&ES)

organisation (Case reference)

Improvement measures

Szl

Category

B E AR AR IEFE A B TR E < RIE < mie /) & 5= 5 it 5 (6)
Transport Department =
(2022/3263) Handled applications for postponement of driving test, due to
having to comply with isolation and quarantine orders, in the
same way
BipE FAFERDAE ERERBLRBEAREREENRFARE (6)
Transport Department HFAEBEMIENER - LB R ERIERMMOEE
(2023/0696) Adopted a new criterion for deciding the eligibility of the
applicants who are current holders of quotas of Hong Kong
private cars to Macao to avoid mistakenly rejecting their
applications for new quotas
e oY) o RAMIEIESIFFRBEBARRBERRIET - WRRHAID (1 & (8
Vocational Training Council BN EEREANE BB
(2022/2932) Spelled out the refund policy and procedures in the
internal guideline and workshops would be conducted to
familiarise staff with the relevant policy
o FHBEBERMABAFMXHNRND  NRESLEEENRAE (7)
73
Updated the website and the relevant register documents
to remind students of the refund policy
e (s gk B ¥z Br (ARERSTAD) AR - A RE MR (8)
Vocational Training Council (“VTC") ZRERER EREEEE1E
(2023/2455(R)) Enhanced staff’s understanding of VTC's Code on Access to

@120 FERE S 2023/24 F£3R
\@/

Information and their cautiousness in handling requests for
information
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman

(R (FHFEEEM)) HWEBR ) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)

=R

IAZEET (ATERE [3M]) ) BEIENE
126E151EHFEEMNMBRE - T BHRES
FER2024F3A3 1B EARRKREBEHZ=ZE I
FEMRTHEER  2EREEXR Eeing
KB ERER  URBEERSHBEEER
HAEH R E B MM -

BPRR  ZEMBRRCREEZ LSRG
BaE (BEBVBREER) BEMBPBHRER
TEHFFEEN2024F3ANENMBARRANEE
ZHEIEFENMBRAMBERE -

RRHNER

BACREBEZEGTMASEME (BBEE
A1) EITES - RAEZFEATRENEED
EARE BB B HRRAENEL]
o P —FE - REBEFEGAHAER
) CEXRGFIEERTAD) (AT (57
A1) - BRPBLNPHFEE - YEETTRIF
MEMBEEEREL - RIIEE - RAMESH
B RERARMEZ AR MNETERREHR
g o

MmN E XA ®E S
HfE R

FRAEEFHEMEERAE - HBESRETIE
REBRANZHEL - ETBEI B HRR LA
VR BRED 3R

BAEHBHREROBRL TREEMES - R
I SRS B BRI ANERES -

HIFEE 2023/24 FR

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Ombudsman
set out on pages 126 to 151, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2024, the statement of income
and expenditure, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended and note, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of The Ombudsman as at 31 March
2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of The
Ombudsman in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial
statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The Ombudsman is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman (continued)
B &MY REBRL ) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)

Information other than the financial
statements and auditor’s report
thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of The Ombudsman
for the financial statements

The Ombudsman is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control
as The Ombudsman determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, The Ombudsman is
responsible for assessing The Ombudsman’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless The Ombudsman either intend to liquidate
The Ombudsman or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman (continued)
(IR1E (FHFEEIFH) REEHK L) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)
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Auditor’'s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The
Ombudsman’s internal control.
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Independent auditor’s report to The Ombudsman (continued)
(IR1E (FHEFEEIFH) REEHK L) (Established in Hong Kong pursuant to The Ombudsman Ordinance)

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by The Ombudsman.

Conclude on the appropriateness of The Ombudsman’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on The Ombudsman’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
The Ombudsman to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with The Ombudsman regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

20 May 2024
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Statement of income and expenditure i e es engea st warch 2024

(FrE&EH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

gz 2023
Note
LON Income
W& Government subventions 3 $ 134,307,000 $ 129,838,628
RIET & By & 2 B85 Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions 3 1,814,220 1,814,220
RITIF R BUA Interest income on bank deposits 18,782,441 11,190,787
E A A Other income 99,514 3,735
$ 155,003,175 $ 142,847,370
F Expenditure
EERX Operating expenses 4 (144,690,794) (137,515,036)
FERE surplus for the year $ 10,312,381 $ 5,332,334

THWER Statement of comprehensive income
BZE2024%3831BILFE for the year ended 31 March 2024

HREEEMIBORNEEESRN B (£ The Ombudsman had no components of comprehensive income
g NP EEMEEUSIEIE - AR EREEW other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented.
[amEkzesE | cRESEEHRRNGEE B4 A Accordingly, no separate statement of comprehensive income is

T

B B A HREEE BITEESE X - presented as The Ombudsman’s “total comprehensive income”
was the same as the “surplus” in both years.

FIRNE1TBE M AT BHREROEEILS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial
statements.

126 FERE S 2023/24 F£3R
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The Ombudsman
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

/E\Zr;r%lfijijﬂv% E’\\‘2024.¢3ﬂ31E| . o
Statement of financial POSITION e ets1 warch 2024

( BB 58  E T BEr) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 2023
Note
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current asset
M - A R Property, plant and equipment 7 $ 65,278,468 $ 68,151,261
RBEE Current assets
e RIBAFOE Deposits and prepayments $ 4,881,355 $ 4,234,119
JE W) B, Interest receivable 3,826,254 2,251,320
RE={EA A LB H 2 EB7F3K  Time deposits with original
maturity over three months 181,742,000 213,080,000
ReERBEEEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 8 222,293,794 179,946,924
$ 412,743,403 $ 399,512,363
EEHAE Total assets $ 478,021,871 $ 467,663,624
afE LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current liabilities
FEAmMNE - FERBE D Contract gratuity payable —
non-current 9 $ 6,953,923 $ 8,045,013
BELEBNERS - 3EmE D Deferred Government
subventions — non-current 3 49,829,338 51,643,558
$ 56,783,261 $ 59,688,571
REEE Current liabilities
EMERSRERETEA Other payables and accruals $ 4,782,715 $ 6,141,710
ERAmMNE - meE s Contract gratuity payable —
current 9 10,213,127 5,902,956

BB EBE - RBhE6 Deferred Government

subventions — current 3 1,814,220 1,814,220

D

$ 16,810,062 $ 13,858,886

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 1(\127 )/«
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M2024%3A318

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024 (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 2023
Note
g FUNDS
2itES Accumulated funds $ 404,428,548 $ 394,116,167
BB Total funds $ 404,428,548 $ 394,116,167
EcRhEBEHE Total funds and liabilities $ 478,021,871 $ 467,663,624
FEF 3 8 B 1020245 520 B #LfE R B A T - Approved and authorised for issue by The Ombudsman on 20
May 2024.
BREZEE Mr Jack Chan
RIFEE The Ombudsman
FIRNE1T1BE M ATTHIREROEELS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial

Statements.
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The Ombudsman

N Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
ROk Tk
=57 U HE2024F3831A L FE

Statement Of ChangeS |ﬂ fUﬂdS for the year ended 31 March 2024

( BB E5E E T BE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ZitES
Accumulated
funds
7"2022F3H318 K%2022F4 818 2 &tk Balance at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 § 388,783,833
2022/2023FEE SRR ESH : Change in funds for 2022/2023:
FERHBLEAKERE Surplus and total comprehensive income for
the year 5,332,334
R2023%F3H31HK2023F481H 246k Balance at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 $ 394,116,167
2023/2024FEESMRNEH ! Change in funds for 2023/2024:
FEASREEREEEE Surplus and total comprehensive income for
the year 10,312,381
MR2024F3B31H 2 &8 Balance at 31 March 2024 $ 404,428,548

FINEISNBE 2T RAT B MENELELD - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial
statements.
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CaSh ﬂOW Statemeﬂt for the year ended 31 March 2024

(FrE&EH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 2023
Note
BETH Operating activities
FERH Surplus for the year $ 10,312,381 $ 5,332,334
HEE Adjustments for:
FEWA Interest income (18,782,441) (11,190,787)
e Depreciation 4 4,796,836 3,881,837
EEAT & Bhe 2 85 Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions (1,814,220) (1,814,220)
BEEME - #BE BB BX Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4 8,600 651,015
EEESRHICEEFE Operating deficit before
changes in working capital $ (5,478,844) $  (3,139,821)
e RIFEMAFIE (#Mn) R (Increase)/decrease in deposits
and prepayments (647,236) 5,032,812
Hab e RIE N ERE A (Decrease)/increase in other
CRA) /18 payables and accruals (1,358,995) 213,383
FERTHmBN &80, CRld) Increase/(decrease) in contract
gratuity payable 3,219,081 (753,095)
EEES (EA) EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated
HE&FE from operating activities $ (4,265,994) $ 1,353,279
RETE Investing activities
I B A1 8, Interest received $ 17,207,507 $ 9,390,369

BEWE  #EMRBANRIEA

Payments for purchase of

property, plant and equipment (1,932,643) (12,199,424)
BEE=@ALEIEZ FHFER  Net changes of time deposits
DEFE with original maturity over
three months 31,338,000 159,232,000
RETHELE RS FE Net cash generated from
investing activities $ 46,612,864 $ 156,422,945

@ HEREE 2023/24 £
\ 4
-
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

RERER (E)

BE2024F3A31HLEFE

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 2023
Note
ReRBESEEYFEM Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents $ 42,346,870 $ 157,776,224
FzReREESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 8 179,946,924 22,170,700
FRZESRESEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 8 $ 222,293,794 $ 179,946,924

FIRNE1TBE M AT HEREROEELS - The notes on pages 132 to 151 form part of these financial

statements.
Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 (131 /)v:
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Notes to the financial statements

(FrE&EH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 BHFREENHR

FRER R B N2001F12 519 B IRBEDIR L A
BOAE EBEER (RFFERGEM) FFT
B -

FHREEAENEMMER U STBTH
B 168-2005% (518 LR R B AE30E -

2 EREFEBE

(a) EHZARSHEREE

AR EHRRIIRBE BSOS RM
EAR (EEMBREEL) (RE
BIREROER (FEFBRE L)
- (BRERTER) k) mkEH -
HFEERMNERNG T BRI 2
T e

FEGHEAGERME T (BABMH
WERER) 2EF] > XWHERFKERER
B FE B RERHAIRFRN - H
FEERAERRERNEZENNEAFE
HARERIERRZE (HRE15) o

2023%F7H - BB AE AN (B
BEUEBES BRERIS S EIPHE SIS
VY . R2025%5 81 HREEUY Y
SRR ET IR S| o BUB X il ¥
RFEENEENMTBR AL EERNE
2 o

W32 ) HFRES 2023/24 £k

-

1 Status of The Ombudsman

The Ombudsman was established as a corporation by statute
on 19 December 2001. The functions of The Ombudsman are
prescribed by The Ombudsman Ordinance.

The address of its registered office is 30/F, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

2 Material accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance and changes
in accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Material accounting policies adopted by
The Ombudsman are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of The Ombudsman.
The Ombudsman has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 15).

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong"” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the abolition of offsetting
mechanism effective from 1 May 2025. The abolition of
the offsetting mechanism did not have a material impact
on The Ombudsman’s results and financial position.
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(b)

MR REE

R R DA 2 A st B &2

e

ERENE (BEVBREEL) W
BHREE  BEEERTEFELTESHR
ROEANMEE - BFE WA
EMBEBOHE - BEIARE - ELkMh
SAAMEERREREBESRNMEEE
REERBRATIESENSREME
ERERMIEL - FIEGERIEBKER
Bt B AR BETE AL A BB AR AN 5 0
BENA EIREERPTE©L A 8 E
e BRNERTEEGELEMBARE
H o

EEEE TR S RMGT RERERK
& o BN ATNETRARER B
B ARl &z A ERAR -
H RN EFHERHRERT RIS & E A R
RIRHRE - RIZIERT @ IS RTHIR KR
KEAR AR AN -
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Big R &M (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 1{133/}&



B R R MR (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT E &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EREFHE (&) 2

(C) % ~ MR RRE (F)

WEIEINRYE - #R L REWTES
FIsrEE (MBWGE) & KRAE
RERABESEPHEKRAN - 5 EIDE
L

-FEFERANHEE T hiER
Interest in leasehold land held for own use

- BEY)
Building
- HEMEEE
Leasehold improvements
- WAERA
Office furniture
- WRAERE
Office equipment
- EHRE
Computer equipment

- EHif
Motor vehicles

aENTERFHRANSES (08
M) BEER -

HEFEES 2023/24 £

Material accounting policies
(continued)

(c) Property,
(continued)

plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

RS 8 FIERTE HR
Over unexpired term of lease

40%F
40 years

104F
10 years

54
5 years

54
5 years

45
4 years

54
5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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2 - MR RRE (&)

BEEESESERSFEERERTY
X BBLREOERISEES LR
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MIRE RSN A KO HER  Fak
WX EERNERBEER - BEXPT
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=BENE - ERHEEAER - HEARR
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AHENEREHEEEREREENES
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BeEm -

BESHEEMYE - W8 MREAE
iR NHEMSFREEEMIR
e FNERET  WIREERH
ERPERTEERAERAR -
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WENHKBE T AR - AR EREHE
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Big R &M (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB #3815 LB T B EEfr) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indications of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of income and expenditure if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in the statement of income and expenditure on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised when The Ombudsman
has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If income has been recognised
before The Ombudsman has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EREFHE (&)

d) EUGRIE (&)

FEMGRIA R IR SRR BRI R AL 3 5
RAYBEA TR AEENEEER
BEYIR

EREGRSFRNEEEMANERE
EEENTHEGE  ZEEEBREY
FEEMGRIA M BE A MM IR - 3T
BERTAMST (BREFRIERF
B) AR EERIBEFINI2EAE
HEEBENEE  RIFSRIARFE
R B ¥ R IR ARG 0  FEULIFR
T BREETRESNEEAR M
BEMEERRNSRIE -

%EH;WZTJEE?‘EEA%A%&—“CEIHA@LTTE%EEr
EME SR EBERPERAREK
EJZEEE?E ° HAFR —r/\Lﬂlgﬂgﬁéﬁmﬁ‘:P
JRE W R T O T < R AT 1 ) AR B R B RE R
BE W s R 1R

fid 5 EBR W U B RO AT BE - FEUEIR

MIRESEE T ME (Boxzs) -
EENBRHRERREEREBBHA
BRAEREFRAKRAIEERHEER
BAMEETHNEE

Wn136 FEE 2023/24 F3
@ HREE 5

-

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)

(d) Receivables (continued)

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method and including
allowance for credit losses as determined below:

The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLS”), which are those
losses that are expected to occur over the expected life
of the receivables. For all financial instruments (including
deposits and interest receivable), The Ombudsman
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLS
unless these has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLS.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any
changes recognised as an impairment gain or l0ss in
profit or loss. The Ombudsman recognises an impairment
gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of receivables through a loss allowance
account.

The gross carrying amount of receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when The Ombudsman determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Big R &M (&)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(e)

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, payables are stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with policy as set out in note 2(d).

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to The Ombudsman of non-monetary
employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of The
Ombudsman. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EXEFEHE (&) 2 Material accounting policies

(continued)

) EEERIBEE (h) Provisions and contingent liabilities

HFEERNAREBENFEAEE
FERETER - METEZEBTELR G
BHESELEIGNERING + WA
ERI eV et - B IREEE - RUE
ERREBEEXN  AEBSSKRETE
TEEMEERNRETRK -

RINEELERNZNERINEB AT 81
BIE - SR A B ABEEL RN
et ZEBESRREAIEFAR B
AR E RN H) AT g1 AR BIBR SN o 78
RIPRREREERBLFELEIBES 8
MEFEEDHERE  TeRERNE
BfE - BRERINTE A G2 IR A
BRI o

RIVESEBE TN D H AL
?ﬁﬁﬂ%HEElj: FERM - Rlgm T T

TR TEHIME MR R — Iﬁé’ﬁié{
;'* MEMNFAEZNSETESRE
BEHIRE S

FiIREE 2023/24 3

Provisions are recognised when The Ombudsman has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.
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The Ombudsman

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

BRI MEE (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material

accounting policies

(continued)

(i) Income recognition

(i)

Government subventions

An unconditional Government subvention is
recognised as income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the grant becomes
receivable. Other Government subventions are
recognised in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that The Ombudsman
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Subventions that compensate The Ombudsman
for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in the statement of income and expenditure on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Subventions that
compensate The Ombudsman for the cost of an
asset are included in the statement of financial
position as deferred Government subventions
and recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure over the period of the lease term or
useful live of the related asset on a basis consistent
with the depreciation policy as set out in note 2(c).

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EXE
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() EEEAL

(@)

ERATHEERRBERFES
@Ak ROZALTHEBERR
B

() AIEEHISHERIEHIRREE

(i) ERHFEEMNFTEEREK
g .

BT EMERER - AEER
B EA S B B AR R R

0

iy X—EHER> ERNBEHX
BRERRE (X5 —F8Mm
JE S EIRK B HOB B R B I
W) -

(i) FEEREEEIAEE =77 108
W o

HIFEE 2023/24 FR

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)

() Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to The Ombudsman if that person:

() has control or joint control over The
Ombudsman;

(i) hassignificant influence over The Ombudsman;
or

(i) isamember of the key management personnel
of The Ombudsman.

An entity is related to The Ombudsman if any of
the following conditions applies:

() The entity and The Ombudsman are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
ISR M ()

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Material accounting policies
(continued)

(j) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to The Ombudsman if any of
the following conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
The Ombudsman or an entity related to The
Ombudsman.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(j)(a).

(viiy A person identified in note 2(j)(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to The Ombudsman.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 BREMEREZBFER 3 Government subventions and

&

BNESERHAFREERN AT EERNS
H BT K -

BELEBRREDRIEABNEEERLEE
BENZBOBFER - BEBRFENE 2
By TRENHEEBRFEEE A
THERNEOE (545F) REEYHAIE
FEHE (40%F)  HRERMIEE2(c) R 2()()Eh 51 A9
ST BRNERETERERAR -

N2024F3A31A5TH - BAHBELERFEE
ZEHINT

deferred Government subventions

Government subventions represent the funds granted by the
Government for daily operations of The Ombudsman.

Deferred Government subventions represent the funds
granted by the Government for prepaid lease payments
and the purchase of building. Amortisation of deferred
Government subventions is recognised on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease term of 54 years of interest
in leasehold land held for own use for prepaid lease payments
and the useful life of 40 years of building in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in notes 2(c) and 2(i)(i).

At 31 March 2024, the deferred Government subventions are
expected to be amortised as follows:

—FRUBRREERBAECIA Within one year and included in

current liabilities $ 1,814,220 $ 1,814,220

—FRUPREEFERBDAEBZA After one year and included in

non-current liabilities 49,829,338 51,643,558

$ 51,643,558 §$ 53,457,778

W42y  HRES 2023/24 F3
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(BB #3815 LB T B EEfr) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 Operating expenses

BERMFA (MEES)
WE - MERLRETE (HE7)

Employee benefit expenses (note 5)

$ 124,833,311 $§ 123,116,728

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (note 7) 4,796,836 3,881,837
EMRERE Rates and management fee 3,021,479 3,614,051
REHERERY Expense relating to short-term leases 100,800 100,800
Z R & Auditor’s remuneration 110,000 105,000
EEWE  HREEREZEKX Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 8,600 651,015
H B S2 Other expenses 11,819,768 6,045,605

$ 144,690,794 $ 137,515,036

5 BEERAMAX

5 Employee benefit expenses

e KOERh Salaries and allowances $ 108,398,798 $ 105,615,719
KN & Contract gratuity 11,138,935 10,976,503
RIMREER - BslE A ESTE Pension costs — Mandatory Provident
( T&¥EEETEl) ) (GP) Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”)
(Note) 2,995,124 3,005,428
AIELZ & Unutilised annual leave (1,005,059) (311,575)
Emig BEHMAXZ Other employee benefit expenses 3,305,513 3,830,653

$ 124,833,311 $ 123,116,728

i RREEREEE CREIMAEFEIGD)
gmpiEes s AEEE (EBRED) R
ETEAMARE RS RN BIREE
BMiK - @S ERRBLITEAEED
FERFURKEE - RIFBTESE - BE
KiEB % BAZERRBASNS %A EIH
- B RBMALLA30,0007T A LR o mE
SHELMERNBRBES - AFZETE
EUR WA AR IR 1T K F ROHR

Note: The Ombudsman operates the MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by the
defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees' relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by The Ombudsman to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24




B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 TEEEEE M

6 Key management compensation

EHESRA Short-term employee benefits $ 15,861,917 $ 15,872,221
AR RIE R A Post-employment benefits 2,013,580 1,922,529
$ 17,875,497 $ 17,794,750

7 W% EBERRE

7 Property, plant and equipment

BEEEH
MEELH
s BEY RENEEE

Interest in

leasehold

land held for Leasehold office Office  Computer Motor

0wn use Building improvements  furniture  equipment equipment  vehicles
A Cost:
R2023F4A18 At 1 April 2023 $74,900,000 $16,800,000  $26,765,614  $901,907 $1,677,719 $10,854,279  $994,880 $ 132,894,399
b Additions - - 1,172,800 28,853 566,660 164,330 - 1,932,643
RE Disposals - - - (27,022)  (329,109)  (484,589) - (840,720)
RUEIA3NA At 31 March 2024 $74,900,000 $16,800,000 $27,938,414  §903,738 $1,915,270 §$10,534,020 $994,880 $ 133,986,322
ZiiE: Accumulated

depreciation:

R23FLA1A At 1 April 2023 $29,399,784 $8,842,438  $16,037,752  §790,768 $1,445328 $7,361,670 $865398 64,743,138
ERYH Charge for the year 1,394,220 420,000 1,224,945 47,293 115206 1,535,196 59976 4,796,836
RERED Written back on disposals - - - (27,022)  (320,687)  (484,411) - (832,120)
RANUEIAIA At 31 March 2024 $30,794,004 $9,262,438 $17,262,697  $811,039 $1,239,847 $8,412,455  $925,374  $ 68,707,854
REFE Net hook value:
R2024E38310 At 31 March 2024 $44,105,996 $7,537,562 $10,675,717 §92,699  §675423 $2,121,565 $69,506 § 65,278,468
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 Y- #ERzE (B) 7 Property, plant and equipment
(continued)
5EfEER
G
fEq
Interest in
leasehold
land held for Leasehold Office Office Computer Motor
OWN Use Building  improvements fumiture  equipment  equipment vehicles

B Cost;

RA02FLA18 At 1 April 2022 $74,900,000 $ 16,300,000 $17,11903  §88853  §1974997  §9,740,533 $994880  §122,417,982

R Additions - - 10,480,684 31,586 61,345 1,625,809 - 12,199,424

RE Disposals - - (834,106) (18,215) (358,623) (512,063 - (1,723,007)

202337318 At 31 March 2023 $74,900,000  $ 16,800,000 §26765614  §901907  §1677719 §10,854,279  $994,880  $132,894,399

ZitiE: Accumulated

depreciation:

RA2ELA1A At 1 April 2022 §28,005,564  $8422438 §15,665010  §756,017  §1,672508  $6,606334  $805422  $61933293

ERit Charge for the year 1,394,220 420,000 567,801 52,966 12050 1266330 59,976 3,881,837

REKEMD Written back on disposals - - (195,059) (18215 (47720 (510994) - (1,071,992)

R2023F3A318 At 31 March 2023 $29399,784  $8,:842,438 $16,037,752 §790.768  $1445328  $7361670 865398  $64,743138

REFE - Net book value:

202337318 At 31 March 2023 §45500216  §$7957,562 $10,727 862 $111,139 §232,391  $3,492,609 §$129482  $68,151,261
HFEEURBHEEFASEHRE L R The Ombudsman’s interest in leasehold land is held under
o long lease.

8 AERASEEYW 8 Cash and cash equivalents

IRITIRS Cash at bank $ 222,288,794 $ 179,941,924

EFRE Cash in hand 5,000 5,000

$ 222,293,794 $ 179,946,924

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 @/
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT E &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 EBENNRMNE 9 contract gratuity payable

EHAHSERTEBAVERMSEINGAESR
ML mENE - SEARBELAHFEM10%E
25% (20234 : 10%%E25%) % - BH%E
ERRBEDEIK -

The amount represents the gratuity payable to staff on expiry
of their employment contracts. The amount of gratuity ranges
from 10% to 25% (2023: 10% to 25%) of the basic salary less
employer’s contributions to MPF.

10 #i1E 10 Taxation

RiE CHFFEEGED) HIRIAES() M - @
HREBEABEHNARE (RHERG) Bk
B8

The Ombudsman is exempt from taxation in respect of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance in accordance with Schedule 1A
Section 5(1) of The Ombudsman Ordinance.

11 &3E 11 Commitments

R2024F3ANASHH - R E BT
2B EHEA WM O REREN KR
B

At 31 March 2024, the total future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of parking spaces are payable as follows:

2024 2023

R—FE R within 1 year

$ 8,400 $ 8,400

BIEERD —EEAMUAEEBARE &
DDA BRR -

The leases remain in force unless terminated by giving notice
in writing of not less than one calendar month.

12 R ESER 12 Management of accumulated funds

FREBEERHERFESH  EXENRE
BREAFZENFERFERE - AHREEE
BRIV B R B SRR -

, wme
REFEE 2023/24 3

The Ombudsman’s primary objective when managing its
accumulated funds is to safeguard The Ombudsman’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Ombudsman is
not subject to externally imposed requirements relating to
its accumulated funds.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments

Risk management is carried out by the General and Finance
Section under policies approved by The Ombudsman.
The General and Finance Section identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the operating units.
The Ombudsman’s exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate
and currency risks are described below:

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to The Ombudsman. The Ombudsman’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The Ombudsman has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to this credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings to minimise credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position. The Ombudsman does
not provide any guarantees which would expose The
Ombudsman to credit risk.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Ombudsman’s policy is to regularly monitor its
current and expected liquidity requirements and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24 1{147/}&



B R R MR (48)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(AT E &85 L8 T B E7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13LEKBREEREBMIARN 13Financial risk management and

AYEEE (&) fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

(b) E£FAERK (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRIEPFEENNBABERSEF The following table shows the remaining contractual
EERFZFHRELFE - THIREARES maturities at the end of the reporting period of The
REXWBRERLBAFHEE A REWH B KA Ombudsman'’s financial liabilities, which are based on
RZEFAHRE contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest

date The Ombudsman can be required to pay:

2024
AEREHNREINR

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—F T —FlE MERE REREH

% B B 2 A8 BRELT BRFUT RER#st

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

FERT #0m B &
Contract gratuity payable $ 10,213,127 $ 4,547,993 $ 2,405,930 $ 17,167,050 $ 17,167,050

H A RROR N e R B
Other payables and accruals 4,782,715 - - 4,782,715 4,782,715

$ 14,995,842 $ 4,547,993 $ 2,405,930 $21,949,765 $ 21,949,765

2023
AREHRBOREING

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—FUT —FAE LA E ARAEIRE A

a5 B A 2 1 BRELT BRENLAT BEmst

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

FERT Hm B &
Contract gratuity payable $ 5902956 $ 5,158,266 $ 2,886,747 $ 13,947,969 $ 13,947,969

H e RIERERTE A
Other payables and accruals 6,141,710 - - 6,141,710 6,141,710

$ 12,044,666 $ 5158266 $ 2,886,747 $ 20,089,679 $ 20,089,679

HIFEE 2023/24 F3R
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

(C)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Ombudsman’s only exposure to
interest rate risk is via its bank balances which bear
interest at market rates.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2024, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 (2023: 100) basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would have
increased The Ombudsman’s surplus and accumulated
funds by approximately $197,000 (2023: $183,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the financial instruments which expose
The Ombudsman to interest rate risk at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents The
Ombudsman’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2023.

Currency risk

The Ombudsman has no exposure to currency risk as
all of The Ombudsman’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Annual Report of The Ombudsman 2023/24
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B IRRMIEE ()
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(FrE&EEH LB T AE) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13LEKBREEREBMIARN 13Financial risk management and

NEEHE (&) fair values of financial instruments
(continued)
(e) A EEE=Z (e) Fair value measurement
R EE RS a T AR A 85 K A The carrying amounts of The Ombudsman'’s financial
AIRMIRE 58 - EHEMN2024F 2023 instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were not
FIANEHMATFEBELEERAER - materially different from their fair values at 31 March

2024 and 2023.

MAERBEBRALRS 14 Material related party transactions

TREEZEEEBAENRS Transactions with key management
personnel

FEEEEMEK BN R EMTORKE - Remuneration of all members of key management personnel

is disclosed in note 6.

158 £2024F3831HILLEE 15Possible impact of amendments,

2 M EEARERNISE new standards and interpretations
EARZREAURESTRNE issued but not yet effective for the
& year ended 31 March 2024

HEXRPBHRERTIZEAL - BESEHMA Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
SEBMEIBEE] - BEEZE2024F3A31 HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, which are not
HIEFEERED NS BEARTBEHREF yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2024 and which
B 2R BENATHERAFRESABN have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
CHE developments include the following which may be relevant

to The Ombudsman.

\@ FHERE S 2023/24 FiR
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(AT B &EEH LB T A E) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

158 £2024F3A31HLEE 15Possible impact of amendments,

2 EM{E = RERIEET new standards and interpretations
MEARZREAURETRNE issued but not yet effective for
2 (&) the year ended 31 March 2024
(continued)
NN R
R Z BRI
SITHBLEXR
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
CEBETEA) B1RE5]  MBEHRKXNZS  BESERTELIFTE 2024%1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2024
current or non-current
CEBERTER) B1R2E5]  HBEHRRNZS : WERFENE B EE 2024F1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities with 1 January 2024
covenants
(BB BREER) 165 2185] : HE : ERHLMHER B 2024F1H18
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
(CEBERER) B7R2E5]  HensXk (BBVBKMERER) B75% 21835] : 2024F1H18
SETA  HHERFE L E
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments. 1 January 2024
Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
CEBGFHER) B2R21B5] - EXEFHLZE RS A LA 2025F1H18
Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates. Lack of 1 January 2025
exchangeability
RREEREFHZEEFTRYIRERBME The Ombudsman is in the process of making an assessment
sl msr e - ZBATALL - BFREERE of what the impact of these developments is expected to be
FENZE BT TR e g WA R REK in the period of initial application. So far The Ombudsman
BERTE o has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have

a significant impact on the financial statements.
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REFANE
Complainants Charter

REBHATRERELDRY - BRHBEITE -
NEEBAFAGTLIATHE

We endeavour to provide a high standard of service to the public.
In fully discharging our duties, this Office has drawn up the
following Charter:

NEWETE our Commitment

e HX QNEREREMEIERF e Handle complaints in a professional, impartial and
efficient manner

e HERANEHAFASHANEEZRER e Keep complainants informed of the progress and outcome
of our inquiries

o BRMBEAZNIRE e Explain our decisions clearly

o  RIBRFANILE e Protect complainants’ privacy

e YMEREBKESH e  Treat the public with courtesy and respect

RIFAL TmEBEEMGER - AIRKAE RIRHIER
ERBEWER - *”ﬂl}”alJHﬁ%,E\jZHEi‘kEEﬁ%E
ARAAEEERTRIFARE - AZERFEER
IER) BB AR

Complainants not satisfied with our findings may write to this
Office and state the grounds for a review of their cases. Any views
on individual staff or our services may be directed to our dedicated
Chief Manager. We will take follow-up action with professionalism
and fairness.

HEFARNELE

complainants’ Responsibilities

e BRHBHEFEE e  State clearly the issues of complaint

o ERNREHERMNEN (BREMFLE
HREE 5D LT %%F&iél’]ﬁfrﬁﬁﬁﬂ

%)

e REEATHE

Provide true and accurate information (including an
account of events, the required information for verification
of their identity and determination of their traceability,
etc.) in a timely manner

Cooperate in our inquiries

o LAEWEERIL AR e  Lodge complaints in a reasonable manner

s HHEREEKBEEH e Treat the staff with courtesy and respect
FHRFARERS  S#EER RERTES If complainants are not cooperative, the progress and/or outcome
XHE ERAEERTEREBR J&m%ﬂ)lﬂ of our inquiries may be affected. In such circumstances, we will
EEE - BIERBEMESHFIREDHE - K take proper actions as appropriate, such as making our decision
IEEAE - on the basis of available evidence or terminating the inquiry.

':g152)r HEFES 2023/24 F£3§
\
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TEHEERFEELE
Office of The Ombudsman, Hong Kong, China

HoHE BB THEF 168-200 97
Address EEALBERBAE 30 #
30/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
A EBHE BB BEFE 3300 9%
Post Box G.PO. Box No. 3300, Hong Kong
B NI FFELR (852) 2629 0555

Enquiry and Complaint Hotline

mE (852) 2882 8149

Fax

BHEE enquiry@ombudsman.hk
Enquiry Email

HFFEE complaints@ombudsman.hk

Ccomplaint Email

494k www.ombudsman.hk
Website

VA
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